Tillamook County Transportation District
Board of Directors
Regular Monthly Meeting

)/

Dial-A-Ride NW)RIDES

A Service of Tillamook County Transportation District

Thursday, April 22, 2021 at 6:00PM
Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, Oregon



For Board Meeting of April 22, 2021
Agenda ltem # 7

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: DOUG PILANT, GENERAL MANAGER D & 2)
SUBJECT: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2

ISSUE

Shall the Board direct the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2 by Title and set a Public
Hearing beginning with the April 22, 2021 Board meeting to the May 20, 2021 Board
meeting to receive public testimony regarding proposed changes to the fare structure as
described in the proposed Ordinance No. 2 pursuant to ORS 198.540 and ORS
267.1507?

PURPOSE
The District has been studying how to modify its fare policy to:
e Simplify its fixed route fare structure and make fares more affordable.

e Revise the Dial-A-Ride fare structure so it can eliminate zones and allow people
to travel to jobs, shopping, and other destinations across the County.

The District would also like to make it easier to introduce new fare systems, such as
mobile ticketing, that will make it more convenient for customers to pay fares in the
future.

The District would like to and implement any fare changes prior to implementing an
update and enhancement to its Ecolane deviated fixed route dispatching and scheduling
management software, which would avoid additional effort and cost of reprogramming
equipment. The update project is currently underway and which the District would

like roll it out in Summer 2021.

BACKGROUND

The District's current fare ordinance was adopted in 2013, and modified by Board
resolutions in 2014 and 2019. The last fare change for the District occurred on July 1,
2019, with the adoption of Ordinance 19-14 by the Board on June 20, 2019. The change
increased Dial-A-Ride fares to $4 (full-fare, 1-zone) and to $2 (discount, 1-zone)
to keep the service available to as many people as possible on a basis that is
economically sustainable.

)

In 2020, the District conducted a fare analysis, including a comprehensive review of the
current fare structure and policies and relevant fare-related best practices; analysis of
multiple fare scenarios and ridership/revenue impacts; and fare structure and policy
recommendations. As part of this analysis, the District:

e Facilitated two focus group meetings on September 15 and 16,
2020 with stakeholders (representatives of social service agencies and other
organizations) throughout the County.



For Board Meeting of April 22, 2021
Agenda ltem # 7

e Conducted a survey of bus drivers and dispatchers in October 2020.

e Presented to the Board on October 15, 2020, summarizing findings from the
Existing Conditions and Best Practices review.

e Conducted a public survey between January 11 to 31, 2021 to obtain input on an
initial fare proposal. The District received 77 responses.

e Facilitated a follow up focus group meeting with stakeholders on March 2,
2021 to solicit their feedback.

At the March 18, 2021 Board meeting, the District presented findings and
recommendations from a draft report summarizing the District’s fare analysis,
incorporating adjustments based on input from the public and stakeholders. In late
March 2020, the District also conducted a survey of bus drivers and dispatchers to
solicit their input on the proposed changes. The District made adjustments to the
proposed fare structure described below based on Board and driver/dispatcher input, as
well as additional staff discussion.

On February 1, 2021, the District submitted its application to the Oregon Department of
Transportation (ODOT) for Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) formula
funds, including funds to make fares more affordable (including changes proposed in
this Ordinance). The proposed changes are consistent with STIF program goals to
reduce costs for low-income persons and a requirement that transit agencies use 1% of
the funds to enhance transportation for students in Grades 9 to 12. The District's STIF
Plan is currently being reviewed by ODOT and will need to be approved by the Oregon
Transportation Commission (OTC).

PROPOSED FARE STRUCTURE

The District’s fare structure refers to specific fare products offered to the riding public
and pricing of those products. Table 1 shows the proposed fare structure and fare
changes for each fare category. A copy of the proposed fare table is provided in the
Ordinance as Attachment A.

The changes include:

e Eliminating fare zones for travel within Tillamook County, on both deviated fixed
routes and Dial-A-Ride.

o On deviated fixed routes, there would be a single fare zone including
connections to Lincoln City and Cannon Beach.

o On Dial-A-Ride, there would be a base fare for trips of up to 5 miles, and a
mileage-based fare for each additional mile, within the service area
(Tillamook County). Customers will be able to find out the cost of their trip at
the time they reserve it.

e Eliminating the following fare types:

o Tillamook Town Loop Day Pass (replaced by a day pass for all of Tillamook
County)



For Board Meeting of April 22, 2021
Agenda ltem # 7

o Route 5 (Portland Coastliner) round trip pass (replaced by a 10-trip pass)

o Multi-zone Dial-A-Ride, which is available for medical trips only (replaced
by the mileage-based fare described above)

For deviations on Tillamook County fixed routes, the District will charge an
additional fare (in addition to the full fare or reduced fare for an “on-route”

trip). Deviations may currently be requested within a % mile distance of the route,
and a limited number may be accommodated if it is safe to do so and based on
the time available in the schedule. However, deviations make it more

challenging for drivers to keep buses on schedule, minimize delay to other
passengers, and ensure they do not miss connections to other routes.

Reduced fares are currently offered to seniors (60+) and persons with disabilities,
on Tillamook County routes and intercity service between Lincoln City and
Salem. The District also intends to make reduced fares available to low-income
persons in the future, but it has determined that it first needs to

develop an eligibility process including criteria and forms of verification, such as a
Medicaid (Oregon Health Plan) card. The District plans to develop this

process in approximately July to December of 2021.

For children and youth:

o Fixed-route trips would be free within Tillamook County (including
connections to Lincoln City and Cannon Beach) for children and youth age O-
18, not including deviations (which are charged the same additional fare as
described above).

o The first two children age 0-12 would be free with a paying adult.

o Youth age 13-18 may be asked to show a middle or high school student
identification card (or alternative) for age verification.

FARE POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS

The District’s fare analysis also identified internally-adopted policies or procedures such
as fare collection. These include:

Requiring that 10-Trip passes be purchased in advance, as this avoids delaying
bus departures; minimizes the amount of cash on-board (a potential safety
concern among drivers).

Making monthly passes available for sale in convenient locations for customers,
such as at grocery stores.

Exploring mobile ticketing, online ticket sales, and provide a ticket machine at the
Tillamook Transit Center.

Simplify communication of the fare structure on passenger materials, which will
be made possible with the proposed changes.

Establishing formal guidelines for fare adjustments, considering the average fare,
subsidy per passenger, and farebox recovery ratio.

(,;)J



For Board Meeting of April 22, 2021
Agenda ltem # 7

Table 1: Proposed Fares (Effective 7/1/2021

Full Fare Reduced Fare | ChildIYouth Fare*
| Current | Proposed ‘ Current Proposed | Current Proposed

Tillamook County Routes (Deviated Fixed Routes)
Single Fare (per route) $1b56()r 2%'50 $1.00 $0'p7e5r ?032'25 $0.50 $%;52tgn$é2;25 Free
Day Pass N/A $3.00 N/A $1.50 N/A Free
Monthly Pass $40.00 $30.00 $30.00 $20.00 N/A Free
Single Fare with Deviation N/A $2.00 N/A $1.50 N/A N/A
Deviation 10-Trip Pass N/A $20.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Dial-A-Ride
Single Fare up to 5 miles $4'ggn(zi)”9'e $4.00 $2'22n(§)”9'e $2.00 NIA $2.00
o 20dional mile beyond |y $0.50 N/A $0.50 N/A $0.50
Intercity Route 5 (Portland Coastliner)
Single Fare $15.00 $15.00 N/A N/A $7.50 $7.50
10-Trip Pass N/A $120.00 N/A N/A N/A $60.00
Intercity Routes 60X/70X (Coastal Connector)
1 Zone $1.50 $1.50 $0.75 $0.75 $0.75 * $0.75
2 Zones $3.00 $3.00 $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 ** $1.50
3 Zones $6.00 $6.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 = $3.00
Special Programs
g-azzy WA $25.00 $25.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A
;;Dszy WD retior $30.00 $30.00 NIA N/A N/A N/A
Seasonal Pass N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

* First child 0-4 is free with paying adult. ** First child age 0-5 is free with paying adult

PUBLIC INPUT

Handouts describing the proposed changes were distributed to passengers on-board
vehicles and posted at the Tillamook Transit Center, and posted to the District’s web
page and social media page (Facebook).

Written comments may be providing by giving written testimony to a driver, by mail,
or by email sent to publichearing@tillamookbus.org and must be received by close of
business (5 pm) on May 7, 2021.

The District Board will consider testimony received in writing (by May 7, 2021)

or provided during Public Hearings before adopting the new fare ordinance, from April
22, 2021 until the Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2 at the Public Hearing on May 20,
2021,



For Board Meeting of April 22, 2021
Agenda ltem # 7

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the Board direct the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2 by Title; and
receive public testimony regarding proposed changes to the fare structure, rates, and
effective date, from the April 22, 2021 Board meeting to the May 20, 2021 Board
meeting pursuant to ORS 198.540 and ORS 267.150.



Tillamook County Transportation District
Normal Trial Balance
From 3/1/2021 Through 3/31/2021

Account Code Account Title Debit Balance Credit Balance
1001 General Checking Account 880,184.65 -

1006 Payroll Checking 20,356.70 -«

1009 NW RIDES ACCOUNT 129,366.02-

1011 Prop. Mgmt. Checking 30,498.28 «

1020 LGIP - General Account 1,216,787.57 °

1030 LGIP - Capital Reserve 943,136.48 *

1040 Petty Cash 200.00

Report Total 3,220,529.70 0.00

Report Difference

Date: 4/5/21 02:42:16 PM

3,220,529.70
——Q_ @ A0
5

MONTHLY BOARD REPORT - CASH

Page: 1



| :98ed aouBLIEA % 193png LA/M Hoday OY ATyon N €T¥S:€0 1T/6/7 -1

2%00°¢¥ (19°652°01) 00°000°81 6€°0VL'L LYTFS 60°ST0°1 0l6¥ swoouf dxg [euonerad( aseory
%80°9L (00°005°¢) 00°000°€T 00°00$°L1 000051 00°000°C 006% ouIOOU] 35BY']
%00°0 (00000°1) 00°000°1 000 £€°€8 000 0TSt oWOoU] JUISTHIAPY
%66 V¢ (PSsTI 1) 00°00S°Z¢ I PLE L £€'80L°T 8¥'S60°1 0lsy SWOdUJ 1821010]
%000 (00°000°01) 00°000°01 0070 €CEES 000 01+¥ SwWodU] - S19SSY JO 3feS
%E1°L6S 68°958°4T 00°000°c 68958°6T L991Y 00°959°9 00¥¥ AWIODU] SNOSUE[[SISIA
20070 (00005°7) 00°005°C 00'0 £€°80¢ 000 00€Y suonetadQ sng jeroadg
%0T'6C (00°Z€0°s€T) 00°000°ZEE 00°'896°96 00°000°¢8 00°0 Shey 01€S - seIn
%€9°8¢ (00906°T11) 00000481 00 ¥60° 1L 00°000°9% 000 oy ) 11€¢ - surin
2%00°SL (00°sz691) 00°00L°L9 00°SLL0S 000 000 O£y ALS - SueID
%00°SL (00°00s°01) 00°000°C¥ 00°005°1€ 00°0 000 cTTy YIBIN JUOD) JoUMR] VIOMN
%000 8€'88T°L9 00°0 8€'887°L9 000 000 1zey dIAQD - S1uBID
%S1°1Z1 00°185°€8 00°000°56€ 00°185°8LY 00°05L°86 000 0ey [1€S V.Id - sweiD
%000 {00000°160°1) 00°000°160°1 000 000 000 o1zy syweln) eyde)y
%0t 01 (007285 1€) 00°000°ZS€ 00°819°9¢ 00°0 000 LELY Areuonamsi(y J11S
%81'8¢C (00°TTE'8IT) 00°000v0¢ 00'8,9°¢8 000 000 9¢l¥ Anunwwoomu| J1 1§
%20°9S (00291°¢€17) 00 1L v8Y 00°65S°1LT 00°0 00°0 SEly B[nULIO J[1S
%ESEL (0L°¢6¥°T0) 00°000°58 0£905°29 £€°€80°L 000 0€ly Xe], [J014e 9101 JSURL, SSEA[
2%60° ¢ (99°L8+°951) 00°000°SLT vETISQIL L9°916°CT 000 0TI AMNUBAY Iaquuf [ 21BIS
%I19°€8 (9€°L60°F) 00°000°6T ¥9°206°0T €€'€80°C S HAYAS 011+ xe], Auadold s1ea p 1sed
%9L+01 89°TE€TSY 00°000°056 89°7€T°566 L9991°6L 19°T¥6°0€ 001% xe] Auadoig
%7665 (80°099°05€) 00°000°5L8 6'6£€PTS LY916TL 98°SLL b 0z0v SNUATY J0BNUO)
%01°0S (SrzgLsyn) 00°000°00€ S8TITIST 00°000°ST W 069°LT 000t saIe |
%00°0 (00°5£8°916°T) 00°S€8°916°1 000 000 000 00S€ fende) Sunpiopm
moo.SOmuZ
%SL DUBLIBA 108png [®10], [enioy 198png poliag [en19Y POLIDJ
ﬁuwt:m _mpor—l Iea A EO.C:U EQESU EQESQ

[20T/1€/€ YSNOMY Y, [Z0T/1/€ WOl
JUSWONE)S [BIOUBUIL]

PLgsiq uoneyrodsuea ], Ayuno)) yooweyyiy,



¢ -aded URLIEA 29 128png ([LA/M Hoday qog AJYIuojN
2%9¢°61 817°S65°L 00°000°S1 SHOT'L 00°0SZ°1 66791
%Sh Pl (9¢79¢€'y) 00°000°0€ 9€°9¢€ e 00°00$°C 000
%9998 00°000°1 00005, 000059 00°$29 00°005°9
%19°¢9 91°60°6 00°000°5C P8 7061 £€°€80°C YETHY'S
%¥1°001 (85961) 00°0ST0I1 8590011 0S°L81°6 S6°0SL Y1
%6589 $9°0£T0bL 00°'7€6°95¢°T 9€1TL919'1 L9TIV961 TEP8TS9I
%Iv ¥l (£9°¢18°2) 00°000°Z¢ £9°€18°6€ L9'999°C 000
%€9°69 89°899°G1 00°009°St ZE1€6%6T 00°008°¢ OF'€61°¢
%I ¥L L6'9VL LI 00°00$°0L €0°€SL°ZS 00°¢L8°S 96°1T1°S
%I'€9 PO¥10°091 00°TSELEY 96°LEETLLT 00'9¥b°9¢ SHoLI‘IE
%91°€L 8C°LETEE 00°00§°€T1 79°79€°06 L916T°01 9€68L°8
%S89/ 6£70T°91 00°000°0L 19°L6L°€S £€'€€8°c 66CITS
%90°L9 ¥0°'698°89¢ 00°000°0C1°1 96 0€1°15L €EEEECH £€°689°6L
YRS €T196°¢1 0000026 LL'8EV'3L L9999, 0S0€E°L
%E7'99 S HP8°TTl 00°000°99¢ 9P SSIEhT 00°005°0¢ €E0LLYT
%Z16€ (L9°68L6VFS) 001261568 ECLELTOS'E  €€80TEhY 16°L1F°611
%8S'€T (TeesrzeL) 00°000°SH6 81°LY8°TTT 000 00°0
%000 00°000°¢ 000 00°000°¢ 000 00°0
%000 (00°98L°9%) 00°98L°9% 000 00°0 000
%00°0 (00'5£8°1€) 00°SE8°1€ 000 000 0070
%£9°€6 (00°000°01) 00°050°LS1 00°0S0°L¥1 000 00°0

%S L AdUBLIE A 198png [g10], [enoy 1e8png poriag [enioy pord

108png w0,

120T/1¢€/€ Y3noly ], [70z/1/€ woif

B9 A juaian))

UL

WaWae)S [RIOURUI]

ANy

PLysiq uoyeliodsuea g, Ayuno)) yoowrepi],

0TIS
€01¢
[40288
[01¢
001¢

€sos
£50¢
c0¢
1so¢
0€0¢
0v0¢
0€0¢
0T0¢
010¢

8l6v
Ll6y
9le6y
sley
L16¥

Wd €T7S5€0 1T/6/1 -21eQ

suonduosqng 7 sangg
Buiuueg

20UBUDIUIRIA 91ISQ M
uoddng sanensiutpy
SIJIAILG [BUOISSIJOIJ

SOOIAIOG PUE S[BLISTRIN
SIDIAIAG [UUOSIS] [BI0 ],

‘suj uonesuadiio)) SIN10 M4
BQOA J[0IAB]

1USWRI1IY []04A8
2IBOYIBAH [|0IAR]
asuadxy []0ikeq
0UBUUIRIA] ([[0IAR]
SIDALI(] :][01keg

yoredsi( :jjolleq
UOHBNSIUIWDY :[]0IAR g

SAIAIDG [SUUOSID

$30IN0S3Y [B10],

puny JILS Wwoly 19ysuel ],
VIOMN WOl 19)suBl]
puny J.§ Woy 19Jsuel ],

'S3Y "YoINg Yo A WO J3JSURIY,

puny [erauar) wou, J3Jsuel],



€ o8eq A0UBLIBA %9 193png (I LA/M HOdYY OY Alpuow Wd €T¥S:€0 12/6/% 21

%60°6C1 (e87cLTL) 00°000°ST £8°CLTCE €E'€80°C (42400 ores Ireday] % Jurejy Auodosg
%000 00°00¢ 00°00¢ 000 L1y 000 oges §99,] 1953 X9[4
%¥0°0L 16°LEE°L 00°00S¥C 60°T91°LI LY 10T 1€£9L8°C 00¢€S asuodxyg JuneiadQ Auadorg
%00°0 (LY 967 6) 000 LY 961°v6 000 00816 16T¢ asuadxq AIAQD
%00°0 00°000°0ST 00°000°0ST 000 000 000 06¢s u0) Sunelad( jerouan
%09°1L [L1Ir's 00°000°81 67°888°C1 00°005°1 9T TTE’l ¢8LS UL JJURD) 1ISUeL],
%00°0 (00°00£°9) 000 00°00€°9 00°00L 000 08cs 9SSBT J2U3]) Jisuel],
%000 00'80L°C 00'80L°C 000 L9°STT 000 0L2S pun uomneanay Ioqe WIN
%000 (00°000°7) 00°0 00°000°C 000 00°000°C 99¢¢ JUDWBSINQUITSY 9TEI[IIA JOGUISIN
%LL 89 v +v29 00°000°T 6S°SLEL L9991 66°6V1 092¢ age)sod
%¥1°09 LEIYI66 00°000°0ST £9°€5£°051 ££°€€8°0T 61°€£0°CT Syes asuadxg [ong
%1996 €8°L9L°9 00°000°002 S1TeETc61 L9°999°91 VI'LITIC ovee asuadxy 2oy p
%68°1C 60566 T 00°000°CE 16'¥00°L 89°999°C 81°C6¢C 0ces Fuiuiel 79 [9ARIL
%STOL 11°628°C 00°009°61 68°0LL°EL €EEE°T SLYEE’] olee ssuadxgy auoydsjaf,
%00°0 (€8°L84°T) 000 €8°L8YT 000 000 961¢ 109[01 $5200y NSUBI],
%rl'LE 00 ¥y Ly 00°000°GL 00'968°LT 00°0S2°9 (0076L9°5) [61¢ ug1so(J-2y SNSqIM
%01'C¢ 81°Zre'LE 00°000°6S T8°LSHLI PEE8S Y L8801y 061¢ Funayre
%09°¢P 00°09¢°1 00°005°C 00°0¥1°l ££°80C 000 g8I¢ uonensiuwpy [oyod]y % Sniq
%99°9L EILSY'6 007005 0¥ L88YO°IE 66 VLE'E 9I'ISL 081¢ esuadxy euonerado
%6C 1Y LI'TE9L 00°000°¢1 £8'89¢°C £C°€80°1 00°S¥Z°l SLIS asuadxq preog
%SE18 61°96L°C 00°000°S1 18°€0T°CI 00°0ST°1 88°11L 0L1S asuadxq 924J0
%1 LOL (00v15°L) 00°000°001 00'¥15°L01 £€°€EE"8 000 091¢ soueInsU]
%6788 16°629°¢ 00°000°1€ 60°0LE°LT £E°€8S°T 86'9¢C°1 0¢1¢ SISUIDIT 79 S
%08°¢¢ 76712081 007005 0% 80°8L¥°ZT 00°SLE°E 0¥’ 100°C SPIS WY mndwo)
%56°0¢ SL196°1 007000t ST8L0°T €CEee CT'STe ovis A»y wawdmby 030
%SL UBLIB A 193png [B10], [enpy 193png pousd [en10Y pousd
193png |B10], Iea A 1Ua1n)) 31Ny aLIn))

1207/1€/€ ysnoaqy, 1z0z/1/€ woiy
1usUIdIR)S [BIOUBUL ]

pLISI( uoneodsueay £)uno)) yoowei ],



p :988d aouBlIEA 29 198png (. LA/M Hoday Og AIYIuoy
%98° ¢l (Sresiy) 00°000°0€ SIresive 00°00S°C 000
%6158 ¥8'€66'71 00'0s¢col 91'95€°88 0S°TIL'S 08°LELET
%0L'L8 9¢°689°¢ 00°000°0¢ PP01€°9C 00°0 TTSSIET
%000 00°008°% 00008 000 000 000
%0€'TL 8L79L0C 00°005°L TTETY'S 00°€T9 8€°C09
%00°'SC 0S°LES™Y 00°0S0°9 0STIST L1'¥0S 00°0
%0001 (0oor1) 00°000°¢S 00011 ¢S £E°€8CY 000
%€8°C1 TS SSTEEST 00°€S1°906°C 87°L68°TLE 00°0 000
%000 00°L¥9°0T0°1 00°L¥9°0T0°1 000 000 000
%0070 00°€£8°10L 00°SE€8°T0L 00°0 00°0 000
%8T°6CI (00°55T°CD) 00°000°9L 00°ST°86 000 000
%000 00°000°01 00°000°01 000 000 000
%6611 TSE61°16L 00'98L°0€6 8¥'T6S°6E1 00°0 00°0
%00°001 00°0 00°0S0°€1 00°0S0°SET 000 00°0
%00°0 00°SE8°1€ 00°S€8°1€ 000 000 000
%IL'T6 00'8v1°C 00¥16°6T 0099L°¢cT EQ°TYL ] 00°6Z€y
%00°SL 00°05T°1 00°000°S 00°0SL°¢ 000 0070
%0L°C6 00868 00¥16°0T 0091002 €8°THL'I 00°6TE Y
%0£°69 Iwm.momﬁmv 00'8SS°C6€°1 TL¥S0°596 91'€16°C6 76'S68°78
%¥0°C9 10°816°] 00°000°t 667181°C ceeeee 61'18¢C

%S/ AouBLIB A 193png [e10], [enoy 193png porag [emMOYy poLd g
193png [e10], Tea A juauny juauny jusuny)

120T/1€/€ ysnoIy ], [Z0z/1/€ woxg

JuSWINIEIS [RIOURUL ]

PLysi uoneyrodsues |, &yuno)) yoowe[i],

0ces

8¢€€¢
LEES
9439
ozes
0res

0816
SLI6
0916
0€16
0€l6
Olle
0016

10c¢
00cs

9ves

Nd €T:%S:€0 12/6/v @1
uoneaouy 7 Jredoy Suipping
saseyaang [ende)
0IAIRS 199(T [¥10],
0IAIRS 1930 11O
U0 IU)) NUSUBI], 11O
asuadxy ueo (1Nd
1S9I91U] 1958 X9[ ]
[ediouriq :aseaT X9y,
A0IAIAG 193(]
KennQ [ende)
SI9JSURI] [€10]
[eg pung Suipuyg pererdorddeun)
amypuadxg aImny 10J 9AIas2Yy
pung v LOMN 01 Jojsuel],
DAISSIY J[OIYI A 01 IJSUBL]
pun,j [eJauan) 0} JAJsuel],
TWSA L1edol 03 Iaysuel |,
1£6€ dIDT 01 Jajsuel],
SIajsuel ]
SjusWAR [e1oads [e10],
sjualdroay] o1 SpuswAR LIS
sjuardioay o1 siuatwkeg 1S
SIUSWARJ [e19adg
S2IIAIIS PUR S[RLISIRIA] [B10],
e Aifioe] suonersdo



G :a8eq JoUBLIEA 29 105png QLA /M Hoday qog Ajyuopn
%96°9¢  96790°519°¢ 00°L26°156°8 ¥0'¥98°80¢°¢ 91'187°89¢ ¥0°L96°v6T
%SS Pl TS°ST6°656°1 00°0S€0LT°C 8¥vTr oce 0S°TIT YL 08'LSh 0v
%LTT1 89°1E6YT6°1 00°000°L91°C T€'890°Che 00°005°89 00°00L°9Z
%T8'CE £€8°69L°C1Y 00000919 L1'0£T°T0T ECEEEIS 00°00L°9Z
%t € 00°12€°6S1 00°000°691 00°6L9°S 00°0SL°¢1 00°0
%000 00°000°9 00°000°9 0070 00°00S 00°0
%0070 00°000°S 00°000°¢ 000 L9991+ 00°0
%0070 00°000°50¢ 00°000°50S 000 000 000
%00°0 00°000°0v8 00°000°0t8 000 00°0 000

VA9 uUBLIR A 108png [e10], [enyoy 198png polng [en10Y poLad

193png [e10],

[20T/1¢/€ Ysnory ], 1z0z/1/€ woig

B3 A a1y

a1y

JUSWNEIS [RIOUBUL]

LN

PLySIQ uoneyrodsue.l ], Ayuno)) yooweiy,

0509
0v09
1209
0209
0109
0009

N €215:€0 1T7/6/¥ 210

sasuadxy 10,
AepinQ rende) rejo],

saseyond jeude) [eio],
spafoiq [ende) 1oyip
s1eys/egeudis doig sng
rod uonen3ueil], [[3)) [N,
ope1ddn mendwor)
uonIppyAuswaselday uep
uonIppyausase(day sng



1 :98eq UBLIBA 29 198png (ILA/M Hoday qOg AIQIUo
%L LE LLTIT9 00°000°01 £CL8LE £€°€€8 T6°6€T
%000 00000°Z 00°000°C 000 L9991 000
%L08% PLLEV VT 00°000°59% 97°795°€TT 00°0ST1 66¥T
%81°86 LY'TLT 00°000°S1 €CTLTLYI 000ST°1 00°T0S°1
%$6°06 SLT196°] 00000y STREOT €eeee TT’STT
%000 00°005°1 00°00¢°1 000 00°ST1 00°0
%9T°L0T (L0'£9¢%¢) 00°000°S LO€9€°01 L9991 0S°10T°1
%¥8'9 L6¥6T €91 00°000°8LY €0°S0LpIE £E€E8°6¢ LL06TTE
%000 (zr81g) 000 Tr8le 00°0 000
%67°T9 01206 00°000°¢1 06'L60°8 £€°€80°1 ¥9°¢L8
%60°LL 61°SEr's 00°000°C1 18796 11 00°0ST'1 LIy
%E0°L9 9" ¥9Z°9¢ 00°000°011 PSCELEL L999T1°6 L9°810°8
%0729 0816 00°000°S2 0916661 £€°€80°C TL90¢°1
%£6°0T Tr6lIL'sT 00°000°0€ 88°08C°9 00°008°C 00°0ZL
%L8'69 TIvP8°es 00°000°¢8¢ 88°CS1°661 00'0SL°€T 20°720°0¢
%S9°SS (9€°9Z¢°LTET)  00°008°LPCS Y9 ELT0T6T L99IE LEY STOIV'8¢e
%000 00001 000 00001 00°0 000
%0070 LEVER YT 000 LEYEF I 00°0 00°0
%00°0 0€T9¥° €l 00°0 0€T9¥°€IT 000 000
%0€°' 1S (€0°€75°¢55°T) 00°008°L¥C°S L6'9LTT69'T L99IE LEY STOIF'8EE

%G/ QueLe A 108png fe10], Jenoy 198png porag [en1dy poLdg

193png je10]

[20T/1¢/€ YSnoIy L, [20Z/1/€ woig

83 & jualmny)

uaLINY

JUSWANRIS [RIOUBUL ]

LN

PLysIq uonerodsue. I, Ayuno)) yoowei],

0L1S
091¢
0s1S
948
oris
0zis
001¢

€cos
€608
508
1S0¢
0c0¢
1708
oro¢

(1189 4
[cey
LCoy
920y

'L

Wd 1E7S€0 1T/6/4 -a1ed

asuadxy 201350
JouBINSU|

SISUADITY 29 S99,

WY Jomdwo)

U wawdmbg 201730
suonduosqng 2 sang]
SIDJAIAG [BUOISSIJOL]

SOJIAIOG PUE S[BLISIBIN

SODIAIDS [AUUOSISJ [810],
'suj uorresuadwo)) s1ayiopm

BQOA []0IABR]

JuswaInYy [[0lAed
aleoyl[eay [[olhed
asuadxq [jo18eq
10211pu] [JoIKB ]
UoNBLSIUIPY ([[01ke]

SIIIAIDG [OUUOSID]

$92IN0SY [BI10],

JWOSU] JS2I9U|

AIAQD - sjue1n

JAI9SY YMN
ANUAAY YMN

sasuadxyg

S90IN0S9Y



7 98eg DUBLIRA % 198png (LA /% Hoday qOg A[PUop
%L81€ 6£108°TS°T 00°008°L¥TS G.wm@,_mﬁw 9991¢€°LEY PI'L8L6VE
%LY0¢ Tr90$°79¢°T 00°008°69Lp 8S'€6TLOYT €EE8Y LGE LEYGYLIE
%S$$°9C 0L vrEL 00°000°01 0£659°T £E€°EES 86°0¥C
%00°SL 00°00Z°1 00°008°F 00°009°¢ 00°00¥ 00°00%
%lTsh 69°€E161T 00°000°00% 1£998°081 £eeeesee STYISTT
%09°1¢ 00°080°881 00°000°sLT 00'0T6°98 L9916°TT 00°000°02
%LETS 81°6£9°069°1 00°000°055°¢ 78'09€°658°1 geeeeteee SL'TOEOLT
%¢S6'8¢ SPo19 00°000°1 €C68¢ £ee8 €66
%859°¢ 1€°L18Y 00°000°S 69°T81 L991Y 000
%r9'16 91'1LY°T 00°000°0¢ ¥8'82€°81 L9°999°1 [8v¥L
%IIT'tE LT'886 00°005°1 ELTIS 00°sCI 000

%G/ ouBLIR A 198png e10], [enjoy 198png poriag [en10y poriag
108png fel0], Ted & juaLny) juaLny juauny

120T/1€/€ y3noayy, 1z0z/1/€ woig
WRWINNRIS [BIOUBUL]

PLYSIT uonerodsue. I, A3uno)) yooweyi],

00¢€¢
[8¢¢
L9T¢
99¢¢
§9ce
09z¢
0Tes
oIcs
081¢

Wd 1E¥S€0 1T/6/1 -eA

sasuadxy [e10],
SIJIAISS PUB S[BLIDIBIA [B10 ]

asuadxy Sunesod( Auadoiyg
WY 204JO
ASINQUIISY 9SBI[IJA] JDJUNJO A
JuawesInquiiay a8eafI Joquiapy
uornepodsuel ] paseyoing
a8eisoq
Suiurely 7% [dael],
ssuadxy suoydsja],
asuadxy [euoneradoy

3



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 3/1/2021 Through 3/31/2021

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee

16155 3/2/2021 2,008.02 KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC.
16156 3/2/2021 3,600.00 KNOWLEDGE IN MOBILITY
16157 3/2/2021 115.00 North Coast Lawn

16158 3/2/2021 95.17 Office Depot Credit Plan

16158 3/2/2021 54.21 Office Depot Credit Plan

16158 3/2/2021 16.36 Office Depot Credit Plan

16159 3/2/2021 15.22 PETERSON TRUCKS INC

16160 3/2/2021 65.65 PORTLAND GENERAL

16161 3/2/2021 16,259.60 Sheldon Qil Distributors

16162 3/2/2021 75.00 TILLAMOOK PIONEER

16163 3/2/2021 5,576.00 TRILLIUM SOLUTIONS, INC.
16164 3/2/2021 469.29 U.S. TRANSMISSIONS, INC.
16165 3/2/2021 64.87 ULINE

16166 3/2/2021 330.00 ALL CLEAR AUDIO AND GLASS LLC
16166 3/2/2021 296.00 ALL CLEAR AUDIO AND GLASS LLC
16166 3/2/2021 355.00 ALL CLEAR AUDIO AND GLASS LLC
16167 3/2/2021 720.00 CUMMINS NORTHWEST, LLC
16167 3/2/2021 52.37 CUMMINS NORTHWEST, LLC
16168 3/2/2021 269.75 FieetPride, Inc.

16169 3/2/2021 1,318.99 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER
16170 3/2/2021 159.99 MAC TOOLS DISTRIBUTING
16171 3/2/2021 1,618.63 DAVISON AUTO PARTS, INC.
16172 3/2/2021 821.67 PETROCARD INC.

16173 3/2/2021 71.77 Rosenberg Builders Supply
16174 3/2/2021 38.22 Tillamook Motor Co.

16175 3/4/2021 20.00 Batteries Northwest

16176 3/4/2021 39.98 Advance Auto Parts

16177 3/4/2021 850.00 WAVE

16178 3/4/2021 24.00 NEW AGE CAR WASH

16179 3/4/2021 1,221.93 NORTHSIDE FORD

16180 3/8/2021 298.96 ALSCO - Portland Linen

16181 3/8/2021 1,210.00 COUNTRY MEDIA

16181 3/8/2021 63.55 COUNTRY MEDIA

16182 3/8/2021 40.00 CENTURYLINK

16183 3/8/2021 1,154.55 Marie Mills Center, Inc

16183 3/8/2021 44,66 Marie Mills Center, Inc

16183 3/8/2021 22.92 Marie Mills Center, Inc

16184 3/8/2021 98.56 PAUL NORTON

16185 3/8/2021 1,100.00 PORT OF TILLAMOOK BAY
16186 3/8/2021 32.40 TILLAMOOK DIESEL REPAIR
16187 3/8/2021 2,339.21 CARDMEMBER SERVICE

16188 3/16/2021 115.28 CAR CARE SPECIALISTS, INC.
16189 3/16/2021 106.81 COMCAST

16190 3/16/2021 362.69 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES
16191 3/16/2021 106.05 Fred Meyer Customer Charges
16192 3/16/2021 503.40 GenXsys Solutions, LLC

16192 3/16/2021 1,498.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC

16193 3/16/2021 200.00 Kiwanis Clubs of Tillamook
16194 3/16/2021 57.75 Office Depot Credit Plan

16195 3/16/2021 122.84 PACIFIC CITY SUN

16196 3/16/2021 150.00 PC-NEST. VALLEY CHAMBER OF COM
16197 3/16/2021 225.22 Pacific Office Automation

16198 3/16/2021 1,012.50 Prevailing Communications
16199 3/16/2021 100.00 ROBERT R KENNEY

16200 3/16/2021 112.50 TILLAMOOK PIONEER

16200 3/16/2021 80.00 TILLAMOOK PIONEER

16201 3/16/2021 4,236.00 TRILLIUM SOLUTIONS, INC.

Date: 4/7/21 11:53:25 AM

Transaction Description

STIF PLANNING
CONSULTING

FEBRUARY 2021 JANITORIAL
OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

SHIPPING CHARGE
FEBRUARY 2021 ELECTRIC
FEBRUARY 2021 FUEL
MEETING NOTICE

NWOTA WEBSITE

BUS 305 SERVICE

SHOP BAGS

28 WINDSHIELD

300 WINDSHIELD

310 WINDSHIELD
LAPTOP/INSITE RENEWAL
SHOP INVENTORY
FEBRUARY 2021

FEBRUARY 2021 TIRES
RATCHET BIT SET
FEBRUARY 2021 VEHICLE MAINT.
FUEL FEBRUARY 2021

SHOP SUPPLIES

SHOP SUPPLIES

BATTERIES

DEGREASER

FEBRUARY 2021

FEBRUARY 2021 VAN WASHES
FEBRUARY 2021 VEH MAINT.
FEBRUARY 2021

FEBRUARY 2021

FEBRUARY 2021

FEBRUARY 2021

FEBRUARY 2021

FEBRUARY 2021

FEBRUARY 2021

MILEAGE FOR COVID VACCINE
BUS STORAGE

FEBRUARY 2021

FEBRUARY 2021

DEF

MARCH INTERNET SALEM
SHOP INVENTORY

CARD CHARGES

COPMUTER SUPPORT
COMPUTER SUPPORT

KT DAYS ADVERTISING SPONSOR
OFFICE SUPPLIES
ADVERTISING

MEMBERSHIP DUES

COPIER LEASE

BUS RADIOS

CDL PHYSICAL
ADVERTISING

ADVERTISING

NWOTA WEBSITE PROJECT

Page: 1

5



Tillamook County Transportation District

Document Document Transaction
Number Date Amount
16202 3/16/2021 49.95
16203 3/16/2021 394.80
16204 3/26/2021 300.00
16205 3/31/2021 355.00
16206 3/31/2021 8,650.00
16206 3/31/2021 (8,650.00)
16207 3/31/2021 900.00
16207 3/31/2021 1,250.00
16208 3/31/2021 700.00
16209 3/31/2021 106.81
16210 3/31/2021 70.00
16211 3/31/2021 26,700.00
16212 3/31/2021 40.00
16213 3/31/2021 130.13
16214 3/31/2021 50.00
16215 3/31/2021 1,485.00
16216 3/31/2021 50.00
16217 3/31/2021 50.00
16218 3/31/2021 2,248.00
16218 3/31/2021 1,904.00
16219 3/31/2021 50.00
16220 3/31/2021 55.50
16220 3/31/2021 21.00
16220 3/31/2021 191.88
16220 3/31/2021 (55.50)
16220 3/31/2021 (21.00)
16220 3/31/2021 (191.88)
16221 3/31/2021 50.00
16222 3/31/2021 100.00
16223 3/31/2021 4,329.00
16224 3/31/2021 50.00
16225 3/31/2021 50.00
16226 3/31/2021 1,025.00
16227 3/31/2021 58.08
16227 3/31/2021 39.63
16227 3/31/2021 11.00
16227 3/31/2021 (5.75)
16228 3/31/2021 41.25
16229 3/31/2021 141.36
16230 3/31/2021 1,199.09
16231 3/31/2021 100.00
16232 3/31/2021 250.00
16233 3/31/2021 19.50
16233 3/31/2021 30.00
16234 3/31/2021 100.00
16235 3/31/2021 8,650.00
16236 3/31/2021 45.74
16236 3/31/2021 30.75
16237 3/31/2021 205.00
16238 3/31/2021 55.50
16238 3/31/2021 21.00
16239 3/31/2021 191.88
Report Total 105,638.26

Date: 4/7/21 11:53:25 AM

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 3/1/2021 Through 3/31/2021

Payee

VANIR BROADBAND, INC.
VERIZON

Secretary of State

ALL CLEAR AUDIO AND GLASS LLC
BOLDT, CARLISLE & SMITH LLC
BOLDT, CARLISLE & SMITH LLC
Care Inc.

Care Inc.

City Of Tillamook

COMCAST

CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS
ECOLANE USA, INC.
CENTURYLINK

Fred Meyer Customer Charges
Gary A. Hanenkrat

INNOVA LEGAL ADVISORS
JACKIE EDWARDS

JIM HUFFMAN

JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC
JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC
JUDY RIGGS

KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS
KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS
KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS
KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS
KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS
KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS
Linda Adler

MARGARET MOORE

Marie Milis Center, Inc

MARTY HOLM

MELISSA CARLSON-SWANSON
NATHAN LEVIN

Office Depot Credit Plan

Office Depot Credit Plan

Office Depot Credit Plan

Office Depot Credit Plan
Oregon State Police

Pacific Office Automation
PETROCARD INC.

PORT OF TILLAMOOK BAY

R&J MOBILITY SERVICE, LLC
RJ'S LOCK & KEY LLC

RJ'S LOCK & KEY LLC

SCOTT CHILDS

SINGERLEWAK LLP

Tillamook PUD

Tillamook PUD

ZUERCHER PLUMBING

KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS
KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS
MAC TOOLS DISTRIBUTING

Transaction Description

INTERNET

TABLET DATA

2020 AUDIT FILING FEES
304 WINDSHIELD

AUDIT

AUDIT

APRIL 2021

APRIL 2021

APRIL 2021

APRIL 2021

WATER

ECOLANE IVR

MARCH 2021

MARCH 2021- office supply
BOARD MEETING 03/18/21
LEGAL

BOARD MEETING 03/18/21
BOARD MEETING 03/18/21
LEGAL/COVID/NW RIDES
LEGAL

BOARD MEETING 03/18/21
SHOP TOOLS

SHOP TOOLS

SHOP TOOLS

SHOP TOOLS

SHOP TOOLS

SHOP TOOLS

BOARD MEETING 03/18/21
CDL PHYSICAL

APRIL 2021

BOARD MEETING 03/18/21
BOARD MEETING 03/18/21
APRIL LEASE

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

CREDIT

BACKGROUND CHECKS
TCTD COPIES

FUEL MARCH 2021

BUS STORAGE

BUS 18 LIFT REPAIR
TRANSIT CENTER KEYS
TRANSIT CENTER KEYS
CDL PHYSICAL

AUDIT

LARGE BUS BARN

SMALL BUS BARN

SHOP SINK REPAIR

SHOP TOOLS

SHOP TOOLS

SHOP TOOLS

Page: 2



Document

Number

5622
5623
5624

5625
5626

Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1006 - Payroll Checking
From 3/1/2021 Through 3/31/2021

Document
Date Payee
3/8/2021 LEONARD STITT
3/12/2021 HRA VEBA TRUST
3/12/2021 SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS.
SERVICE

3/12/2021 PACIFIC SOURCE
3/26/2021  TOMMIE HUFFMAN

Date: 4/7/21 11:53:32 AM

Page: 1



Document Document Transaction
Number Date Amount

2941 3/2/2021 9,964.86
2942 3/2/2021 100.00
2943 3/4/2021 662.99
2944 3/4/2021 636.91
2946 3/8/2021 146.72
2947 3/8/2021 2,462.72
2948 3/8/2021 2,505.68
2949 3/8/2021 2,599.52
2950 3/8/2021 270.00
2951 3/8/2021 3,070.84
2952 3/8/2021 3,685.12
2953 3/8/2021 2,773.65
2954 3/8/2021 51.01
2955 3/8/2021 766.08
2956 3/16/2021 29.55
2957 3/16/2021 1,502.00
2958 3/16/2021 225.22
2959 3/16/2021 11,454.27
2960 3/29/2021 2,150.12
2960 3/29/2021 2,160.08
2960 3/29/2021 2,360.32
2961 3/29/2021 4,540.00
2962 3/29/2021 5,843.75
2962 3/29/2021 5,329.00
2962 3/29/2021 5,540.75
2962 3/29/2021 5,230.00
2962 3/29/2021 5,934.75
2963 3/29/2021 4,070.00
2963 3/29/2021 4,303.35
2963 3/29/2021 5,977.95
2963 3/29/2021 5,338.30
2963 3/29/2021 3,941.20
2963 3/29/2021 4,873.00
2963 3/29/2021 4,345.35
2964 3/29/2021 6,704.00
2964 3/29/2021 6,155.00
2964 3/29/2021 7,849.00
2964 3/29/2021 5,545.00
2965 3/29/2021 6,143.62
2967 3/29/2021 12,823.38
2967 3/29/2021 13,173.41
2967 3/29/2021 11,989.06
2967 3/29/2021 11,978.78
2967 3/29/2021 11,112.28
2968 3/29/2021 740.00
2968 3/29/2021 700.00
2968 3/29/2021 1,132.00
2968 3/29/2021 1,586.00
2968 3/29/2021 1,843.00
2968 3/29/2021 1,466.00
2968 3/29/2021 1,127.00
2968 3/29/2021 1,401.00
2969 3/29/2021 11,370.25
2970 3/29/2021 10,322.50
2971 3/29/2021 9,924.75
2972 3/29/2021 8,857.75
2973 3/29/2021 10,241.50

Date: 4/7/21 11:53:39 AM

Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT
From 3/1/2021 Through 3/31/2021

Payee

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST.
North Coast Lawn

WAVE

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST.
ALFREDO EVANGELISTA

JANNA SMITH

JOHN REKART JR

KANDIS LIDAY

LEANN CHUINARD

SEAN REKART

VAL HOLYOAK

WILLIAM NERENBERG
CENTURYLINK

CARDMEMBER SERVICE

Fred Meyer Customer Charges
GenXsys Solutions, LLC

Pacific Office Automation
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST.
AAA RIDE ASSIST

AAA RIDE ASSIST

AAA RIDE ASSIST

COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER
COLUMBIA MEDICAL

COLUMBIA MEDICAL

COLUMBIA MEDICAL

COLUMBIA MEDICAL

COLUMBIA MEDICAL

K & M MEDIVAN

K & M MEDIVAN

K & M MEDIVAN

K & M MEDIVAN

K & M MEDIVAN

K & M MEDIVAN

K & M MEDIVAN

MEDIX AMBUIANCE

MEDIX AMBULANCE

MEDIX AMBULANCE

MEDIX AMBULANCE

METRO WEST

RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST.
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST.
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST.
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST.
WAPATO SHORES

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT

Transaction Description

FEB BENEFITS 2021
FEBRUARY 2021 JANITORIAL
FEBRUARY 2021

FEBRUARY 2021 RENT/UTILITY
VOLUNTEERS

VOLUNTEERS

VOLUNTEERS

VOLUNTEERS

VOLUNTEERS

VOLUNTEERS

VOLUNTEERS

VOLUNTEERS

FEBRUARY 2021

FEBRUARY 2021

CARD CHARGES

COMPUTER SUPPORT
COPIER LEASE

NWR PR 03.12.21 PLUS INDIRECT

PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
JANUARY BUS PASS
FEBRUARY BUS PASS
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION

Page: 1

|



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT
From 3/1/2021 Through 3/31/2021

Document Document Transaction

Number Amount Payee

2973 3/29/2021 8,931.50 WAPATO SHORES

2973 3/29/2021 9,491.00 WAPATO SHORES

2973 3/29/2021 11,615.25 WAPATO SHORES

2973 3/29/2021 8,820.25 WAPATO SHORES

2974 3/29/2021 3,442.80 WILLAMETTE VALLEY TRANSPORT
2975 3/29/2021 1,968.75 MTN RETREAT SECURE TRANSPORT
2977 3/31/2021 83.98 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS
2978 3/31/2021 51.05 CENTURYLINK

2979 3/31/2021 555.50 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC
2979 3/31/2021 646.00 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC
2980 3/31/2021 155.94 Pacific Office Automation

Report Total 314,792.36

Date: 4/7/21 11:53:39 AM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT

Transaction Description

PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
WATER

MARCH 2021
LEGAL/COVID/NW RIDES
NWR LEGAL

NWR COPIES

Page: 2

3



Tillamook County Transportation District

Document Document Transaction
Number Date Amount

4378 3/2/2021 600.00
4379 3/2/2021 812.75
4380 3/2/2021 325.00
4381 3/2/2021 13,155.22
4382 3/2/2021 464.84
4383 3/2/2021 124.06
4384 3/4/2021 167.95
4385 3/8/2021 464.82
4386 3/8/2021 2,600.00
4387 3/31/2021 2,579.04
Report Total 21,293.68

Date: 4/7/21 11:53:47 AM

Check/Voucher Register
1011 - Prop. Mgmt. Checking
From 3/1/2021 Through 3/31/2021

Payee

CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE
JNB MECHANICAL, INC.

North Coast Lawn

Oregon Department of Transport
TILLAMOOK CITY UTILITIES
Rosenberg Builders Supply

CITY SANITARY SERVICE

Marie Mills Center, Inc

TONY'S STRIPING & SEALCOATING
Tillamook PUD

Transaction Description

FEBRUARY 2021-JANITORIAL
FEBRUARY 2021-HVAC

FEBRUARY 2021 JANITORIAL
OTIB LOAN PAYMENT

WATER & SEWER

SHOP SUPPLIES

FEBRUARY 2021 GARBAGE
FEBRUARY 2021

NON SLIP WALKWAY IN BUS BARM
ELECTRIC AND LOAN

Page: 1

9



|FRED MEYER CARD CHARGES

April Board Packet (March Financials)

Date Vendor Description of Transaction Amount
TABATHA CARD #5
03/04/21 KITCHEN SUPPLIES/MEETINGS $110.14
3 -
$110.14
BRENT OLSON CARD #3
03/03/21 OFFICE SUPPLIES/DISPATCH $ 19.99
$ 19.99
CATHY BOND CARD #4
CLAYTON NORRBOM CARD # 6
$ -
$ -
$ -
Grand Total| $130.13
-
DATE “$-9.21 APPROVAL (@/

20



Date :Vgndor

02/24/21 |FRED MEYER

03/01/21 FACEBOOK )
| 03/01/21 RODEO STEAKHOUSE
03/01/21 VIRTUAL POSTMAIL
03/04/21 FACEBOOK

02/24/21 ADOBE CLOUD
02/25/21 [IRON MOUNTAIN
03/01/21 |LANGUAGE LINE
03/03/21 ENDICIA -
03/08/21 ADOBE ACROPRO
03/24/21 ADOBE CLOUD

02/24/21 ODOT
02/24/21 ODOT -
03/01/21 ‘ PACIFIC RESTAURANT

03/04/21 ENDICIA -
103/09/21 CRESCENT STATION
03/16/21 |ENDICIA

03/17/21 AMAZON.COM
03/22/21 PACIFIC RESTAURANT
103/24/21 FRED MEYER

03/08/21 POPEYES
03/08/21 DAIRY QUEEN
| 03/15121 TACO BELL
03/22/21 CARLS JR

'STATEMENT TRUE UP

'UMPQUA BANK: CLOSING DATE 2/23/2021
'Description of Transaction

DOUG PILANT
EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION '$
'ADVERTISING _ ' $
'MEALS/EMPLOYEE MEETING E
[POSTAGE E
|ADVERTISING $
$

CATHY BOND
'ADOBE SOFTWARE '$
|PAPER SHREDDING BE
'NWR TELEPHONE E
NWR POSTAGE B ' $
'ADOBE SOFTWARE B '$
/ADOBE SOFTWARE ) $
I

$

BRENT OLSON ]
'VEHICLE REGISTRATION ) E
'VEHICLE REGISTRATION ) '$
'MEALS/MEETING/ECOLANE K
= R

TABATHA WELCH )

[POSTAGE B 3
MEALS/MEETING - B s
POSTAGE B o IR
'MEMBERSHIP - K
'MEALS/BOARD MEETING B R
|OFFICE SUPPLIES $

' $
| _ CLAYTON NORRBOM 1
MEALS/BUS SHUTTLE - E
'MEALS/NORTH SHELTER ) $
'MEALS/LINCOLN CITY ) S
'MEALS/BUS SHUTTLE ) R

Charges total| $

Grand Total $

A\PPROVAL (37

DATE H-9- 24

Amount

27.83
1.28

51.98

25.00
8.41

114.50

79.99
103.10 |
23.70
19.95
24.99
79.99

18.98
17.98
14.48
31.74

83.18

1,622.18

1,622.18




£l umpaua BANK

March 2021 Statement
e Open Date: 02/24/2021 Closing Date: 03/24/2021
st A
742 \fisa® Company Card with Rewards
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460)

w Ba

2ayment Due Date

Reward Points

Earned This Statement 1,915

Reward Center Balance 77,404
as of 03/23/2021

For details, see your rewards summary.

Payment Options: >, | with a check

UMPQUA BANK

24-Hour Cardmember Service:; 1-866-552-8355

=1 Mail payment coupon

Page 1 of 4
Account; . - .. 7790
Cardmember Service [ 1-866-552-8855
BUS 30 ELN 8 k 15
Activity Summary
Previous Balance + $3,105.28
Payments - $3,105.29c¢cr
Other Credits $0.00
Purchases o $1,622.18
Balance Transfers $0.00
Advances $0.00
Other Debits $0.00
Fees Charged $0.00
Interest Charged $0.00
New Balance = $1,622.17
Past Due $0.00
Minimum Payment Due $17.00
Credit Line $10,000.00
Available Credit $8,377.83
Days in Billing Period 29
Pay online at

“‘ Pay by phone
L

\\::;J myaceountaccess.cam 1-866-552-8855
Please detach and send coupon with check payable to: Cardmember Service CPN 001463460
004798510053507790000001 7000001622176
Account Number 17790
Payment Due Date 4/22/2021
New Balance $1,622.17
Minimum Payment Due $17.00

c . to pay by phone
. to change your address

000032085 01 SP 000638768671534 P Y

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

3600 3RD ST STE A
TILLAMOOK OR 97141-2730

Amount Enclosed $

Cardmember Service

P.O. Box 790408
St. Louis, MO 63179-0408

IIIIIllllllllllllllll'IIl‘IIIIlI“IIllllI'llllllllll‘lll"lllllll

3



Kl UMPQUA BANK

March 2021 Statement 02/24/2021 - 03/24/2021 Page 20f 4

e TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service g: 1-866-552-8855

a Business Rewards Company Card =~

Rewards Center Activity as of 03/23/2021
Rewards Center Activity* 0
Rewards Center Balance 77,404

*This item includes points redeemed, expired and adjusted.

This Year
Rewards Earned Statement to Date
Points Earned on Net Purchases 1,331 7,926
GGas, Restaurants & Telecom Double Points 584 991
[ Total Earned 1,915 8,917

For rewards program inquiries and redemptions, call 1-888-229-8864 from 8:00 am to 10:00 pm (CST)
Monday through Friday, 8:00 am to 5:30 pm (CST) Saturday and Sunday. Automated account information is
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Paying Interest: You have a 24 to 30 day interest-free period for Purchases provided you have paid your
previous balance in full by the Payment Due Date shown on your monthly Account statement. In order to
avoid additional INTEREST CHARGES on Purchases, you must pay your new balance in full by the
Payment Due Date shown on the front of your monthly Account statement.

There is no interest-free period for transactions that post to the Account as Advances or Balance Transfers
except as provided in any Offer Materials. Those transactions are subject to interest from the date they post
to the Account until the date they are paid in full.

Speed through checkout while earning rewards with PayPal. Go to the Mobile App or manage your account
onfine. Link your card to PayPal today.

We have added Mobile Authentication and Cellular Phane Contact Policy to
and made changes to the Arbitration Agreement in your account agreement.
Please visit card. myaccountaccess.com/agreementchanges to review.

If you have any questions, call the number on the back of your card.

Transactions PILANT,DOUGLAS Credit Limit $5000

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

B Purchases and Other Debits

02/24 02/22 6153 FRED-MEYER #0377 TILLAMOOK ©OR $27.83

03/01 02/28 7342 FACEBK QS938YZ62V2  650-5434800 CA $1.28

03/01 02/25 1782 RODEO STEAK HOUSE - TI TILLAMOOK ©OR $51.98

03/01 02/27 1111 VIRTUALPOSTMAIL.COM ©09-235-6245 CA $25.00

03/04 03/03 7455 FACEBK X67DL2PPR2  650-5434800 CA $8.41

Total for Accoun 308 $114.50

Transactions BOND, CATHY Credit Limit $2500

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

_ Purchases and Other Debits

Continued on Next Page 2 3



March 2021 Statement
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469480)

3 umpPQUA BANK

02/24/2021 - 03/24/2021

" L]
Cardmember Service (.

Page 3 of 4

1-866-552-8855

Transactions

Post
Date

02/24
02/25
03/01
03/03
03/08
03/24

Trans
Date

02/23
02/24
02/27
03/02
03/05
03723

BOND,CATHY

Ref# Transaction Description

9963 ADOBE CREATIVE CLOUD 800-443-8158 CA

7108 IRON MQUNTAIN 800-934-3453 MA

2013 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7528096 CA

2744 ENDICIA 800-576-3279 CA

4916 ADOBE ACROPRO SUBS  408-536-6000 CA

5420 ADOBE CREATIVE CLOUD 800-443-8158 CA
Total for Account 022

Credit Limit $2500

Amount
$79.99
$103.10
$23.70
39.85
$24.99
$79.99
$321.72

Notation

Transactions

Post
Date

03/04
03/08
03/16
03/17
03/22
0324

Trans
Date

03/03
03/08
03/15
03/17
03/18
03/23

WELCH, TABATHA

Ref# Transaction Description

Purchases and Other Debits
1228 USPS STAMPS ENDICIA  888-434-0055 DC
4112 IN*CRESCENT STATION TILLAMOOK OR
6446 ENDICIA 800-576-3279 CA
4701  Amazon Prime*B55Z16B33 Amzn.com/bill WA
0280 PACIFIC RESTAURANT TILLAMOCK OR
9043 FRED-MEYER #0377 TILLAMQOK OR

Total for Account 146

Credit Limit $2500

Amount

$100.00
$40.20
$24.99
$12.99
$73.16
$30.78
$282.12

Notation

Post
Date

02/24
02/24
03/01

02722
02/26

s OLSONBRENT

02/22

Ref # Transaction Description

. Purchases and Other Debifs

5985 ODOT DMV 503 945 5000 SALEM OR

6645 ODOT DMV 503 945 5000 SALEM OR
0031 PACIFICRESTAURANT TILLAMOOK OR
Total for Account 1649

Amount

$382.50
$394.50

$43.66
$820.66

MNotation

Transactions

Post
Date

03/08
03/12
03/15
03/22

Trans
Date

03/05
03/11
03/12
03/18

NORRBOM CLAYTON

Ref# Transaction Description
Purchases and Other Debits

0280 POPEYES 12713 SALEM OR
0203 DAIRY QUEEN 17442 GARIBALDI OR
4427 TACOQBELL #29729  LINCOLN CITY OR

0658 CARLS JR RESTAURANTS 8 KEIZER OR
Total for Account 8675

Continued on Next Page

Credit Limit $2500

Amount

$18.98
$17.98
$14.48
$31.74
$83.18

Notation

iy



| UMPQUA BANK

March 2021 Statement 02/24/2021 - 03/24/2021 Page 4 of 4

sz TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service {  1.866-552-8855

s

Transactions  BILLING ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

e z - Payments and Other Credits ek _
03/10 03/10 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU $766.08cr
03/10 03/10 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU $2,339.21cr

Total for Account 4798 5100 5350 7790 $3,105.29cr

2021 Totals Yearto-Date

Total Fees Charged in 2021 $0.00
Total Interest Charged in 2021 $0.00

Interest Charge Calculation

Your Annual Percentage Rate (APR) is the annual interest rate on your account.

**APR for current and future transactions,

Balance Annual Expires
Balance Subject to Interest Percentage with
Balance Type By Type Interest Rate Variable Charge Rate Statement
**BALANCE TRANSFER $0.00 $0.00 YES $0.00 12.24%
**PURCHASES $1,622.17 $0.00 YES $0 00 12.24%
*ADVANCES $0.00 $0.00 YES $0.00 23 99%

ContactUs.
c Phone (\?) Questions Mail payment coupon “\i; Online
- with a check ~=
Voice:  1-866-552-8855 Cardmember Service Cardmember Service myaccountaccess.com
TOD. 1-888-352-68455 P.O Box 6353 P.O. Box 790408
Fax: 1-866-807-3053 Fargo, ND 58125-6353 St. Louis, MO 63179-0408

End of Statement

E TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS

PayPal

Link your credit card
to PayPal today!!!

Earn rewards while you shop the millions of sites that accept PayPal.
Experience faster checkouts, added security and convenience.
It's all there for you when you link your card to PayPal.

Link your card in the Mobile App or online taday.

Recent updates to your account may impact your eligibility to enroll in PayPal. Account must be open and in good standing to earn and redeem rewards
?nqt bteneﬁts. Rl’ewards are based ori eligible net purchases (purchases minus credits and returns)  Not all trafisactions are eligible to earnrewards,
imitations apply.

See your Cal?‘;c)!r\r/)ember Agreement for details,

29



Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT MAR 2021
RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE MAR MAR YTD YTD YTD %

2021 2020 FY 20-21  FY 19-20 Change
Dial-A-Ride Service
Tillamook County 905 805 7,312 9,258 -21.0%
NW Rides 604 492 4,246 6,400 -33.7%
Diai-A-Ride Total 1,509 1,297 11,558 15,658 -26.2%
Deviated Fixed Route Service
Rt 1: Town Loop 2,912 3,003 24,058 33,178 -27.5%
Rt 2: Netarts/Oceanside 575 684 4,174 6,250 -33.2%
Rt 3: Manzanita/Cannon Beach 2,075 2,342 17,417 26,480 -34.2%
Rt 4: Lincoln City 841 1,101 7,083 12,765 -44.5%
Local Fixed Rt Total 6,403 7,220 52,732 78,673 -33.0%
Intercity Service
Rt 5: Portland 429 457 3,901 7,169 -45.6%
Rt 60X: Salem 767 601 5,261 8,540 -38.4%
Rt 70X: Grand Ronde 301 293 2,467 3,906 -36.8%
Inter City Total 1,497 1,351 11,629 19,615 -40.7%
Other Services
Tripper Routes 44 69 352 951 -63.0%
Special Bus Operations 0 0 516 1,327 -61.1%
Other Services Total 44 69 868 2,278 -61.9%
TOTAL ALL SERVICES 9,453 9,937 76,787 116,224 -33.9%
ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %
USER GROUP Route DAR FY 20-21 [ FY 19-20 | Change
General (18 years to 60 years of age) 4,713 241 40,829 62,708 -34.9%
Senior/Disabled 2,601 1,207 30,797 45,157 -31.8%
Child/Youth (less than 18 years of age) 629 60 5,161 8,359 -38.3%
Total 7,944 1,509 76,787 116,224 -33.9%
OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 20-21 | FY 19-20 Change |
Ride Connection 64| 537 741 -27.5%
Tillamook Bay Community College 166 1,235 1,983 -37.7%
NWOTA Visitor Pass 64| 627 1,179 -46.8%
NW Rides 538 3,816 5,757 -33.7%
Helping Hands Shuttle 29 350 1,267 -72.4%

2ilp

4/12/2021

03-21 RIDERSHIP REPORT.xIsx



Tillamook County Transportation District Mar 2021

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE

Operating
Service Passengers Farebox Cost
Month per Hour Ratio per Hour
Dial-A-Ride Services
Mar-20 1.6 53.4% 77.23
Dec-20 1.5 47.4% 87.88
Jan-21 1.5 50.9% 86.63
Feb-21 1.5 50.9% 86.63
Mar-21 1.5 53.1% 84.22
STANDARD 1.3 65.3% 56.36 B
Deviated Fixed Routes
Mar-20 5.9 8.1% 76.81
Dec-20 3.9 4.6% 88.26
Jan-21 3.9 4.5% 88.60
Feb-21 3.9 4.6% 87.16
Mar-21 3.9 5.3% 84.64
STANDARD 7.0 12.4% 64.60
Intercity Services
Mar-20 29 16.4% 86.80
Dec-20 1.7 8.6% 100.43
Jan-21 1.7 8.3% 102.56
Feb-21 1.7 8.4% 99.36
Mar-21 1.7 8.7% 97.68
STANDARD 2.9 31.5% 72.86
Other Services
Mar-20 5.4 9.6% 67.05
Dec-20 2.6 0.7% 77.66
Jan-21 2.7 0.9% 75.91
Feb-21 2.7 1.1% 74.49
Mar-21 2.7 1.5% 72.59
STANDARD 6.9 10.7% 67.00

Dial-a-Ride includes Central, North and South Counties Dial-A-Ride Services

Deviated Fixed Routes: 1 Town Loop, 2 Oceanside, 3 Manzanita/Cannon Beach, 4 Lincoln City
Intercity Routes: 5 Portland, 60X Coastal Connector, 70X Salem/Grand Ronde

Other Services: Trippers and Special Bus Operations

21



Tillamook County Transportation District Winter Quarter
FY 2020-2021

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE
Operating Cost
Service Passengers Farebox Cost per
Quarter per Hour Ratio per Hour Passenger

Dial-A-Ride Services

Winter - 20 1.6 53.4% 77.23 48.52
Spring - 20 1.6 53.5% 78.13 49.99
Summer -20 15 40.7% 85.48 56.33
Fall - 20 1.5 44.9% 87.54 57.57
Winter - 21 1.5 53.1% 84.22 55.13
STANDARD 1.3 65.3% 56.36 45.19

Deviated Fixed Route Services

Winter - 20 5.9 8.1% 76.81 12.99
Spring - 20 5.3 7.2% 77.65 14.74
Summer -20 4.1 5.2% 86.13 20.96
Fall - 20 3.9 4.6% 88.26 22.43
Winter - 21 3.9 5.3% 84.64 21.43
STANDARD 7.0 12.4% 64.60 9.29

Intercity Services

Winter - 20 29 16.4% 86.80 29.44
Spring - 20 2:5 13.4% 90.07 36.55
Summer -20 1.8 9.8% 96.77 54.35
Fall - 20 1.7 8.6% 100.43 58.29
Winter - 21 1.7 8.7% 97.68 56.02
STANDARD 2.9 31.5% 72.86 24.86

Other Services

Winter - 20 5.4 9.6% 67.05 12.32
Spring - 20 48 7.8% 67.68 14.11
Summer -20 2.4 0.2% 77.05 32.18
Fall - 20 26 0.7% 77.66 29.76
Winter - 21 2.7 1.5% 72.59 27.05
STANDARD 6.9 10.7% 55.54 828 |

29

4/12/2021
TCTD MIS Report 2020-21_03.21 .xIsx



24

| abed %¢C 6¢ Zp0'068°L 150D 198u1(] 3 JoqeT ‘ebes|y |10
Le9l €69 v0°0 %981 SLT 0S°.8 966°LhP'T [V56'1SS  EVP'8L 20S60E’L  160°20S LLOLWL  66S°€E 606°LC 181°9L 962'SSY S9DIAleS 0L1IL 1Bj0L
LT Lyo $0°0 %S"1 4 65°CL 8.¥'€C 9ve’S 606 656’V v92'C Lve'e vy £ce 898 85¢ S82IAI8S 18I0 fel0 )
000 00°0 €00 %00 e 28Cs 992'91L y0.'€ 0e9 y/£'0L 856’1 66¢'C gee yee 9Lg 0 uoneiadQ sng [eedg
19¢ 2oL S0°0 %0°S 9¢ V.2 Le's [AL N 6.2 jeteiend 902 Lol (444 66 zse 85¢ sieddu |
EERINESPEDe)
9¥'8 S8'v 200 %718 L'} 89°26 LPP'LG9  |PLLPRL ShL'8L 681°/L¢E 66€L91 00c'8ee €482 699'9 629°L1L 8iv'9S RyoIeuf [ejo L
29T 69t z00 %82 9l 98°96 004’161 [LSG'EE 0v'y 1€8'9/ 016°9¢ €LV'vS 196°) 995'L L9v°T L'y 9pusy puels) X0.L
z€'9 v6'C 200 %C'9 (4 L4710l ye8'eve  |G2L'GS 8/8'9 850°0ct L€8'99 £€9'86 900°¢ Lyp'T 192°s 09v'GL wajes X9
S8'El £v'6 200 %LV Sl Ibve $58'06Z  |8E¥'SS Gov'/L £62°0¢1 869'/S 76068 0062 959'C L06'E £82'0¢ puejuod S0
AiB18u]
[3=n4 il S0°0 %E'S 6°¢ 7918 968°6¢)') |29¢e°LGC  €25'LE 9EY'LL9 9/6'/1¢ 80L°'LzE  t0S'GL EEE zeL'es S€C'09 3Inoy pejelreQ [ejo L
80V 8L €00 %V ¥ 44 1626 ce0'v6C  |126°99 688'8 €L2°97L 688°LL 160901  8vl'C €91 €80°L £06°C) Ay uoauIT 0
S8'v 8c’L 700 %9°G St 0€°98 ovg'ozy |veZ'le z06°clL 05.'82e 796'98 ave'szl  0gr's 9v6y AR A" £86'€C ejuezuely 0
89¢C 9L’} €00 %C'e €C /828 66L'671  |0ZLYE 180'G G09'c8 £66'9¢ 2£8'6€ YeV'Z 808°L viL'Y Tre'y apIsueadQ/speleN 20
6€°'9 1270 0L'o %l L 0z 0552 GEZ'6GT  [Lv0'6S 1696 £08'851 0€L’LE 628'9F 206'¢ YeEV'E 850've £0G°81 dooqumoy LQ
3|noy paensq
(WA 44 12'6¢ v0'0 %1°€S S [4a%] G.1'/€9  [ecl’syL §9Z°Le 8166 658°0CL 69€'8.L  9.1'6 999°2 85S°LL G8Z'8Ee dvaielol
£8'69 eLesL S0°0 %008 0l 12°/8 670’88 |98£'88 86v'ClL 8¥9'G0C ¥LS'L8 €0e'0cL  €28's Lvv'y vy Los'ole Sepid MN
168 08¢ €00 %C L1 €C 9862 gzi'eve  |SPL'9S 89.'8 0L2'v¥L vre‘6e 990'8S £66°C BLL'E ZLe’L v8.L'LT apid-y-1eig
SVIAISS BpIY-v-IBIg
($) JnoH (g)s1s00  sI80D san SINOH ($) uny/enoy
s B v xomons apemsed tmon | eer” | o San | Poved pose | eowes MM cowes | SR anuanay
Jenusaay : : AlinoH abeay alA ” aLi aled gLA
LC0C/0VY 120z ey ny1

92UBWIOHS PUB S21)SI}R)S 9)e(]-0}-1edA

1202/0202 Ad lenoy
101381 uoneuodsuel] AJunoq yoowej|iL




z abegq

%eT €2Z1°6S 966°LYY'T €.8°98€°C %9°L- |LOEC- 606°LC oLz'oe %6'€e- |Lev'6E- 181'9L peeoLL  |%E'Ce- 186'0€L- 962'sSP  Z8Z'98S $90IAI9G 01O Iej0L
%y 9L-  |968P- 8LY'€C ¥20'82 %8CC- |96~ €2¢ 6Ly %6°L9- [0Ly'L- 898 812 %.°98- |0€€'Z- 8G¢ 889°C S80IAISG JBYJO [BjOL
%eTL- [182°C 99z2'91L BEED %8 LE- |6b- vee €l %L 19 [LIB- 9LS 128 %0°00L- |0¥0'C- 0 ov0'c uonesadQ sng [eloadg
%Eve-  |Sle‘e- [REAVA 125’6 %0Ce  [Ly- 66 148 %0'€9- |66G- 4% 156 %8vy- 062 85¢ 8r9 s1addy |
S8JIAI8S 18yi0
%8CL [1G0'VL LPP'LS9 96€°LLS %Ee0 |11 699'9 259'9 %L 0~ |986°L- 629°L1L G19'61 %P 0p- |9L€'8€E- 8Ly'9S YEL'v6 Ayoley ejo L
%SG 0L |SSP'vL 004°LSL  gvZ'lEl %lL'C |ee- 995°L 66G°L %8'9¢-  |6EP L- L9v°C 906 %0'G2- |p6e’L- S/l'y 695°G apuoy puel9 X0L
%9'€L |2LL'6T 68'8bC  ZZl'6lZ %L oy vy’ L0V %y'8e-  |6le'E- 192's ovs'e %L'2e- |6LEL- 09v'slL 62.'T2 waleg X09
%G'cL  |vZ8'6T ¥58°062  0£0°Lze %¥'0 |0 989'z 99’z %9'Sh-  [892'¢- L06'¢ 691" %9 vP-  |€09°62- €8/'9¢ 98€°99 puejuod S0
ATTeIU|
%90l |082'80L 968'6cl’L LL9'L2O'L %v0 |09 oseel Log'eL %0°¢e-  |Ly6'Se- z€L'TS €19'8L %€°L2- |099°Ce- G€2'09 56828 9N0Y paxi4 [ed07 [BJO L
%001 |0¥8'9¢ 2c0'v6e €81L°29¢ %v0 |CL €9l'e LSL'e %S vP-  |289°G £80°L G921 %8€E-  |96G'9- €062l 66161 A4 ujoour 0
%G 0L 2890t 0v8'9Zy  €51°98¢ %y'0 |8l 9v6'y 826t %Z¥E- |€90'6- LIV 08t'92 %E6¢- |L56'6- £86'cC 0v6'ee Blluezuei €0
%L0L  |viv'vL 66.'6VL  ¥ZESEL %0 |L 808'tL L08°L %Z€e- 19202 vLL'Y 05z'9 %162 |266'L- P8y €89 apisuead/sHeIeN Z0
%ELL 62292 Gez'6Sc  1S6°2eT %¥'0 |Eh YEY'E Lev'e %G'L2- |0CL'6- 850'7C 8.L'ce % 8L~ |ShL'p- £0§'8L 2292z doojumoy Lo
8In0y peleiAsq
%L 9L~ |LL9gZl- SGZL'ZE9  987'6G1 %L €2- |€l2c 995°L 6£8'6 %c'9¢- |00L'% 8GS°LL 8G9'GL %L 9L- [189°29- G8Z'8EE  G96'GOP dvQa ol
%8'€C- |09¢°LZl- 6¥0'88E 60V '60S %6'6¢- |668'L- VAl 9v€'9 %L°€e- |¥SLC- 'y 00v'9 %L'8L- [002'89- L0S'0LE  002'6.L€ S9pPRd MIN
%S0~ LGZ'L- 9zL'6vz  L/£'062 %L0L- |PLE- BLLE £6V'c %0°L2- |9¥6'L- ZLe'L 852’6 %g€ |6L0°) ¥8.°L2 69/'92 opiy-v-eia
NINIBS 3piY-V-Ield
asualayig | soustayq 1500 (2101 1507 (10 2oualayig | eousselq  SInoH SINOH | 9ousleyiq | eoualayiq sibussey  siBussed souaIsyi] | dousISid SNUBASY  BNUBAdY uny/anoy

JusoIad junowy JUERIER] unowy 90IM8S aoIneg Ju92I8d junowy JUEDIER] Junowy a1e aue

Le/0e 0c/61 Le/0c oc/eL Le/oc 0c/e6l 12/0¢ 0z/6l

20z e niytL

uosiiedwon JB3A-I9AQ-JBIA

1202 1B\ NIy L

L¢0c¢ fey niyL

Lc0c tey niyL

LZ/0C Ad 01 02/6LAd

1o1s1g uoneuodsuel ] Ajunod yoouwe|fi




o)

%071~ (0ze'ee) €65'€9€'C  €/8'98€C SIS0 [ej0L
LG $ %00l 40.d snid = $IS0D) pesytsA0
L6°LS $ ajey Aunoy Yyoeod %0 7L cTl'le 56°1L5S €ET'v8Y S§s0D 108410
%2 62 pesyseaQ snid sng |lews %0y (G62'%5) C0S'60E'L  862'V9E’L S)s0)) paseg AUnoH
ggor  §$ ajey Aunoy uBAILIN %19~ (ovz'og) 260'20G £VE'8eS $1800) poseg abeajn
%Z'E S}s0Q Joaug snid Wold peEdyYISAD [enoy %08~ (910'49) L10'LpL €£0'608 abesyy
16'8¢E $ ajey Alnoy |enjoy %g'Sh souslaylq  8|ouslayig 1202 0z/61 uonduosaq
:uone|InNdle) ajey AnNoH %01 snid snid ‘uolje|najes sjiw Jad 3s0n eoied  junowy 12/0Z Ad 01 0Z/6LAd
1509 uone|najeg uoneladQ sng je1oadg 1202 Jew ybnosy)l grA uosuedwo)
¢ abed
HG L1 880 €6'G v0e %l Ve | %66 %981 %9V %S '8¢ Lb- 8'C 8'c %10L 618 0548 1064 SIVIAIBS JBUIO [BIOL
%099~ |LL70- (3 4] 8L %178~ %08 %S %96 %1708 8¢ LT 14 %8 ¥58°G 65°2L S0°29 S8JIAIBG JBYIQ [BloL
%0001 |PSL- 000 vl %0001 |%0LL- %00 %0711 %l'2G- 9e- £¢C 6% %49 95’y (AR 9629 uoijesadQ sng [e12adg
%E 6¥ YE'0 20l 890 %022 |%8'L- %06 %89 %9 G- oe 9t g9 %ELL [ vzl YE'S9 ssaddu |
SSOIAIBS 1BUIO
%S0 c0'0 S8y €8’y %l Ly |YLl'L- %L'8 %¥ 9l %60t~ c'L- L'l 6¢ %S¢l 880l 89'/6 08'98 Aoy g0
%l'81 120 8691 EVL %T e |%E'L- %8c %Ly %G'GE- 60" 9'L ve %8C €0’ 98'96 €868 9puUoy pues X0L
%c 0L 120 62 19C %OV | % %C'9 %¥ 0L %V 6€- vl L'z G'e %L'b1 89°0L LL'10L £0°L6 wajesg X09
%8} PA ] [A4] 926 %C LS %P 'SL- %LVl %0°0€ %8G~ Z'L- el LT %€l 2601 or'v6 £5'€8 PUBHOd S0
Ryaisyay
Fo¥'8 600 vl SO0 WEVE-  |%8T- %t %18 %C EE- (FAd 6'¢ 6'S %2 0L €871 ¥9'v8 18'9L N0y pajelreq (ejof
YEBL 620 A NS €51 %B6'6E- | %BC- %V'y %t'L Yol Y- g1 cc L'y %96 FAR:] 1626 08’8 A0 uioour v0
%v'L 0L'0 8e'L 8C'1 %1°9e-  |%Z¢E %9°G %88 %S ve- 61 St v'a %10l v6'L 0£'98 9€'8L BjUBZUBIA €0
%19 L0°0 aL'L 601 %0°9€- %81 %C'€ %l %See- c'l- £ec g'e %E 0l cLL 1828 14 37A apisueady/speisN zZo
%821 600 LL0 890 %S92-  |%972- %l'L %46 %812 e 0L L'6 %60t or's 0562 oL'89 doojumo] 1o
90y paleiraq
HGTL VEE prAl T £6'S¢ %90~ %€ 0 %L°€S %V €S %0 Lo S 9l %l'6 660 T8 €CLL dvqQejoL
%V'Ee 88EL EL'EL §C'65 %S'L %99S %008 YV VL %E'G- Lo o ol %L'8 669 1218 8¢ 08 S9pIY MN
%t LE 16°0 08't 68'¢ %E'Y %S0 %C L %101 %9 L1~ €0 €T lLec %¥ 1L 8.8 98’6/ 89°LL opIy-v-relg
9VIAIBS SpIY-Y-[eld
HIJ Jussisd | Jig Wnowy EICE] CICE HIQ jusdiad | g unowy oney oney 01 usdiad | yig wnowy INOH/ INOH/ 1 uedled | Jiq junowy aley Aoy ejey AUnoH unyssinoy
abesany sbelany xoqase4 xoqgaJe JBusseq JbBussed
Le/oe oc/6l Le/0c 0c/6L L2/0e 0c/6L Le/oc o0c/6l
1202 {eN niyL 1202 JelN iy L 1202 18N Ny L L20c 1B\ NIy L

12/02 Ad 01 0Z/6LAd
uosledwon 3ouBWIOHI d)e(] 0} JEDA 19u3s1g uoneuodsuel| Ajunoy yoowe||iL



B -

Coordinating Committee - Meeting
April 16, 2021
Tillamook County Transportation District
36003 St
Tillamook, OR
10:00 am—12:00 pm

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us02web.zoom.us/[/84555318692

12532158782
Meeting ID: 845 5531 8692

NMWCONNECTOR

Agenda
10:00— ) Doug Pilant
10:05a 1. Introductions. Welcome to guests. ug rFilan
2. Consent Calendar (Action ltems)

®  March 19, 2021 Meeting Minutes (Attached)
10:05~— ®  March 2021 Financial Report Doug Pilant/All
10:20a =  Ridership Tracking

¥ Calculating Average Passenger Miles—Set Workshop Date

= Updating NWConnector Performance Measures

3. NWOTA Standing Items

= Marketing: Mary Mc
10:30— ~  Visitor Pass/Map update (attached) Mary Mc
10:453 — NWConnector Information Card (attached)

%  Website

— Updates—Budget/Facebook Statistics Triflium
N Doug Pilant/All
11:00a 4. 2021—2022 NWOTA Budget 8
11:00— 5. GermFogger Proposal for Disinfecting Equipment .
11:154 s Update Doug Pilant/All
11:15— 6. NWOTA Management Plan (Progress Report Attached) .
11:30a = Update and Discussion Doug Pilant/All
11:30— . )
12:00a 7. Other Business and Member Updates Doug Pilant/All
Attachments:

March 19, 2021 Meeting Minutes
NWOTA Management Plan Progress Report

NWConnector Visitor Pass
NWConnector Information Card

NWOTA meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with disabilities. If a
sign language interpreter is needed, please call Mary McArthur at 503.397-3099 at least 48 hours prior to the

meeting.
www.nweonnector.org

BENTON AREA
TRANSIT

%i“

Tillamook County Columbia Lincoln Benton
Transportation County County Area
District Rider Transit Transit

Sunset Empire

Transportation
District

AL



NW Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA)
Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (via Zoom)
March 19, 2021
Tillamook County Transportation District
Tillamook, OR

Introductions: Doug Pilant, Coordinating Committee Chair, opened the meeting. Meeting attendees

included:

Brad Dillingham—Benton Area Transit

leff Hazen, Paul Lewicki—Sunset Empire Transportation District
Doug Pilant—Tillamook County Transportation District

Cynda Bruce—Lincoln County Transit

Arla Miller, Ken Shonkwiler—ODOT

Tim Barry, Anthony Cantero—GermFogger/Portland Kettle Works
Chris Deffebach—Washington County Transportation

Julie Wilcke—Ride Connections

Juliet Eldred—Trillium Transit

Ayreann Colombo, Mary McArthur—Col-Pac EDD

Consent Calendar: Unanimously approved. (JH/CB)

February 19, 2021 Meeting Minutes—No changes.

February 2021 Financial Report—Only change was $86,255 transfer of ODOT grant funding for
the website updating.

Ridership Performance Report—April will be the first month for comparing ridership during the
pandemic.

Calculating Average Passenger Miles Progress—Next step. Set up a workshop and go through
training. Mary to send out a poll to set a date. The workshop on Average Passenger Miles will
be recorded.

NWOTA Standing ltems:

Marketing=Juliet reported—For the next couple of weeks—Facebook ads, making it more
active, that it is safe to travel by bus. Later in the season will do some more digital ads, cross
promotions—eg, you can take the bus to go to the Coastal Aquarium. Eventually leading up to
potential discounts if ride the bus.

Recommend looking for cross promation ideas, other activities accessible by transit that could

be posted on Facebook. Oregon Coast Aquarium has over 150,000 followers. Share a post.
Juliet has started a spreadsheet of destinations in the area which she will send to Mary.

Don’t want to pull the trigger yet on encouraging visitors to come to the coast. Managing the
influx of visitation is problematic presently.

The North Coast and NWOTA have the Ride Car-Free marketing message connected to some
events and destinations.

Right now, ridership is from people who rely upon transit is their only means of travel. More
tourism travel could be good, but want to be sure that it doesn’t appear transit is pushing
tourism travel.

One NWConnector marketing option would be to have photos of bus drivers wearing masks on
the Facebook page to counter public perceptions isn’t safe.

NWOTA March 19, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 1|Pa

33



Current Marketing Budget: OK to spend the $12,000 on updating Facebook and starting cross-
promotion work.

Mary to introduce Juliet to Nan Devlin so that the NWConnector marketing efforts coordinate
with and complement the North Coast Tourism Studio Marketing.

Mary will also ask Juliet to start providing monthly statistics on visits to the NWConnector
Facebook page.

Rack Card: Partners requested the following edits: On Service Animals—Pets must be kept.
Print 1,000 cards. Change out BAT logo.

= Website Budget:
Trillium provided a $50,000 budget for NWOTA OTP hosting and GTFS-flex maintenance.
Partners requested more explanation: . $50,000 to maintain the website seems very high.
Current year is $7,500. Need to itemize their budget further. Partners recognize that by leaving
Google, website maintenance would go up, but this seems too high. Concernwas raised as to
whether this was going to stay at this level to maintain the website. Mary will set.up a
meeting/work session for April 2 at 10:30. Is it going to stay at this level to maintain? Questions
for Trillium at the workshop:
~ Hours by wage/type of employee.
— Estimate on how will be spending $62,000 balance in the current website trip planning

project budget.

~ Estimate on what will be needed to sustain the NWConnector website on an ongoing basis.

4. GermFogger Proposal for Disinfecting Equipment

Historical business has been building craft breweries, which are now coming back on line following
the pandemic, which involves custom customerservice.

Germ-Fogger product came out of pivoting business last year due to the pandemic. In use at O’Hare
Airport. Large scale sanitation as well as a backpack and sling units. Able to manufacture modular
units that will fit specifically for a client’s requirements. Thus the company can support many
different applications. Already supporting RideConnections. Even have automatic running systems.

Locally made, local support, sustainable manufacturing. American made steel and aluminum. See
as a partner not just a shipper of products.

Dual track system—Base system plus slings that can be carried in the bus for a complete in the field
sanitation. Approximately 30 minutes before the bus can be opened up to

Custom make for individual systems, hand product, do own installation, training.

Next Steps—Have Germ Fogger individually assess needs of each partner and finalize a cost
proposal. All of the partners are likely to have different needs.

Also need to get a cost estimate of the chemicals, which will be the partners responsibility. NWOTA
would be interested in hearing more about the different chemical products that are available. eg,
Speed of clearing out, amount of residue, impact on fabrics. Germ Fogger equipment is flexible
regarding the chemical being used.

Circle back with Thad when he returns.

5. RideConnections—Washington County funding outside of Tri-Met’s district pays for
RideConnections, although they also work with Tri-Met on last mile shuttles and with Columbia
County. Historically, they have worked with senior and physically challenged populations. Typical

NWOTA March 19, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 2|Pa

A4



demand response transit. Also have volunteer drivers, and travel training for new riders. Support
community-based organizations. Started providing direct service only in the last couple of decades.

Multiple inter-regional connections, including Tillamook County Transportation District. One of local
connections is WestLink. Have deviated fixed routes in Forest Grove, north Hillsboro connecting
Max station, Tualatin shuttle. Two major cities: Banks and North Plains. Also connecting closer into
Washington County now through increased STIF funding.

Completed first transit development plan, needs assessment. Done some outreach, including rider
surveys. Interest in more routes, more frequency. Interested in increasing awareness of services.
Need for more last mile service, improved transit stops. Did pick up interest in.more connections to
the Coast. Very interested in pursuing additional connections to the NWConnector, connecting
agricultural workers to job sites, improved communication about connections.

6. NWOTA 2021—2022 Draft Budget—A draft budget was reviewed. Essentially it is the same as last
year’s except for the increased website budget and the inclusion of the two new ODOT grants. Since
the partners will be having another meeting with Trillium regarding their estimated costs for next
year, a final recommendation on the proposed budget was postponed until next month’s NWOTA
board meeting.

7. ETicketing

= SETD sent out a RFP. Two responses QBIC/Umo and Token Transit. Fairly equally matched in
terms of operations. Token Transit had no costs to stand-up the program, compared to almost
$80,000 for QBIC. Token prices are also'less expensive.” Also Lincoln and Benton counties are
already using Token Transit. Riders can see use.the Transit app, and do not have to use a Token
Transit app. Take care of all credit card transaction, have multiple languages, can push out
surveys on their app. Can support NWConnector Visitor Passes. Also can use in other counties.
Encourage Tillamook and Columbia counties to use. Can start up very quickly. Would like to
coordinate with Benton and Lincoln counties start-up. Cascades West COG is managing.

= Benton/Lincoln counties—Only have had one meeting, just starting the process of
implementation. Have Swiftly up and going.

= Tillamook—Very interested./Planningto start public hearings on new fare policy in April and
May. After fare policy adoption will start reviewing e-ticketing options.

8. Other Business and Partner Updates

Postponed until next month’s meeting.

Recorded: Mary McArthur, Col-Pac EDD and NWOTA Coordinator

NWOTA March 19, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 3|P

53



| ;988 oueLRA 79 198png QLA/M voday qOg Apuo

%66 6T €1 E19°8¢€1 00°000°861 L898€°6S LI'6TLTI ¥€'8L9°6
%€9°9 00°0STTY 00°05T°s¥ 00°000°¢ 000 000
%000 00°0ST°Ty 00°0ST°Th 00°0 000 000
2007001 000 00°000°¢ 00°000°¢ 000 000
%16'9¢ £1'€9¢€°96 00°0SL°TS 1 L8°98€'9¢ L1°6TLTI v€'8L9°6
%0070 00°000°S 00°000°¢ 00°0 L991Y 000
%0070 (£8°L81°7) 000 £8°L8%'C 000 000

%P1 LE 00 PrI‘LY 00°000°L 009¢8°LT 00°0ST'9 {00°¢L9°¢)
%PL'6 00°685°1¢€ 00°000°6¢ 00 T1H°€ L9916°C 00" L1+°¢
269998 00°000°1 00°00S°L 000059 00°$29 00°005°9
%I19°€9 91°¢60°6 00°000°ST P8 H06°SI €€7€80°C vETHY'S
%TE Y 08'220°S 00°0ST°S 0T'LTT 0S°LEY 000
%€C°€9 (00°5¥7°89) 00°000°861 00SSL62I 000 = 000
%LLPEL 00§57°TT 00700079 0055798 000 000
%00°001 000 00°000°C1 00°000°CI 000 000
%00°SL (00°005°01) 00°000°CF 00°00S°1€ 00°0 00°0
2%00°0 (00°000°08) 00°000°08 000 000 00°0

%S L QOUBLIB A 128png [e10], [enoy 123png pola [enoy poLnd
ﬂvwvﬂ_m [e1o 1B A U2’ uarmny)y Jua.um))

120T/1€/€ USnoIy, [20T/1/€ Wworg
BI[[Y NsuRL], U03aI() ISOMYLION - §0
JUSWIAIR)S [BIOUBUIL]

LYSI uoneliodsuel ], A3uno)) yoowe|[L],

0816
0€lo6

oces
961¢
161¢
061¢
(41089
101¢
001¢

816y
L16%
scey
00s¢€

Wd 6T:€v:20 1T/TH/Y =red

sasuadxq [e10],
SIQJSURI], [BI0]
req puny 3urpuq pateudoiddeun
pun, [eIsuar) 0} JaJsuel]
SI9JSuBl]
SIOIAIOS PUE S[BLIJBIA [BIOL
Sururel] » [aarl]
109f01 SS290V JISUBI],
uB1So(1-9y AUSGIM
SunayIey
0UBUIIUIRIA 21ISGIM
1oddng aanensuwpy
SIDIAIOG [BUOISSIJOI]
SIOIAIDG PUR S[BLISIBIN
sasuadxyg

$20IN0SY [B10,
pung J11S WO I9JSuel |
pun,j jerauar) wolj J9Jsus ]
TN U0 Joured VIOMN
rende) Sunyiop
S20IN0SY

3



SEVO-E6L-888-L ODHOWOLIANNODOMU

trim size”3.5"x 4"

sequential
numbering

r .‘-:_(( n

| n WCONNECTOR AUBLC TRANSIT ACROSS MW OREGORM

WARINGTOW

Helens

Visit nwco

[0 plan

©5a

- )
Tillamook County Columbia Lincoln Benton Sunset Empire
Transpartation County County Area Transportation
Dlistrict ' ;ida; il Transit Transit District

oy,




Visitor Pass

. 7-Day Pass

. O T regon Loas
n WCONNECTOR PUBLIC TRANSIT ACROSS NW OREGON

sequential
numbering

fold to 3.5"x 2"

NWCONNECTOR.ORG

Tillamook County Columbia Lincoln Benton
C 3 County County Area
District Rider Transit Transit

Sunset Empire
Transportation
District

unty Ir

| by Benton (

. NWCONNECTOR.ORG

1-888-793-0439

3




% \ @_ NW Connector info card press-ready.pdf 1 4/12/21 3:03 PM

& NWCONNECTOR.ORG @

WASHINGTON

Helens

BENTON AREA
TRANSIT

Tillamook County Goll.rnb?a Lincoln Benton Sunset Empire
Transportation County County Area Transportation
District Ricler Transit Transit District

EEEEERT

34




‘ @ NW Connector info card press-ready.pdf 2 4/12/21 3:03 PM@ ’

@ Get Transit Info on the Go {':’}

Visit nwconnector.org to plan
your trip and learn more.

Or download the Transit App
for next-bus info.

transitt Finduson €

Visitor Passes Available from Your Driver

Get unlimited rides with our 3 and 7 day visitor
passes. $25 for 3 Days and only $30 for 7 Days.

Bikes on Buses

Bike racks are installed on all buses.
Just load the bike on the front of
the bus, and let the driver know
you'll be retrieving it when you
disembark from the bus. Riders
are responsible for the proper
securing of bicycles.

Scan to watch a video
about using bike racks.

Service Animals

Service animals are welcome on NW Connector
buses, but pets must be kept in an approved
carrier.

4> NWCONNECTOR.ORG  1-888-793-04

@

¢  eEEEE=-

1y



aded|t 1207 Yodey :e1ep 01 55248044 Ueld YIOM 40193UU0D MN _
*10195UU0Y
posU pPoA|0sas B)I5gaM patepdn 8707 ai3s | oY1 01311p0ds Wa1sAs UoiIRUIIo it

auoyd pajewoine ue Juswajdu)

*s9|9Ad1g Bujllodsuely

UO 03pIA 31ISC3M UO SUIOM SuLp puk ‘pooy ‘@desdn| ‘sjewiue
*s3(aljod sa|npayos AepljoH 1202 v 's919A314 10} spJepuels Jojwod dart
pue sa)1g Suillodsues] ‘s|ewiuy Ja8uassed Jua3sisuod dojsaaq

Sutpodsued] uo Adjjod pajsdwod

"§70T Aq Uofieso|
"'SUl|pesp 00T S3GWSAON o qzoe A ) dois Jo0393uu0) Joleuws yoes

Joj uopes||dde ue uidopas( (et ‘smo|le Suipuny juess se ‘saseyd cn“ an.L 1€ $3i}usie J3yjo pue .mmBmuME_u
‘5131j2ys papuelq apiAdid
‘Bulpuny ssueyug
palejdwon 6107 | Apnis s§a20y ysues] B uswejdw) | uosiel] LOodo UM pa|jeisul 3g 03 saijiuawe a3
pue sdois Jolelu uo 3348y

T

‘TZOT 3unf paisjdwos
aq ol ‘0zoz ‘Aint payounet
"23{SgaM JOIIBUUODMN 3Y3

uo Bufiiewdoy Bujuue(d diiy usdo
Juswajdw) o3 Bugpuny paAiedal

sy YLOMN pieme ailsqam

1534 dV.1Y 8T0T & PaAIRdad 3USAIM
‘pe19|dwon [oo] Bujuug|d dif

“alsgam Jo1I3UL0) ay)

e VIOMN 164 joo3 Bujuueld dui e dojsasd

Vi

JFONIINIANOD ANV SS3DDV HIAIY IACHJNI T TVOD

uona|dwon

83eq 03 ssaigoid SWaj| ooy NY1d NOLLOY HO19INNOD

1a8ie]

1202 YydJelal 918 0] ssaa8oud

ueld SO
J01IBULO) MN



afed|e

1202 yasey 91ep 01 55848044 Ue|d HIOM JO1I8UUDT MN

"£T0Z Ul Bujuudsq |
sousge SA) || 38 4835 10y
: LT07 ul BuluuiBsg — uolssas Bujulely jenuue ue IpINoLd o
pajusUIS|dw| ‘Ajjenuuy QL4 'sossed JOIISIA JO B|BS AU 1O} G
weidoad Jujuleil 83)A185 JOWOISND
pue Sujulel JBAMD B USs|[grIST
dIAQD 03 8np
pauodisod “mmnn_mm%_ oawom ydose o8] AJUnes-8AY
1els 0} pauue|d usieaw uomom /102 ul Sujuuisg yels ay3 1noysnotys Ajsnosueyjnwis "
g OIPriS ‘Buoduo JOPIBUUOIMN | SUOP §] 1By} UBiedilied uoljeulou) 8¢
I9ABIL 15803 ULION um EVMMB aljgnd pue Suisiew ujesug
yoogaed 10103UU0D AAN B Pappy
unpy 10399UUOT) BY] Jo)
pjoy uo L10C 4 uo)jisod JOJRUIPIOOD JUSLUSA|OAU] Ve
| 10WRLUAIMN aljgnd |euoi8s. e pund
SSINFHVYMVY HOLIINNOD FLOINOYd T YOO
= o suo[ELS Jledal . A (R
iy ‘weuBosd Juawsjdw) e
‘SSOM J0JIBUUOY
MN 343 U0 uolewIOUY *$3]9A9) 4|8y Modsuel
. i Spld U, 19 apinoad e 03 SupjoO| siapl JOJ sTljIUsWE
pataldwo) Lo ‘suo|3do 3isuedy uo Jauyied oy 3815 VIOMN pue sa3|AJas [9ARJ3 Suiph|au) o
sjudAa JulpAdlg pue sispAoIg wiesBoud apiy/u a%ig e usi|gelss
UM 303U 0D ‘515(19A21G
93uelsip-8u0] pue <1loys
Ag pepasu saljjuswe Ajpuspy e |
‘3U1I9%313 21UOIII3JB
'$121181p J19y3 - 1L i s e i y
6102 §d9 ‘A8ojouyos] ssuaTs-ayl | Hels VIOMN sjuawsaueyus ABojouyss] 41

01 AjiJIms pappe aaey siauied Jnoy

23e( 03 ssatdold

uopsjduwo)
jedie]

-pUIYRQ ‘Uolieuiolu; SNg Su |29y

Suiaj| uoiay

NY1d NOILLDY HOLDANNOD

1

1



2t

aded|s TZ0Z YJeN :21kp 01 55215044 Ur|d MIOA J01I8UUDTY MN

|
*puelq JOIIBUUOIMN
goto4uiad [[IMm ‘patieisad Ll 98eud|s 40108UUOIMN | . ssauaieme
7 slauyle E
Uaym ‘uBiedwied Sujzeylen s a5e3.40Uu| pue s3epdn Hed Iy WIa3sAs pue puelq aseasou| ¢
'pa|[easul ussq sey a8euUBis MaN
. i ‘epusse co_wm_EEou ug|d juswasdeuen
‘asn aJning 104 aAlydIe uopeuodsuegs] uosai0 syl . A
ue 8utuleiu ‘pasn pue paledsid Sulo8uo ‘4102 | U0 128 03 uosiel] LOAO YA 1o 83 40 Uop3|duios uodn
ululeluley “pasn pue p ! £10¢ 195 0} UOSIEN LOAO YUM SHioM sl sdnoid spimaless pue jeuoidar | OF
usaq aney suolnelussald ajdiynin ‘uojzejuasaad aepdin 03 SUORBLIESIT SHiARL
iod Jamod 33nUW-0T & aledaly | RHPURHEE SHONSS P
| ) mtﬂmE ¥ mu:o ‘wieJd304d Bujsytew
UBledWIED [3AB)3 ,9914-18), 535800 ‘ugjd Suiiedew jenuue B35 UO8310) JO SISPUOAA UBAS
UHON Bu3 uj Sugtedipied aq M | BuioBuo ‘210z S o pngl st = et aalte e iisic P
S4(5TOM UGBS BALL Y3 Uj UoB8.Q |SARI] Bph|ou| 10339uL0) JI9Y1 U] J0393UN03 IY] 3pnjsw)
uo suolido uopeiodsaued) Ul pe1sy 03 UOSBI0 |BABIL YUM HIOM
i 35N 0] SIWOISHD 104 SAIIINIUI
a19|dwos ueynsu :
pesl P Egs SR L pue Ases s| JeU3 935gam & apjAdId ic
seded )oogeoey4 UOJ3EUIISIP |BD0| 03
pappe Uil 33isgam JOITBUUBIMN
158 01 yoesd1no paliels Uno3sp ose
A ) ‘51 oseas
QlAOD 01 3np pauodisod e : ue(d Bupesew Heis ) i . -
Bujo8uo ‘g g - 3
ussq sBY S9lJRIBUI [BABI ai Ot jenuue uf sa1593.138 apnjou| J03138UU0) o Lmtw_%_ﬁ umﬁﬂo_ﬁmfm az
Suippe si uBledwed BuUizasseW 0Z0OT FHCIIERT ARSI
3}sgem
0] S1UDA3 {BD0| pue seap| d13 psppy

uol3ajdwo)
j98ie]

SWwia3| Uopoy NV1d NOILOY YO193INNOD

2918 0} ssa4801d




adedlp

120T U2JBIA :31Bp 01559150.44 URld JIOM 10199UU0T AN

"Aj21e4n29€ pale|ndjed

Siejdway Supuodal

8¢ UBD BIUBWIOLS ||BISAD OS Alyzuow e B Vst R £ i S ‘S1aqUIaW JO198ULDD JO sadjoeld
pajepdn ssjiw Ja8uassed afeisne Sujo8uo L3102 €1ep aui mc_mn ‘LmnEmE .r_umm m:mE HEIS VLOMN U0I399]|03 Blep Jzjpiepuels 8
g B eiep |euoleiado AjYjuow ulgIqo
198 01 pasu 1hg ‘diyssapit upiiel
‘SaW|3 Ja)suel] 91BUIPIOOD
0] SABM 8SM35|p pue uoj1ewIoiu
NUITISIAM pue sUbPBUUeIBpIY /10 158 ssed JOJISIA puR 321AJ85 2JBYS 01 ok
Yaim Bupuop ‘sssadoad uj e e (LN1Od sapessed ays yum Builiess) i€
ANIOd pue)BIWY §B YINS S80]AIDS
Jsue)3 4BY10 Yylim shdojelp e usdp
1841} pejdope 8q 0} spasy ; 'AJunod jiyuea .
Ployuo 610¢ ug|d JUsWaseugip pue voi ai DIU] WaIsAS 10398UUDD BY] puedx] as
"duy
e Buippe ssaldxa Asjjep 01 15805 (0€ ‘07 ‘9 AMH)
'0Z0z SuLids AjJEs sInod puelod 2202 ile}] 510pP1440I 35802 03 ABJJEA UO §|9A3) €
_ 03 BlioIsY 308.41p pappe gLIs I3|AI9S pue s3jouUznbal) asealou)
| 'ss3hod 0g puk 9 AMH uo Bujusddey
A — 8ulo8uQ sday Jauned pue aosjAIas ._Sumcmwuu_\mwwﬁwﬂ g€
-ghs e Suish 1noyum Jujusdde : UG . A
q snanou! el e $3W|3 J3J5URI 81BU|PIOOD
‘ s1epdn pue \ .EEmA.uE jond ,._ouuu:xcu mf B
29WWOoD , - 10} patedald siqeiaiul) jeuoisal ) *231A185 40198UU0YD 10O}
mainad Ajsjenb gt o A S =y 430 ST e = Y Vel V€
-gnis e Buish Jnoynm paisjdwiod YIIM L1062 {eu|8Li0 Byl 1epdn puk MBJABI 53021 PIeUIpIOD) dDjeA3]

01 931IULUOSGNS BY] SUSALGH

3je( 03 ssaidold

uoiajdwo)
19die|

SWaj| uoidy

AY3AIN3A 3DIAY3S TYNOIOIY IAOUdNI E TVOD

NY1d NOLLOY HOLD3NNOD

O
S



afedl|s

‘Aajjod sie4 pojedSsaul (UOISENIS|P
MBU [B]3UR304 's8Y)|g Sulpodsuedy

1207 UM 01ep 01 55345044 Ueld SHOM 10193UU0T MN

ses.e 91do] 404 58]9)j0d jeijlu;

F . .\ ’ Tcoe 109 Us1|58188 pue [BnuBl 53unpasold av
P mﬂzumcum AepljoH ‘s(euliuy pue sapyjod jeuo)8al e dojsaag
Suiiodsuel] uo sapljod pays|dwod
] : s123|9ys uo sdiysiosuods = uu“ﬂmhm siojesausd
PR S 610¢ 40 Bulsi3HaApE JapISUo) u Bm SNUDAL JOIIBULOIMN 21e51159AU] o
‘ssaJSoJd U) 5] JOpUBA € JO UOIID3|3S —
‘Buoldd Junossip Yyum aseyaind
1ujof e 9xew 03 pue quawdinbs 0202 Aq SS1USITILS 1507
cmw.mu%ﬂwm_w._ﬁ_ooﬂ %MMHU_M 3 0202 uosier] 1040 | [euofesado jeuo(das jeuonippe 1oy | ap
||e 4o Ajunitoddo cm mmnSoE sey A00| 03 Aphas pa|iedsp e 93siduiod
QIAOD 01 @np 188}4 J0IJ3UUOIMN
31 JO UOIIB}IUBS PIsEaIdU] J0) PISN
sdols 3isueJy o —
M3U g jo Uojieiuswa|duy
2y Joj Buijpund e
wswdinbs
UOIIBIUES JO 95RUDINd e 'saseyaind Jofew Jsiyio
' m_“cmam\»m sisuyed £T02 ut Sujuu|8sqg sioulled | pue ‘sad1A19s Bullnsuod ‘se)jiuswe
b uo BupdELs sha m.:c; 9y ‘Buiosup 10338uu05 dois “quawdinbs aunsoad v
' ueyd Emem.mcmS_ F Ajutof o3 sepuniioddo 4o) 3007
Apnis sse00y JisuBll e
)SUBM JUIOf e
is59480.14 ui/pais|dwod
ALITIEVLS TYIONVYNI4 ANV TYNOILVZINYOYO ISYIYONI v TVOD
‘Juswsdeuewl
il , Jaijealisy e1ep pue sduBUSIUIEW
”“m“w—ww.ww:%m“Mwww_wmgwmm\“_wm Bujoduo 6102 juswdinba 8ulpn|su) ‘uojgal 1\
- Ag juswisjdw 3Y3 4o} 53(80j6uUyra] UO11I9||03

@le(] 03 $5a48014d

uonsjdwo)
jo8ie]

glep dijewoine 3ujppe je oo

NV1d NOILDY HOLOINNOD

O
J



aded|o

1202 Y2IBN :21ep 01 559450.4 ur|d MOM 10198UUBY MN

WOkl *10193UU0S BY] 3P4 0] MO
1013UL07 ? SRS PR
11235 10N Aflenuuy JojeuIpI00) 831BJISUOWBP 03 ‘SI93UT JOIUSS ge
P E.msm%é_ 5B yIns ‘seppusBe Ajunwios jeao)
3 INn¢ ‘51 ue u
g 03 IN0 YoeaJ ‘sjseq jenuue ue Up
“B8315¢BM J0328UU0D) 33 U0 } JOY
G a8ed e p)ing pue weldoid s)ied]
) = —_ R . ueynsuac) i . ek AT )
pals|dwod 8102 $JUIAT pue seap) du) —— 03 3I5UBi, §,AlUNO) BUIOUOS vs

03 Je|jwis 3dasuoo Supasiew e 4o}
uejd uojjelusWsdw] e dojansq

ALIMIGYAIT ALINNWINOD IONVHNI G TYOD

sgupeaw
V.LOMN pue diLs Buiuiguod
40} [Bj3US10d BY3 18 3OO wiglsAs
91ep 01 98815 UO|SSNISIO 6107 POIIWWG) | sisulded [y JO39BUUOIMN U1 Jo) dnous 9172
AIOSIAPY 40303UUBIMN & Uo AlosiApe & Fuiysigeiss Jepisuod
Suizedpiied ug Js3483u] 51 84843
41995 01 58ql4l IYI YUM HIOM _
'V syl
ol 16z  JRRA SR Bl | i
e A¢f panoddde usag sey vo 113 y ; :
e Aqp R i 03 pieoq s,Aousde Jauied Yoes
WoJ4j saAlIEIUSSRIdS) SUAUOY
(ope3| UoJIBUIPIOTS BUO|B8 4Oy mm_ﬂ_\_,mmwn”
1M Suisiey ; <09 QU e ! ~e o :
(¢)V10 yum Buisier] L10¢ Emum ) BuEsisse 1oy (vi0) Uonesossy | 37

1sued | uo8a40 3yl 03 N0 Yoeay

2je( 0] ssa480.d

uonajdwion
jodie]

SLUD3| UOPOY

ue|d
sWsseuswW BY3 Ul PIPUBWILIOIBI

N¥1d NOIIDV HOLDINNOD




aBed|L Hmom muLmS_ :B1Ep 01 m,mm_mo‘_,nwc&_m NIOAN J012BUUOD PN

—
=T

Spiy-e-|elq
0p 03 BA|308Y43 1503 BJOW a9
Aew ‘sduy 3w 158) 918811S9AU] e
Juswhoidwa Jjauy
Joyjealayl 0} 950J0 9jgepaojse Buisnoy
"BujoBuo igToZ | pull 03 pasus)ieyd sasho)dws
Jo) sessed snq ‘diysiapil
SWOIUMO| YIM s3310
Jo 88u1sA05 Bujsesiou) ‘saae)
padnpay S8ANUSIU] fElJUSl0d e
“Juswdojsasp
10 UO|IPUO3 B sjuswaaosdill
usued] sjeldoasdde aybw
01 s10393.1p Sujuue|d je30)
Uiim 218u1pJoos pue sjesododd
JuswdojaAsp Mau MBINTY e _ SIaGWIAA |1V
‘pesodoad ade sjuawdo|srap
M3U Usym paijizou
| 9 01 3jSe pue eaie IIAISS
8yl Uly3im Aduale jeso) yoee
| 1e s1039341p Sujuued 1PEUOH

diysiapt) awoouj

=MO] YHIM 533n0J BulAjjjuap)
‘s328) PONPaY 1SI9PIJ W) qas
MO Ag WisIsAs 10393ULOIMN
Y1 JO UO1182)||1h S588.10U|

(d)o344 Bpu syuapnis
'saie) Jejjop sapinoad Ajunod
dosiepy ‘suop 8ulsq Ajjeled

'$9559504d |eAcadde
juswdojsasp pue Sujuueld

{@20] 03U} J0323UUOT 3Y) I1eJ48R]U|
03 suol3ipsiin| jeso} yum Jeuiied

Aunod SEXIL-ERETTH

dosie| ‘auop Suiaq Aj|eiried Buto38uo 8102 s

uojjajdwo)

212 0] ssatg0.4d 1085181

swiag| uopoy NVid NOILOV HOLIANNOD




Tillamook County Transportation -
District currently provides The Wave
Dial-A-Ride transportation service
throughout Tillamook County. In
2019-2020, The Wave provided nearly
20,000 trips on Dial-A-Ride—or over
1,600 rides each month.

About 44% of those trips were paid for by
another organization (such as Medicaid).
The remaining trips are for the general
public and are open to anyone. Passen-
gers get curb-to-curb service within 30
minutes of their requested departure time.
Advance reservations are recommended,
although TCTD will provide same-day
service if there is capacity.

There are three Dial-A-Ride fare zones -
North, Central, and South County. Most
Dial-A-Ride trips are within a single fare
zone and 70% of those trips are five miles
or less. The fare for trips within each zone
is shown below. Trips that cross multiple
zones are limited to medical appointments
and cost $12.50.

CURRENT SINGLE-ZONE FARES

$4 [ |

Regular one-way
fare for adults

22/

Older adults over 60
years old, youth under
18 years old, and people
with disabilities

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Dial-a-Ride Fare Policy Update

The Wave has been studying how to revise
the Dial-A-Ride fare structure so it can
eliminate zones and allow people to travel
to jobs, shopping, and other destinations
across the County.

General Public Dial-a-Ride Trips within Tillamook County
March-December 2018

Aldervale

North County

Central County

Pleasant Valley

South County

\J cloverdale o

am 100 trips

— 10 trips

CHERdy] (wider line = more trips)
Tillamook County
Transportation District N

Nearly 9 out of 10 (89%)
passengers pay the
discounted fare for older
adults, youth, or people
with disabilities.



PROPOSED FARE POLICY UPDATE

The Wave is reaching out to customers to
inform them of a proposed change to Dial-
A-Ride fares. The Wave proposes to make
these changes on July 1, 2021.

* The current one-way fares would not
change for trips up to 5 miles, but trips
would cost an additional $0.50 per mile
after the first 5 miles.

* Customers will be able to find out the
cost of their trip at the time they reserve
it. Sample costs are shown below.

* This change will allow people to travel
throughout the County on Dial-A-Ride.

* Trips that are the same length will cost
the same amount throughout the County.

The proposed fares are shown below.

Category Current Proposed

Regular Fare (Adult) $4 (one zone)  $4 (up to 5 miles)
plus 50 cents
per additional
mile

$2 (one zone)  $2 (up to 5 miles)
passengers with a disability, plus 50 cents
seniors (60 years or older), per additional
and youth (13-18)* mile

Reduced Fare for

* Reduced fares to be expanded to low-Income persons (e.g.,
Medicaid card holders) in late 2021, after the District develops
an eligibility process.

Sample One-Way Regular Fares*

HOW DO THE WAVE DIAL-A-RIDE
FARES COMPARE?

The Wave provides relatively long trips
because of the county size. Among
nearby transit providers that provide

a similar service and length of trips,
Sunset Empire Transit (Ciatsop County)
charges $8 for a general public Dial-A-
Ride trip up to 10 mites long and $12 for
 a trip that is 11-20 miles long.

| WE WANT YOUR
\ | FEEDBACK!

The public can provide input on
the proposed changes in several ways.

Before May 7, 2021:

« Give your written testimony to your
driver and they will deliver it

+ Write to us at:

Tillamook County Transportation District
Attn: Dial-a-Ride Fare Policy Hearing
3600 3rd Street, Suite A

Tillamook, OR 97141

« Email us at;
publichearing@tillamookbus.com

Attend a Public Hearing:
» April 22, 2021, 6:00 pm
*« May 20, 2021, 6:00 pm

Attend online or by phone. Meeting infor-
mation can be found at tillamookbus.com.

Existing Zone(s) From To Trip Distance  CurrentFare  Proposed Fare* Change
North County Manzanita Wheeler 5 miles $4 $4 0%

North County Wheeler Rockaway 8 miles $4 $5.50 25%

North County Garibaldi Nehalem 11 miles $4 $7 75%

Central County Bay City Tillamook (e.g., Fred Meyer) 5 miles $4 $4 0%

Central County Netarts Tillamook (e.g., Fred Meyer) 8 miles $4 $5.50 38%

South County Pacific City Cloverdale 4 miles $4 $4 0%

South County Pacific City Beaver 12 miles $4 $7.50 88%

North to Central County**  Garibaldi Tillamook (e.g., Fred Meyer) 10 miles $12.50" $6.50 -48%
South to Central County™*  Tierra del Mar Tillamook (e.g., Fred Meyer) 21 miles $12.50* $12 -4%

* The proposed fare includes a $4 base fare plus a cost of $0.50 per mile for trips over 5 miles. The base fare would be $2 for anyone
who is eligibte for a reduced fare. **Trips across existing fare zones are currently available for medical appointments only.



Tillamook County Transportation District
currently provides The Wave bus service
throughout Tillamook County. In 2019-
2020, The Wave provided nearly 130,000
rides—11,000 each month—on its 7 fixed
routes (see map below).

The Wave has been studying ways to
simplify its fare structure, make fares more
affordable, and make it easier to implement
new fare systems (such as mobile ticketing)
in the future.

Astoria

\

Kelso

Clatskanie™ L) Rainier

[
Seaside ()

Cannon Beach

Vernania

St. Helens

Manzanita
ROUTE 5

ROUTE 2
Oceanside

Netarts

BOUTEA \Portland

illamook

ROUTE 4
Pacific City

Grand Ronde

Lincoln City :
ROUTE 60X/70X Salem

Albany

Newport
port § Corvallis

Yachats (2

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Fixed-Route Fare Policy

The current Routes 1, 2, 3, and 4 fares are
shown below. There are three fare zones
within the County—North, Central, and
South-plus Clatsop and Lincoln County
zones. A 3-zone trip between Tillamook and
Lincoln City costs $4.50. Fares cover about
10% of the cost to operate these routes.

Category Full Fare Reduced Fare*
Zone-based fare $1.50 per zone  $0.75 per zone
Tillamook Town Loop

Daily Pass $150 $0.75
Monthly pass $40 $30

The current fares for the Portland Coastliner
(Route 5) are shown below. Fares cover
about 30% of the route’s cost.

Category Full Fare Reduced Fare

One-Way $15  Children (0-11) pay % fare;
} first child 0-4 free with

Round Trip paying adult

The current fares for the Coastal Connector
(Routes 60X/70X) between Lincoln City or
Grand Ronde and Salem) are shown below.
The services are funded in part by the Grand
Ronde and/or Siletz Tribes, who ride for free
with a Tribal ID.

Category Full Fare Reduced Fare*

1Zone $1.50 $0.75
2 Zones $3.00 $1.50
3 Zones $6.00 $3.00

CURRENT ONE-WAY FARES FOR ROUTES 1, 2, 3, AND 4
@_

$1.50 —

Regqular fare per zone
for adults

*Seniors (60+) and pecple with disabitities are eligible for reduced fares.
Children (0-11) pav 1/2 fare; first child O-4 Is free with paying adult.

Reduced fare per zone*

i i
Nearly haif (46%) of:
allRoute 1, 2, 3, and 4

ridersiuse a reduced fare
monthly pass



PROPOSED FARE POLICY UPDATE

The Wave is reaching out to inform custom-
ers of proposed changes to fixed-route fares.

The Wave proposes to make these changes
on July 1, 2021. The changes are intended
to simplify fares and make them more
affordable. Reduced fares are being funded
through the Statewide Transportation
Improvement Fund (STIF).

Tillamook County Routes

Proposed Route 1, 2, 3, 4 fares are shown
below,

* Fare zones would be eliminated. A one-
way trip would cost $1 (per route).

* There would be a new $3 Day Pass for all
trips within Tillamook County. The Town
Loop Day Pass would not be offered.

« A Monthly Pass would cost $10 less.

« A route deviation (within a 3/4-mile) can
be requested; would cost an additional $1.

Reduced Fare*

On-route: $1  On-route: $0.50
Deviations: $2 Deviations: $1.50

Category Full Fare

Flat fare (Routes 1-4)
(per route)

Day pass

(no deviations) $3 N/A
Town Loop Day Pass ~ No longer offered N/A
Monthly pass

(no deviations) $30 $20
10-trip deviation pass $20 A

(purchased in advance)

Free on in-county service

(Does not include deviations. Middle and high
school student 1D will be requested to verify
age; arrangements can made for students
without an [D.)

Seniors (60+), people with dis-
abilities

(To be expanded to low-income persons in
late 2021, after the District develops a process
to verify eligibility.)

Children/Youth
(0-18)

Eligibility for reduced
fare

HOW DO ROUTE 1-4 FARES COMPARE?

Sunset Empire: Transit charges $1 for trips within
Clatsop County. Students in'grades K-12 ride free.

Portland Coastliner (Route 5)

The proposed Route 5 fares are shown below,

* A round-trip fare would not be offered.

* A 10-trip pass (20% discount) could be
purchased in advance.

Category Full Fare Reduced Fare*
Trip in-county $ $0.50
e $15 $7.50
Trip out-of-county (no round-trip pass) (youth only)
10-trip pass $60
(purchased in advance) $120 (youth only)

No reduced fares except for youth. Chil-
dren 12 and under free (up to two per
paying adult); Youth (13-18) half-fare.

Eligibility for
reduced fare

HOW DO ROUTE 5 FARES COMPARE?
Sunset.Empire Transit charges $15 for'a trip

between Astatia and Portland (via US'30) and
Northwest Point charges $15 to $18! (via US 26).

Coastal Connector (Routes 60X/70X)

There are no fare changes proposed for
Routes 60X and 70X, but child/youth fare
policies would be the same as for Route 5.

WE WANT YOUR
FEEDBACK!

The public can provide input on
the proposed changes in several ways.

Before May 7, 2021:

* Give your written testimony to your driver
and they will deliver it

« Write to us at;

Tillamook County Transportation District
Attn; Dial-a-Ride Fare Policy Hearing
3600 3rd Street, Suite A

Tillamook, OR 97141

* Email us at:
publichearing@tillamookbus.com

Attend a Public Hearing:
* April 22, 2021, 6:00 pm
*« May 20, 2021, 6:00 pm

. Attend online or by phone. Meeting information
can be found at tillamookbus.com.




Regular Meeting 3/18/2021
Tillamook County Transportation District e
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting
Thursday, March 18, 2021 — 6:00PM
Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR
Meeting Minutes

1. Callto Order: Board Chair James Huffman called the meeting to order at 6:01pm
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present
TCTD Board of Directors (all Directors attended virtually)
Jim Huffman, Board Chair
Marty Holm, Vice Chair
Gary Hanenkrat, Treasurer
Judy Riggs, Director
Jackie Edwards, Director
Melissa Carlson-Swanson, Director
Linda Adler, Secretary

TCTD Staff

Doug Pilant, General Manager (in person)

Brent Olson, Superintendent (by GoToMeeting)

Tabatha Welch, Finance Supervisor (in person)

Cathy Bond, NW Rides Brokerage Manager/Board Clerk (in person)
Brandy Leamon, Office Specialist (in person)

Absent
None.

Guest

Arla Miller, ODOT Regional Transit Coordinator
Kathy Kleczek, NW Transportation Options
Jeff Hazen, Executive Director SETD

Christina Barone, Nelson Nygaard

Oren Eshel, Nelson Nygaard

Chris Kell, Public at Large

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: None.

5. Public & Guest Comments: Kathy Kleczek suggested TCTD consider broadcasting
board meetings using Facebook Live. Kathy explained that SETD began broadcasting
its meetings and said the greatest benefit has been providing the general public
opportunity to watch live or watch the recording at their convenience. Kathy also said
this creates the connection that allows the public to see all the hard work that's being

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

1

oFA



Regular Meeting 3/18/2021
accomplished. Kathy then offered her expertise in assisting TCTD learn how to use
the Facebook Live platform. Board Chair Huffman said he would take that under
consideration. He said there have been legal issues with recording in the past. The
Board would need to address past issues before considering this option. He asked
how long SETD has been broadcasting of Facebook Live. Kathy Kleczek stated SETD
started in May 2020. He respects her ability to do Facebook Live shows and that she
is doing a good job with her shows. He believes Facebook is for personal family and
friends use, and not for public meetings.

. Presentation of Fare Policy Analysis: GM Doug Pilant provided an overview of the
Fare Policy Analysis project and introduced the Nelson-Nygaard consultants Cristina
Barone and Oren Eshel who are consultants working with TCTD staff on this project.
Cristina Barone reviewed the Fare Policy Analysis findings and recommendations.
Board Chair Huffman asked about the Route 5 pass discount. Cristina explained that
in this model they weren’t recommending a discounted one-way ticket. Director Holm
asked about the note regarding low income and student elements regarding STIF
funding and if it is required or just recommended. Cristina Barone shared that STIF
funds were being recommended to offset revenue losses. GM Doug Pilant asked
ODOT'’s Arla Miller to weigh in on the purpose of using STIF revenues to offset lost
revenue. Arla Miller stated that Oregon Legislation’s outcome was to create fare
reductions for households below the 200% poverty line and this proposal would help
TCTD achieve that outcome. GM Doug Pilant explained the Legislature wanted to
mitigate the cost of fares to this segment of the population because STIF is a payroll
tax and the STIF requires 1% be spent on student transportation. Director Adler asked
why the Lincoln City to Salem route is cheaper than Tillamook to Portland. Cristina
Barone explained the reason for the differences. Arla Miller added the Portland route
is more than 20 miles longer. Board Chair Huffman asked if dial-a-ride reservations
would be available online. GM Doug Pilant explained they will initially be calling into
the call center to schedule their rides. Director Adler asked if there would be a
discounted fare for Dial-A-Ride. Board Chair Huffman said there was a high
population of seniors, so he appreciates that. Cristina Barone explained the dial-a-
ride discounts. Board Chair Huffman asked to clarify the OHP portion. Brokerage
Manager Cathy Bond clarified that they need OHP to have free services for
Medicare/Medicaid. Board Chair Huffman suggested moving (OHP) in front of
Medicare/Medicaid to help clarify this point. Board Chair Huffman asked if the fare
structure is similar to SETD. Cristina Barone confirmed it is similar. GM Doug Pilant
explained the youth fare recommendation has been closely aligned with Lincoln
County Transit. Doug also shared the Lincoln County Transit manager also
participated in this project and is planning to pursue some of the fare
recommendations from this study. Board Chair Huffman asked Arla Miller how fares
will be regarding federal funding going forward. Arla Miller stated the projections are
flat for the next biennium and that its hard to say. GM Doug Pilant asked Executive
Director Jeff Hazen about his fare going to $1. Executive Director Jeff Hazen shared
that SETD experienced a ridership increase. He explained that when developing their
fare policy he used his experience at Costco of the “how low can you go?” model. He
also confirmed that the 5311 formula did increase because the model is based on
ridership and mileage.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation

marks report a speaker’s exact words.

2
h3



Regular Meeting 3/18/202]

7. Public Hearing opened at 6:48pm — Second and Final reading of a revision to

Ordinance #3: Conduct on District Property. There were no public comments. Public
Hearing closed at 6:49pm.

REPORTS

8. Financial Report: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the February 2021 financial reports. The
District has completed 66% of the Fiscal Year. He noted the Section 5311 revenue
received was above what was budgeted due to COVID expenses being reimbursed.
Director Riggs asked about what the page 3, line 4400 expense represented. Finance
Supervisor Tabatha Welch explained it represents a vehicle accident reimbursement
and longevity credit from SDAO. Director Hanenkrat asked if the reimbursement was
paid by the District and if so, why wouldn’t it be credited to the account it was paid
from. Finance Supervisor Tabatha Welch explained that recent budget law guidance
has said credits cannot be applied to an expense account and have to be posted to
an income account.

9. Service Measure Performance Report: GM Doug Pilant provided an overview of the
operations performance measures. YTD Ridership overall has decreased -36.6%
change over the previous year. The YTD passengers per hour are -30.0%; the cost
per trip was +63.0% while the cost per hour was +14.0% and the fare box recovery
was -31.0%.

10.Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the NWOTA meeting
agenda, minutes, finance report with the Board. Also included the fully executed IGA
with all NWOTA partners. The next meeting is Friday, March 19, 2021. Board Chair
Huffman asked if the partners are effectively helping GM Doug Pilant coordinate with
our Fare Analysis planning for TCTD. GM Doug Pilant stated all the meetings are
helpful and information sharing results in being considered in local decisions.

11.Planning & Development:

a. Cape Kiawanda Master Plan — No report.

b. Deviated Fixed Route/ADA Fare Policy — Nelson Nygaard presented an update
earlier in the meeting. The next step is to get this information out to the public,
schedule public hearings in April and May, with the potential policy adoption in
May and implementation on July 1, 2021. Fare policy marketing materials are
being created will be distributed to the public for outreach as soon as possible.

c. STIF Service Alternatives Plan — None.

12.Grant Funding:

a. Section 5339 — Champion Park Apartments: Have begun the procurement
process to select a consultant to complete the design work.

13. Facility/Property Management:
a. HVAC system is costing a large amount of money to conduct tests and repair.
A technician is being scheduled to travel to Oregon to conduct tests using

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

3
B



Regular Meeting 3/18/2021
proprietary equipment. TFCC has expressed their unhappiness with the
inconvenience of not having any heat. GM Doug Pilant asked if the board had
any objection to offering a discount on their rent in exchange for the
inconvenience. Board Chair Huffman wants to carefully accommodate them.
Director Holm said he believes this is an operational decision and that the board
doesn’t need to make that decision. GM Doug Pilant explained the board is the
contract review board and the rental contract does not have a provision to
mitigate this type of issue and will proceed and keep the board apprised.

b. Transit Visitors Center — Amended Deed has been in legal review. TCTD legal
counsel has approved the amendment and are now awaiting the City’s legal
review.

c. Alternative Fuel Facility — Blue Star Gas is still gathering information and should
have an agreement ready for approval at the April board meeting.

14.NW Ride Brokerage:

a. Finalized the BPA legal review and is on the agenda for approval later in the
meeting. Transportation providers will be notified in early April the existing BPA
will be cancelled and will send them the revised BPA. Planning for a July 1,
2021 execution date.

b. CARES ACT Special Needs — The ODOT Grant Agreement to expand dial-a-
ride grant agreement end date has been extended to June 2023. The grant
agreement is on the agenda for approval.

c. Brokerage Manager Cathy Bond shared status of veterans and COVID trips.
Board Chair Huffman thanked her for doing the radio show and using Facebook
to advertise District services.

15. Miscellaneous - None

CONSENT CALENDAR

16. Motion to Approve the Minutes of the February 18, 2021 Regular Board Meeting
17.Motion to Accept Financial and Operations Reports: February 2021

18. Motion to Appoint Deborah Van Wickle to the TCTD Budget Committee Position #7
19. Motion to Adopt Revise TCTD Ordinance #3: Conduct on District Property

Director Holm asked if there was only one application for budget committee. GM Doug
Pilant confirmed the District only received one application and explained that multiple
media sources were used. Director Holm did say he saw the ads and they looked good.
Director Adler asked if the applicant was a volunteer driver to NW Rides. GM Doug Pilant
states she drives VFW members to medical appointments.

Motion by Director Holm to adopt the Consent Calendar. Motion Seconded by Director

Adler. Board Chair Huffman called for further discussion; followed by none, he called for
the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

ACTION ITEMS

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker's exact words.

4

on)



Regular Meeting 3/18/2021

20.Motion to Approve Resolution #21-10 In the Matter of Authorizing the General

Manager to Execute the Template Blanket Purchase Agreement with NW Rides
NEMT Providers

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board.

Motion by Director Edwards to Approve Resolution #21-10 In the Matter of Authorizing

the General Manager to Execute the Template Blanket Purchase Agreement with NW

Rides NEMT Providers. Motion Seconded by Director Riggs. Board Chair Huffman called
for further discussion; followed by none, he called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

21.Motion to Approve Resolution #21-11 In the Matter of Authorizing the General
Manager to Execute an ODOT Section 5311 Special Needs Grant #34734 to expand
General Public Dial-A-Ride Services

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board.

Motion by Director Carlson-Swanson to Approve Resolution #21-11 In the Matter of

Authorizing the General Manager to Execute an ODOT Section 5311 Special Needs

Grant #34734 to expand General Public Dial-A-Ride Services. Motion Seconded by

Director Holm. Board Chair Huffman called for further discussion; followed by none, he
called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

DISCUSSION ITEMS
22.Executives Session, Performance Evaluation, ORS 192.660(2)(i)
Executive Session 7:23pm- 8:52pm

As a result of executive session, the following motion was made.

Motion by Director Holm to award GM Doug Pilant’s a pay increase of 5%, retro-active to

January 23, 2021. Director Riggs seconded. Board Chair Huffman called for further
discussion; followed by none, he called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

23.Board Staff Comments/Concerns
GM Doug Pilant: Thank you for the opportunity. It is a true labor of love and he has
just as much enthusiasm now as when he started. He feels blessed and thanked the
Board.
Superintendent Brent Olson: None.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed m quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

5 5t



Regular Meeting 3/18/2021
Finance Supervisor Tabatha Welch: None.
NWR Brokerage Manager/Board Clerk Cathy Bond: None.
Office Specials Brandy Leamon: Absent.

24.Board of Directors Comments/Concerns

Jim Huffman — Thanked Doug for sharing his history and collaboration on his review.
He enjoys learning more about the board and likes the collaborative teamwork.
Compared Operations to a big bus, with Doug as the driver. Likes hearing Doug’s
ideas and the direction he is taking the District. Thanked Doug and said he hoped
that Doug was happy with the Board’s decision regarding his evaluation.

Judy Riggs — Congratulated Doug on another successful year, proud of leadership
and teamwork. She shared about being on the NW Transportation Options Facebook
Live show, with 3 other districts. Was fun and interesting to hear what other districts
are doing. Got to brag about our GM too!

Marty Holm — Thanked Doug for all his work. He has seen many changes and looks
forward to more of them.

Jackie Edwards — To Doug, we are blessed and really appreciate you being there at
the District.

Gary Hanenkrat — Thank you Doug.

Linda Adler — None.

Melissa Carlson-Swanson — Doug you have done a fantastic job, appreciate all your
hard work, especially with such a difficult year. Appreciates your team and District
support. Great work everyone, she’s very proud.

UPCOMING EVENTS
Adjournment: Board Chair Huffman adjourned the meeting at 8:58pm.

These minutes approved this 22" day of April, 2021.

ATTEST:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager
These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation

marks report a speaker’s exact words.

" 57



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Declaring )
and Disposing of Surplus )
Property ) RESOLUTION NO. 21-12

WHEREAS, Resolution 16-05 provides the Board of Directors of the Tillamook
County Transportation District to, by resolution, declare District property as surplus and
authorize the means by which the District General Manager may dispose of the property;
and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has determined that the listed property is of no
further use or value to the District and should be disposed of as surplus property; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

that the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of Directors declares the
following equipment as surplus property and directs the General Manager to dispose of
it as he determines appropriate and most advantageous to the District or community at
large.

2005 International Eldorado VIN 1THVBTAAM35H151585
2010 Ford Glaval Concord VIN 3FRNF6FC5AV235207
2014 Dodge Caravan VIN 2C7WDGBG9ER319561
2014 Dodge Caravan VIN 2C7WDGBG5ER319735
2014 Dodge Caravan VIN 2C7WDGBG2ER319739

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 22" day of April 2021.

ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

o8



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager
to Execute an Agreement with Blue
Star Gas to Purchase Propane Fuel,
Equipment, Facility Construction,
and Related Services

Nt s’ ”

RESOLUTION NO. 21-13

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) desires to purchase
propane fuel, propane equipment, propane facility construction and related services
through a full-service propane company; and

WHEREAS, the TCTD Board of Directors, acting as the Local Contract Review
Board, approved a Sole Source procurement on 1/21/2021; and

WHEREAS, a public notice of the Sole Source Written Determinations
procurement was published on ORPIN on 2/1/2021; and

WHEREAS, the District did not receive any protests to the Sole Source Written
Determinations by February 1, 2021; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

The Board authorizes the General Manager to execute a Personal Services
Agreement with Blue Star Gas-McMinnville Co. to purchase propane fuel, propane
equipment, propane fueling facility construction, and related services.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 22" day of April 2021.

ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

54



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

This contract for professional services is entered into by and between TILLAMOOK
COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT, a special district of the State of Oregon,
hereinafter referred to as TCTD, and Blue Star Gas-McMinnville Co., hereinafter called the
CONTRACTOR to provide propane fuel, propane equipment, propane construction and
related services to TCTD. The following provisions shall comprise this Contract:

I SCOPE

This Contract covers the personal services as described in the Scope of Work, incorporated
by reference and attached as Appendix A. Work shall be performed in accordance with a
schedule approved by TCTD. The CONTRACTOR shall meet the highest standards
prevalent in the industry or business most closely involved in providing the appropriate goods
or services. The Contract shall commence upon contract execution and continue through
at least April 30, 2026.

II. COMPENSATION

A. TCTD agrees to compensate the CONTRACTOR on a fee-for-services basis as
detailed in this Contract. Invoices submitted for payment in connection with this Contract
shall be properly documented and shall indicate pertinent TCTD contract and/or purchase
order numbers. All charges shall be billed monthly and will be paid net 30 days from receipt
of invoices.

B. The CONTRACTOR is engaged hereby as an independent contractor and will
be so deemed for purposes of the following:

1 The CONTRACTOR will be solely responsible for payment of any
Federal or State taxes required as a result of this Contract.

2, This Contract is not intended to entitle the CONTRACTOR to any
benefits generally granted to TCTD employees. Without limitation, but by way of
illustration, the benefits which are not intended to be extended by this Contract to the
CONTRACTOR are vacation, holiday and sick leave, other leaves with pay, tenure,
medical and dental coverage, life and disability insurance, overtime, Social Security,
Workers' Compensation, unemployment compensation, or retirement benefits (except
insofar as benefits are otherwise required by law if the CONTRACTOR is presently a
member of the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System).

3. If the CONTRACTOR has the assistance of other persons in the
performance of this Contract, and the CONTRACTOR is a subject employer, the
CONTRACTOR shall qualify and remain qualified for the term of this Contract as an
insured employer under Oregon Revised Statutes (“ORS”) Chapter 656.

C. The CONTRACTOR certifies that, at present, he or she, if an individual is not a
program, TCTD, or Federal employee.

Page 1 - Personal Services Contract PSA Blue Star Gas Propane 5 Years.docx\DP/4/16/2021

L0



D. The CONTRACTOR, if an individual, certifies that he or she is not a member of

the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System.

CONTRACT CONDITIONS

A. Failure to Perform

TCTD may, subject to the provisions of paragraph (4) below, by written notice of

default to CONTRACTOR, terminate the whole or any part of this Contract in any one of the
following circumstances.

1. If CONTRACTOR fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the
services within the time specified herein or any extension thereof; or

2. If CONTRACTOR fails to perform any of the other provisions of this
Contract, or so fails to make progress as to endanger performance of this Contract in
accordance with its terms, and in either of these two circumstances does not cure
such failures within a period of ten (10) days (or such longer period as TCTD may
authorize in writing) after receipt of notice from TCTD specifying such failure.
CONTRACTOR'’S failure to perform the scope of work identified or failure to meet
established performance standards shall be subject to consequences that include but
are not limited to:

o Reducing or withholding payment;

o Requiring CONTRACTOR to perform, at CONTRACTOR’S sole
expense, additional work necessary to perform the identified scope of
work or meet the established performance standards; or

o Declaring a default, terminating the Contract and seeking damages and
other relief under the terms of the Contract or other applicable law.

3: In the event TCTD terminates this Contract in whole, or in part, as
provided in paragraph (2) above of this clause, TCTD may procure, upon such terms
and in such manner as TCTD may deem appropriate, supplies or services similar to
those terminated, and CONTRACTOR shall be liable to TCTD for any excess costs for
such similar supplies or services; provided, that CONTRACTOR shall continue the
performance of this Contract to the extent not terminated under the provisions of this
clause.

4. CONTRACTOR shall not be liable for any excess costs if the failure to

perform the Contract arises out of causes beyond the control of and without the fault or

negligence of CONTRACTOR. Such causes may include, but are not restricted to,
acts of God or of the public enemy, acts of TCTD in either its sovereign or contractual
capacity, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes
and unusually severe weather; but, in every case, the failure to perform must be
beyond the control of CONTRACTOR and without CONTRACTOR'S fault or
negligence. CONTRACTOR shall not be liable for excess costs for failure to perform,
unless the supplies or services to be furnished were obtainable from other sources in
sufficient time to permit CONTRACTOR to meet the required performance schedule.

Page 2 — Personal Services Contract PSA Blue Star Gas Propane 5 Years.docx\DP/4/16/2021

]



5. The rights and remedies of TCTD provided in this clause shall not be
exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or
under this Contract.

6. As used in this Contract, the terms "subcontractor" and "subcontractors"
mean subcontractor(s) at any tier.

B. Term
Term. The term of this Agreement shall be five (5) years from the date this Agreement
is executed. After the initial five (5) year term, the Agreement shall continue on a year-
to-year basis unless either party gives the other written notice of termination at least
ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the then-current term.

C. Compliance with Applicable Law

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state and local statutes, regulations,
administrative rules, executive orders, ordinances and other laws applicable to the Services
under the Contract, in effect at the time the Contract is executed and as may be amended,
revised, enacted or adopted thereafter. Changes in these legal requirements after the
execution of the Contract may or may not be the basis for modifications to CONTRACTOR’S
schedule, scope and fee, depending on a reasonable assessment of the nature of the
change, the extent to which the change was anticipated by CONTRACTOR or the Parties,
and other circumstances then existing.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, CONTRACTOR expressly agrees to
comply with: (i) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Section V of the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, (iv) Section 306 of the Clean Air Act
(42 U.S.C. 1857 (h); (v) Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368; (vi) Executive
Order 11738; EPA regulations (40 CFR part 15) and ORS 659.425; (vii) Copeland Anti-
Kickback Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR
Part 3); (viii) Executive Order 11246 entitled Equal Employment Opportunity as amended by
Executive Order 11375 and as supplemented in 41CFR chapter 60; (ix) Davis-Bacon Act (40
U.S.C. 3141-3148) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5), (x)
Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-
330) as supplemented by Department if Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5); (xi) Energy Policy
and Conservation Act (pub.L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871); (xii) all regulations and administrative
rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (xiii) all other applicable requirements of
federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations.

If conflicts are discovered among federal, state and local statutes, regulations,
administrative rules, executive orders, ordinances and other laws applicable to the Services
under the Contract, CONTRACTOR shall in writing request TCTD to resolve the conflict.
CONTRACTOR shall specify if the conflict(s) create a problem for the design or other
Services required under the Contract.

D. Reporting Requirements

Page 3 — Personal Services Contract PSA Blue Star Gas Propane 5 Years docx\DP/4/16/2021 Lp Z



CONTRACTOR shall comply with the reporting requirements of TCTD including but
not limited to Progress, Status and Performance reports necessary to support progress
payments or cost reimbursements.

E. Records Maintenance; Access

CONTRACTOR, and its Subcontractors, shall maintain all fiscal records relating to the
Contract in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition,
CONTRACTOR shall maintain all other records pertinent to the Contract and the Project and
shall do so in such a manner as to clearly document CONTRACTOR’S performance.

TCTD and the federal government and their duly authorized representatives shall have
access, and CONTRACTOR shall permit the aforementioned entities and individual's access,
to such fiscal records and other books, documents, papers, plans and writings of
CONTRACTOR that are pertinent to the Contract to perform examinations and audits and
make excerpts and transcripts.

CONTRACTOR shall retain and keep accessible all such fiscal records, books,
documents, papers, plans, and writings for a minimum of 3 years, or such longer period as
may be required by applicable law, following final payment and expiration or termination of
the Contract, or until the conclusion of any audit, controversy or litigation arising out of or
related to the Contract, whichever date is later.

Iv. F. CONSTRAINTS

The CONTRACTOR agrees:

A. If the services to be provided pursuant to this Contract are professional and/or
consultative, the CONTRACTOR shall not delegate the responsibility for providing those
services to any other individual or agency.

B. Pursuant to the requirements of ORS 279B.020 and 279B.220 through
279B.235 and Article XI, Section 10, of the Oregon Constitution, the following terms and
conditions are made a part of this Contract:

1. CONTRACTOR shailt:

a. Make payments promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to the
CONTRACTOR labor or materials for the prosecution of the work provided for
in this Contract.

b. Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund
from such CONTRACTOR or subcontractor incurred in the performance of this
Contract.

c. Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against

TCTD on account of any labor or material furnished.

Page 4 — Personal Services Contract PSA Blue Star Gas Propane 5 Years.docx\DP/4/16/2021 {ﬁ) 5



2. If the CONTRACTOR fails, neglects or refuses to make prompt payment
of any claim for labor or services furnished to the CONTRACTOR or a subcontractor
by any person in connection with this Contract as such claim becomes due, the proper
officer representing TCTD may pay such claim to the person furnishing the labor or
services and charge the amount of the payment against funds due or to become due
the CONTRACTOR by reason of this Contract.

3. The CONTRACTOR shall pay employees for work in accordance with
ORS 279B.020 and ORS 279B.235, which is incorporated herein by this reference.

All subject employers working under the Contract are either employers that will
comply with ORS 656.017 or employers that are exempt under ORS 656.126.

4. The CONTRACTOR shall promptly, as due, make payment to any
person or co-partnership, association or corporation furnishing medical, surgical and
hospital care or other needed care and attention incident to sickness and injury to the
employees of the CONTRACTOR, of all sums which the CONTRACTOR agrees to
pay for such services and all moneys and sums which the CONTRACTOR collected or
deducted from the wages of the CONTRACTOR'S employees pursuant to any law,
contract or agreement for the purpose of providing or paying for such services.

5. This Contract is expressly subject to the debt limitation of Oregon
counties set forth in Article XI, Section 10, of the Oregon Constitution, and is
contingent upon funds being appropriated therefore. Any provisions herein which
would conflict with law are deemed inoperative to that extent.

6. The CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend
TCTD, its officers, commissioners, agents and employees from and against all claims
and actions, and all expenses incidental to the investigation and defense thereof
(including attorney’s fees), arising out of or based upon damage or injuries to persons
or property caused by the errors, omissions, fault or negligence of the CONTRACTOR
or the CONTRACTOR'S employees or agents.

7. The CONTRACTOR'S failure to perform the scope of work identified or
failure to meet established performance standards shall be subject to consequences
that include, but are not limited to:

a. Reducing or withholding payment;

b. Requiring the CONTRACTOR to perform, at the CONTRACTOR'S
sole expense, additional work necessary to perform the identified scope of work
or meet the established performance standards; or

C. Declaring a default, terminating the Contract and seeking
damages and other relief under the terms of the Contract or other applicable
law.

8. All subject employers working under the Contract are either employers

that will comply with ORS 656.017 or employers that are exempt under ORS 656.126.

Page 5 — Personal Services Contract PSA Blue Star Gas Propane § Years docx\DP/4/16/202] u L%



V. OWNERSHIP

Upon fulfillment of the Contract Terms, TCTD will have legal title to, and rights to use the
entirety of the documents, images, and data used to create the plan, (collectively referred to
as “the work”) without limitation. This includes the right to use the work in contexts including,
but not limited to: (1) public relations, press releases, or publicity; (2) re-use or modification of
the work; and (3) use as a teaching aid or continuing education tool.

VI. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

A. Commercial General Liability
X Required by TCTD [ ] Not required by TCTD

The CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish TCTD evidence of commercial general liability
insurance in the amount of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit per
occurrence/$2,000,000 general annual aggregate for personal injury and property damage
for the protection of TCTD, its officers, directors, agents and employees against liability for
damages because of personal injury, bodily injury, death or damage to property, including
loss of use thereof, in any way related to this Contract. The general aggregate shall apply
separately to this project / location. TCTD, at its option, may require a complete copy of the
above policy.

B. Automobile Liability
X Required by TCTD [ ] Not required by TCTD

The CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish TCTD evidence of business automobile liability
insurance in the amount of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and
property damage for the protection of TCTD, its officers, directors, agents and employees
against liability for damages because of bodily injury, death or damage to property, including
loss of use thereof in any way related to this Contract. TCTD, at its option, may require a
complete copy of the above policy.

C. Professional Liability

[] Required by TCTD Xl Not required by TCTD

D. Pollution Liability Insurance

[ ] Required by TCTD X Not required by TCTD

E. Such insurance shall provide sixty (60) days’ written notice to TCTD in the

event of a cancellation or material change and include a statement that no act on the part of
the insured shall affect the coverage afforded to TCTD under this insurance. This policy(s)
shall be primary insurance as respects to TCTD. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained
by TCTD shall be excess and shall not contribute to it.

F. If the CONTRACTOR has the assistance of other persons in the performance of
this Contract, and the CONTRACTOR is a subject employer, the CONTRACTOR agrees to

Page 6 — Personal Services Contract PSA Blue Star Gas Propane 5 Years docx\DP/4/16/2021 u 6



qualify and remain qualified for the term of this Contract as an insured employer under ORS
656. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain employer’s liability insurance with limits of $100,000
for each accident, $100,000 per disease for each employee, and $500,000 each minimum
policy limit.

G. If any other required liability insurance is arranged on a “claims made” basis,
“tail” coverage will be required at the completion of this Contract for a duration of thirty-six
(36) months or the maximum time period the CONTRACTOR'S insurer will provide “tail”
coverage as subscribed, whichever is greater, or continuous “claims made” liability coverage
for thirty-six (36) months following the Contract completion. Continuous “claims made”
coverage will be acceptable in lieu of “tail” coverage, provided its retroactive date is on or
before the effective date of this Contract.

H. The insurance, other than the Workers’ Compensation, Professional liability and
Poliution liability insurance, shall include TCTD as an additional insured. Proof of insurance
must include a copy of the endorsement showing TCTD as a scheduled insured.

L CONTRACTOR shall require that all of its subcontractors of any tier provide
insurance coverage (including additional insured provisions) and limits identical to the
insurance required of the CONTRACTOR under this Contract, unless this requirement is
expressly modified or waived by TCTD.

Vil. SUBCONTRACTS

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to TCTD for the actions of persons and firms
performing subcontract work. The CONTRACTOR certifies that the CONTRACTOR has not
discriminated and will not discriminate against any minority, women or emerging small
business enterprise in obtaining any subcontract.

Vill. MEDIATION

CONTRACTOR and TCTD agree that any dispute that may arise under this Contract will be
submitted first to a mediator agreed to by both parties as soon as such dispute arises, but in any
event prior to the commencement of litigation or arbitration. Such mediation will occur at
Tillamook, Tillamook County, Oregon, and the mediator’s fees and expenses will be shared
equally by the parties who agree to exercise their best efforts in good faith to settle all disputes.

IX. SEVERABILITY

If any term, condition or provision of this Contract or the application thereof to any circumstance
is determined to be invalid or unenforceable to any extent, the remaining provisions of this
Contract will not be affected but will instead remain valid and fully enforceable.

X. AMENDMENT

A. This Contract and any amendments to this Contract will not be effective until
approved in writing by an authorized representative of the Tillamook County Transportation
District, acting as fiscal agent for the TCTD.

Page 7 — Personal Services Contract PSA Blue Star Gas Propane 5 Years.docX\DP/4/16/2021 u [p



B. This Contract supersedes and cancels any prior contracts between the parties
hereto for similar services.

The undersigned, by its signature, agrees to perform the scope of work as described in
the Contract documents and meet the performance standards set forth therein. By their
signatures below, the parties to this Contract agree to the terms, conditions, and content
expressed herein.

Blue Star Gas-McMinnville Co. Tillamook County Transportation District
3070 OR-99 W 3600 Third Street, Suite A

McMinnville, OR 97128 Tillamook, OR 97141

By: By:

Authorized Signature Authorized Signature

Name/Title (Printed) Name/Title (Printed)

Date Date

Telephone/Fax Number

Approved as to Form

CCB License # (if applicable)

Oregon Business Registry District Counsel

Entity Type/State of Formation

Page 8 - Personal SerVices Contract PSA Blue Star Gas Propane 5 Years.docx\DP/4/16/2021 (‘é‘?



Appendix A

Scope of Services

Page 9 — Personal Services Contract PSA Blue Star Gas Propane 5 Years docx\DP/4/16/2021 (j g



ATTACHMENT TO RESOLUTION # 21-13
BLUE STAR GAS

This document is the “Scope of Services”
to be attached to the Blue Star Gas
Service Agreement’s Attachment A

(This was inadvertently left out of the Board
packet prior to production of the Agenda.)



Alliance
BLUE STAR GAS vevmwniz co. AutoGas

3070 NE Highway 99W R -,
McMinnville, OR 97128 POW BY PROPANE

Aprif 15, 2021

Doug Pilant, General Manager
Tillamook County Transportation District
3600 3rd St, Suite A

Tillamook, OR 97141

Proposal for Construction of Propane Refueling Station, Fuel Supplv. Vehicle Conversions. and Related Services

Dear Mr. Pilant,

Blue Star Gas is pleased to submit this proposal for the construction of a Propane Autogas fueling site, Propane Autogas
Conversion Systems, and Propane Autogas fuel. This proposal offers EPA-certified bi-fuel (gasoline and propane Autogas)
conversions, onsite fueling infrastructure and fuel supply, training, and other technical and equipment support for Tillamook
County Transportation District’s fleet (TCTD).

Blue Star Gas has been in business for 83 years, and since 1940, we have been converting vehicles and providing Autogas
supply and related fueling infrastructure. We also have extensive experience converting smaller engines such as lawnmowers,
generators, and irrigation pumps. We operate fourteen locations: five in California; six in Oregon; one in Arizona; one in Utah;
and one in Washington. We also operate nine public Autogas fueling facilities in Oregon. In addition to these publicly
accessible fueling locations, we provide onsite fueling infrastructure varying in capacity and size to meet a customer’s fueling
requirements. Onsite fueling infrastructure installations range from skid-mounted 1,000 gallon tanks with electronic fuel
dispensers, to 30,000 gallon tanks that utilize remote fueling islands with multi-hose electronic dispensers and fuel management
systems. Blue Star Gas operates over 65 public and private onsite Autogas fueling locations in the western states and supports
over 700 fleet vehicles.

Blue Star Gas represents the Western operations of our partner, Alliance Autogas. Alliance Autogas is an integrated, nationwide
partner network that includes propane retail distributors, premiere equipment providers, and certified conversion centers.
Together, the Alliance Autogas partners offer a unified single source solution by providing EPA certified conversion systems,
certified conversion centers, Autogas fuel, fueling equipment, and user training that will service all sizes of public and
commercial fleets. Our focus is to ensure the optimal alternative fuel experience for our customers. Nationwide, Alliance
Autogas supports over 10,000 vehicles and has installed over 400 propane Autogas fueling locations.

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal. Please do not hesitate to reach us should you have any questions or
concerns.

Regards,

Christina Grabo
Autogas Fleet Specialist
206-379-2031

cgrabo@bluestargas.com

Brookings O CrescentCity & Eugene & Garbervile &F Grants Pass & McMinnvile &% Medford
Mt. Shasta &# Phoenix &F Redding &# Salem &# SaltlakeCity & SantaRosa & Seattle



BLUE STAR GAS voummnizco

3070 NE Highway 99W POWE
McMinnville, OR 97128 OWERED BY PROPANE

Alliance
AutoGas

Scope of Work

Refueling Infrastructure

Blue Star Gas proposes to install on-site Propane Autogas refueling equipment to fuel Tillamook County

Transportation District’s vehicles. Blue Star Gas will design the refueling area and shall assist in
determining its appropriate location so that the infrastructure complies with NFPA #58 and other Federal,
State and local codes. Blue Star Gas will also coordinate with the Fire Marshal and other local agencies to
secure the necessary permits. Blue Star Gas will serve as the General Contractor for the project and will
utilize subcontractors to assist in portions of the construction of the fueling site.

The refueling station shall consist of the following:

24’ concrete fueling island with access from either side

26’ x 24’ wind resistant canopy with steel supports and custom matched paint (16° clearance)
FuelMaster card reader and fuel management system

Two (2) cardlock Autogas dispensers with breakaway devices, hose retractors, and ultra-low
emission Quick Connect fuel nozzles

Dispenser Sump Pans

Emergency shut off system

Two (2) 2,000 gallon vertical propane tanks

7.5hp, 3 phase Corken pump and motor

Gas piping and safety valves

Donaldson Fuel Filter System

Cellular-based fuel level monitoring system

Safety decals

Fire extinguishers

Back-up Generator

The following sub-sections provide specific details on the main components to the refueling equipment.

Dispenser: Blue Star Gas will install two Midcom cardlock LPG Autogas fuel dispensers
manufactured by Superior Energy Systems. Each dispenser consists of the following
specifications:
- A steel cabinet with white power coat finish
- Assingle % x 8” hose with a safety breakaway that stops flow in both directions
- The Electronic Control Computer with a Mid: Com Display and keyboard allowing
access to menu options and gallons that will tie into the FuelMaster fuel management
system
- UL listing
- Differential valve and vapor eliminator

Brookings &9 CrescentCity & Eugene & Garbervile &F Grants Pass &F McMinnville &9 Medford
Mt.Shasta & Phoenix &# Redding &# Salem &9 SaltlLake City h# Santa Rosa ¥ Seattle



@@ Alliance
BLUE STAR GAS vemmmnie co. @ AutoGas

3070 NE Highway 99W P : P
McMinnville, OR 97128 RS SRR

e Ultra-low Emission Fueling Nozzles: Blue Star Gas utilizes the Staubli GPV 14 LPG fueling
nozzle which is principally applied throughout Europe. These nozzles provide a significant
increase in safety, and have therefore become our standard. These nozzles are as easy to handle
as a gasoline nozzle. To refuel, simply with one hand push the nozzle onto the filling unit until
it locks, and pull on the lever to start the refueling. After refueling is completed and the
dispenser is switched off, hold the nozzle with one hand, pull up on the lever, and then pull out
the nozzle from the filling unit. The Stiubli nozzle contains many safety features including:

- A non-spill design that allows for connecting or disconnecting without leakage or
venting, thereby minimizing the risk of burns due to gas venting.

- No possible gas flow if the nozzle is not correctly connected to the filling unit on the
vehicle.

- No possibility for partial locking — automatic unlocking when the lever is released

- Audible “click” signifies when the nozzle is properly connected to the filling unit.

- Automatic locking and opening of the circuit when pulling on the lever.

- In-line breakaway feature to protect the refueling installation and vehicle.

Please review the attached product sheet for further details on the Stiaubli GPV 14 LPG
fueling nozzle.

e Autogas Pump: Blue Star Gas will install a Corken FF-075 7.5hp Turbine Autogas pump to
provide optimum fueling speed and performance. Please review the attached product sheet for
further details on the Autogas pump.

e Fuel Level Tank Monitoring System: The refueling equipment will also include our proprietary
E-lert tank monitoring system which monitors the fuel level in the tank each day. Based on this
data our dispatching system continuously forecasts deliveries to TCTD’s fueling location.
Additionally, low level alerts are electronically sent to the Blue Star Gas fuel dispatching
system should unexpected usage occur. The E-lert system helps ensure that there is an
available supply of propane Autogas onsite at all times.

e Backup Generator: The refueling station will also be equipped with a Kohler 20kW RCA
generator to provide service in case of power outage. The generator will be mounted to a Kohler
Generator Pad and includes a corrosion- resistant aluminum housing, Automatic Transfer
Switch, and battery. Please see the attached product sheet for additional specifications.

Project Cost

Blue Star Gas shall serve as the General Contractor and coordinate with TCTD to provide for the
installation of the aforementioned equipment and these additional components:

Brookings &# CrescentCity & Eugene &F Garbervile &F Grants Pass & McMinnvile & Medford
Mt. Shasta & Phoenix &9 Redding &% Salem &# Saltlake City ¥ Santa Rosa &9 Seattle



@@ Alliance
BLUE STAR GAS vemmwnie co. ¥ AutoGas

3070 NE Highway 99W IERED BV S
McMinnville, OR 97128 BY PROPANE

e trenching and excavation required for the fuel island, canopy, tank foundations, electrical
upgrades, and gas piping

e clectrical upgrades

e concrete installation for island and foundations

e hauling and removal of concrete and soil after excavation

e crash protection that complies with NFPA 58 guidelines

e engineering and design

® permitting

e soil testing and fire safety analysis, if necessary

e installation labor and project management

The total project cost for the installation of the on-site refueling station is $269,315.00.

Upon receipt of payment in full, all refueling equipment will become property of TCTD. Any replacement
parts needed for future maintenance and repair shall be at the expense of TCTD; however, as your partner
in this project, Blue Star Gas will provide the routine maintenance service labor at no cost to TCTD for the
duration of our fuel contract. Service calls required due to negligence by TCTD staff shall be billed to
TCTD.

Fuel Access and Fuel Use Data Reporting

FuelMaster access cards are required to activate the refueling equipment. These cards are also used to
manage and track fuel use data. Fuel access cards will be issued to all necessary vehicles and personnel at
no charge to the TCTD. Blue Star Gas will provide training to TCTD staff to generate fueling reports
tracking each fill transaction. The report will identify the transaction date and time, as well as vehicle and
driver identifiers.

In addition to providing on-site refueling equipment, Blue Star Gas shall also provide TCTD access to our
existing public fueling locations in Oregon by issuing fuel cards upon request. Transaction data for
purchases performed at Blue Star Gas’ public refueling locations will be provided with your fuel invoices
and can also be downloaded as CSV files via the Comdata portal. Please see attached map indicating the
location of these public fueling sites.

Fuel Pricing and Terms

Blue Star Gas will provide market based pricing for Autogas at an adder of $0.60 over our laid in cost to
our local branch, plus any applicable state or federal motor vehicle fuel tax. Onsite deliveries will be
provided as bulk deliveries to allow TCTD to own the fuel at the time of dispensing in keeping with the
Oregon Clean Fuels Program. A fuel contract for a minimum period of five years is a condition of this
proposal.

Brookings &# CrescentCity &9 Eugene & Garbervile & Grants Pass & McMinnvile & Medford
Mt. Shasta & Phoenix &% Redding & Salem & SaltlakeCity &# Santa Rosa & Seattle



@@ Alliance
BLUE STAR GAS vevmwnic co & AutoGas

3070 NE Highway 99W - RED BY P
McMinnville, OR 97128 POWE ROPANE

Training on Safely Using Refueling Equipment

Blue Star Gas will also provide, at no cost to TCTD, initial operating instructions, training, and training
materials (“Safety Training”) for TCTD’s personnel for the safe handling of Autogas and operation of
fueling equipment. All training will be designed to familiarize personnel with the mechanical equipment,
controls, safety features, operating characteristics and operator checks and services for the refueling
equipment. Times will be scheduled for Blue Star Gas to initially train TCTD personnel, and Blue Star
Gas will also guide a designated TCTD representative(s) through a “train the trainer” curriculum to provide
ongoing training of TCTD personnel. Afier the initial Safety Training, Blue Star Gas will conduct regular
annual trainings for designated TCTD representative(s).

Emergency Response

Blue Star Gas maintains a 7 day/24 hour live answering service so that our on-call staff can respond to any
emergency situation (gas leak, vehicle pull away, etc.).

Tax Guidance and Incentives

Blue Star Gas shall assist TCTD, at no cost, with acquiring any applicable incentives for TCTD’s purchase
of the Prins bi-fuel conversion systems, as well as with acquiring any other applicable incentive or grant
program pertinent to this project. As an industry leader, Blue Star Gas has extensive experience
evaluating, educating, and providing our customers overall guidance on federal and state taxes and how to
claim available tax incentives for propane fueled vehicles including, tax or grant incentives for the
purchase of alternative fuel conversion kits. In fact, Blue Star Gas actively participates in industry
associations, and even directly lobbies on behalf of our customers to encourage the Oregon Legislature to
maintain existing incentives, as well as promote new ones that encourage alternative fuel adoption.
Several of our staff members have accounting, legal and taxation backgrounds that can guide TCTD on
most tax and incentives issues.

Fuel Cost Savings Report Card

An additional distinguishing support feature we offer is, annually, Blue Star Gas will generate for TCTD a
report card that will show its fuel cost savings as a result of utilizing propane Autogas in lieu of gasoline.
The report card will detail how many gallons TCTD consumed that reporting period and its average fuel
savings for using Autogas compared to the average gasoline per gallon price as reported on the West Coast
Less California EIA index.

Autogas Conversion Equipment

Blue Star Gas and its affiliated Alliance Autogas conversion partners will convert TCTD’s vehicles using
the Prins VSI-2 Bi-fuel Vapor Sequential Injection System (Prins VSI System). The Prins VSI-2 System is

Brookings &F CrescentCity & Eugene &F Garbervile bF Grants Pass & McMinnvile &9 Medford
Mt. Shasta &# Phoenix &# Redding & Salem &# Salt Lake City &9 Santa Rosa & Seattle



@@ Alliance
BLUE STAR GAS vevmwiic co. ¥ AutoGas

3070 NE Highway 99W ORED o
McMinnville, OR 97128 P BY PROPANE

a bi-fuel system that starts on gasoline and immediately switches to Autogas. The Prins VSI-2 System
meets rigorous performance requirements as it has been tested in the extreme application of motorsport.

Blue Star Gas has already partnered with several dozen Northwest—based fleets to install the Prins System
on their vehicles. Because propane becomes the primary fuel when vehicles are converted using the Prins
VSI System, private and municipal Northwest-based fleets have experienced tremendous fuel cost savings.
In addition to fuel savings, these fleets have also helped improve Oregon air quality because using propane
as their primary fuel reduces emissions.

Prins, the manufacturer of the VSI-2 System, is the third largest manufacturer of LPG systems in the world
and is the leader in Vapor Injection technology that has currently over a million systems operating
worldwide. Prins is constantly working to continue to be a leader in developing technology for alternative

2

fuel system solutions. Each product is developed in-house and tested in their facilities in the Netherlands.
Alliance Autogas holds the distribution rights in the United States and engineers the VSI-2 systems to EPA
specifications.

The Prins VSI-2 System includes at least a 36 month/36,000 mile parts and labor warranty that will not
void the OEM warranty on the vehicle. Please see the attached warranty offered through our Alliance
Autogas partner, Blossman Services Inc. (“Blossman”). Blossman is the only authorized U.S. distributor of
Prins equipment and the holder of EPA certificates. The warranty will only apply when the Prins VSI
System is installed by an authorized installer (i.e., a member of the Alliance Autogas). All components
also comply with R67.01/R110/R115/CSA and EPA regulations.

Blue Star Gas will install EPA-certified Prins Autogas Bi-fuel Conversion systems on TCTD’s vehicles at
the current pricing at the time of order. The current cost of vehicle conversions is as follows and includes
the conversion equipment, single Autogas tank, installation labor, and warranty:

e Ford Transit with 3.5L Port-fuel Direct Injection engine: $6,200.00
e Ford E-450/F-550/F-650 with 7.3L V8 engine: $7,200.00

Conversion and Tank Installation and Post-Installation Support

Blue Star Gas will coordinate with our certified conversion partners to perform all the Prins VSI-2 System
installations on TCTD’s vehicles. Our partners have extensive experience working with public agencies
and converting their fleet vehicles. Our partner’s mechanics have been trained and certified by Alliance
Autogas to do the conversions, troubleshoot issues, and perform warranty work in a safe manner.

Alliance Autogas provides in house and on-site training of technicians and workshops for initial and
recurring training. Alliance Autogas also provides experienced field application engineers to give
worldwide support and training as needed. In addition, our partners are provided with photo illustrated

Brookings & CrescentCity & Eugene &# Garbervile &9 Grants Pass & McMinnvile &% Medford
Mt. Shasta & Phoenix & Redding & Salem &9 Salt Lake City &# Santa Rosa & Seattle



@@ Alliance
BI.UE STAR GAS vemmwnse co. ¥ AutoGas

3070 NE Highway 99W ' RE
McMinnville, OR 97128 POWERED BY PROPANE

manuals with step-by-step instructions, product placement, and a worldwide database that tracks known
issues and provides guidance to troubleshoot issues specific to vehicle brand and model.

Fuel tanks come in standard sizes to match a vehicle chassis, but in many cases we have the ability to
install auxiliary tanks on certain models that can provide the TCTD longer range for certain desired
applications. Current pricing for equipment and installation of auxiliary tanks is $1,800.00.

Once the installations are completed, Blue Star Gas will provide 24/7 ongoing technical support,
reasonable equipment modifications, and support for service and maintenance of the Prins VSI-2 System.
Blue Star Gas has an Autogas Fleet Specialist on staff that works closely with our partners and the
manufacturer to troubleshoot virtually any post-installation issues that may arise. This level of support will
be available at no cost to the TCTD.

Our staff will also train TCTD’s mechanics to perform the scheduled maintenance and warranty work (if
needed and desired) for the Prins VSI System. Blue Star Gas will certify TCTD’s vehicle maintenance
personnel as service centers to perform basic maintenance and the diagnosis of trouble codes. A tablet
loaded with the Prins Diagnostic Software and Ease OBD II Software is required to perform scheduled
maintenance and will be provided as part of the scope of this project. This software and tablet package will
allow your mechanics to connect the vehicle directly to our technical support team through the internet.
Diagnostics, adjustments and warranty claims can be performed using this software. Additional Alliance
Autogas and Prins resources will be available as part of this program to ensure any issues are resolved.
Our facilities stock a complete parts inventory including an ample supply of filters that need to be replaced
on the initial 15,000 miles and then every 45,000 miles thereafter. The replacement filters have a cost of
less than $100.00 at each interval and this is the extent of the routine maintenance costs for the Prins
System.

Conclusion

Thank you for considering our proposal for TCTD’s Propane Autogas project. The Blue Star Gas team is
pleased to offer TCTD on-site refueling infrastructure and fuel supply, the Prins VSI-2 System, and other
related services as specified in this proposal. We believe that our extensive knowledge and level of service
as outlined above will provide superior support for TCTD as it commences an alternative fuel program by
using propane Autogas. We look forward to a successful partnership and supporting TCTD throughout this
transition and for many years to come.

Please do not hesitate to contact us should there be any points we may clarify for you in your review.

Brookings &F CrescentCity & Eugene & Garbervile &9 Grants Pass & McMinnvile &9 Medford
Mt. Shasta &¢ Phoenix &9 Redding &9 Salem ¥ SaltlLake City & Santa Rosa & Seattle



STAUBLI NOZZLE

@@Alﬁance AutoGas

POWERED BY PROPANE

_ @ _

THE STAUBLI QUICK CONNECT
ULTRA-LOW EMISSIONS NOZZLE*

DESCRIPTION

*Exclusively distributed through BSI

THE STAUBLI NOZZLE:

* |s compatible with the standardized EN
13760 connector that is present on the

vehicle

*+ Has UL Certification according to the UL
125 standard

* Is easy to use: Just as simple to handle as

a gasoline pump nozzle

* The valve design allows effortless

connection

* The 360° swivel connection between the
nozzle and the hose reduces the stresses
due to hose rigidity

*+ Nozzle weighs only 3.31 ibs

* The inline connection principle rules out
any handling errors, meaning totally safe
operation.

+ No gas can escape and no gas flow is
possible unless the refueling nozzle is
engaged in the connection piece

+ Incomplete locking is impossible

+ The nozzle is unlocked automatically
when the trigger is released

+  Ultra-low emissions: 0.4 cc of product
released compared to 1.9 cc for the typical

Acme Low Emissions Nozzle




Main Office and Plant: For more informaticn email:
100 Four Points Way, Tallahassee, FL 32305 ] marketing@syntech-fuelmaster.com
Tel: (850) 878-2558 ; \ %

Tolt Free: (800) 888-9136 -
FAX (850) 877-9327 ‘ www syntech-fuelmaster. C % (Show above: FMU 2500 PLUS RF)




Benefits

The best just keeps getting better! FueMaster® saves you money by eliminating manual tracking of fuel transactions
and increasing accountability. The same reliable FuelMaster® equipment that's been the fleet managers’ choice for
years has been upgraded to increase productivity and provide a quicker return on investment... usually within the first
year!

FuelMaster® engineers and technicians provide the best product support service in the industry. Toll-free support
directly to your fuel island, as well as PC to PC training and assistance, saves you time and money. FuelMaster®
doesn't stop there! Its flexibility permits numerous, diverse uses; e.g., a gate opener, car wash activator, or controlling
access to chemicals, to name a few. Consider a FuelMaster® Fuel Management System ...and start saving money
today!

The FuelMaster® 2500 Plus series adds additional features that make it the most effective fuel management system
on the market for many years to come. Flash memory has been added to permit updating the fuel island operating
system without changing chips. The Plus system has increased memory and processor speed and the database has
been upgraded to Access 2000. The Plus system also supports a network card to permit Internet access. FuelMaster®
software now has more flexibility in the customization of reports. FuelMaster® also communicates directly with elec-
tronic dispensers to permit interfaces with blended MPDs and the capability of remotely changing dispenser prices.

Features

Electronic Read/Write keys and cards are great for fleet
operations or gas club members. PROKEE®s are high
strength, plastic composite keys containing nonvolatile,
read/write memory chips, which can be encoded with
confidential information to control access to dispensers
and streamline product transaction data.

FuelMaster®s patented radio frequency tag system
takes driver data entry out of the information collection
equation. The odometer or chronometer data, along with
other information is automatically collected by the island
fuel management unit without driver effort. An AlM (auto-
motive information module) unit is installed on the equip-
mentand collects and stores information and sends it to the
fuel managementunitby RF during fueling operations. This
system works concurrently with the use of PROKEE®s or
| smart cards so that the (AIM) units may be added to equip-
ment currently using electronic read/write access devices.

The FuelMaster® 2500 Plus’ capabilities to support self-
serve retail applications have also been increased. As
well as being on an ever increasing number of credit card
networks, prepaid smart cards and PROKEE®s can be
issued to customers. The system operator may also enter
up to 300 credit card numbers of repeat customers with a
specified discount for each. The Plus system also returns
more credit card information and settle-up data to the PC
software for easier tracking of fuel purchases.The ability
to price fuel at multiple remote sites has been enhanced
to ensure you're in control of your fuel.

Areal-time, on-site journal printer can provide hard copy
backups of all transactions. A receipt printer is also
| available.

FuelMaster® is a leader in the alternative fuels arena...

from CNG to E85! FuelMaster® can control and measure
any liquid or gaseous fuel. Leaders in the alternative fuels

field chose FuelMaster® because of its refiability and ease |

of maintenance.

Based on odometer/hour readings, the system calculates
vehicle efficiency and fuel consumption and alerts the driver
and supervisor to maintenance requirements.

The addition of a tank monitor interface kit pemits
automatic reconciliation of tank levels with FuelMaster®'s
declining balance. FuelMaster® interfaces with most popu-
lar tank monitors.

The FuelMaster® system may be expanded to control an
almost limitless number of fueling sites. Each site consists
of a master unit with up to eight satellites.

FuelMaster® is warranted for one year from date of instal-
lation or fifteen months from date of shipment.

Modular design and construction ensure reliability and
ease of maintenance of your FuelMaster® Fuel Manage-
ment System. Site operators can quickly and easily change-
out modular components, if necessary, with the assistance
of FuelMaster® technicians.

The central controller (a PC operating on Windows 98 or
higher) generates comprehensive transaction reports and
invoices,

Transaction data can be easily exported to most fleet main-
tenance programs.

If you are looking for reliability and flexibility, look no further. The purchase price is only part of what you pay for a
fuel management system. Repairs and system downtime also cost you money, making reliability a key ingredient in
achieving return on your investment. We encourage you to talk with FuelMastser® owners, particularly those who have
previously used other brands of fuel management.

REV. 11/05



HDP075 Autogas Pump

Ideal for High Differential Pressure (HDP) Applications

Variable Frequency Drive

)

Svitable for Aboveground and Underground Tank
Applications...

In our continuous effort to meet the demands of high pressure fueling systems,
the 075 autogas pump is designed for high differential pressure applications
with a lower flow rate and horsepower than the model 150. The 075 is mounted
above ground and is a great choice for single or dual hose applications.

Dispenser & Meter
ump

Options Available For Single and Three Phase
Electrical Sources...

Whether you are using single or three phase electricity, Corken has an autogas
package for your application. If you have single phase electricity, you will use
our optional variable frequency drive (VFD) package.

If your business uses three phase electricity, you will use our standard
autogas package with a typical wiring configuration.

Variable Frequency Drive (VFD) Has Many
Features and Benefifs...
» Easilv converts single phiase source to three phase service.

+ Improves motor efficiency and reduces power consumption—draws less
amperage than'a 5 HP single phase motor.

¢ Slow start-up feature climinates flow surges.

* Variable motor speed capability maximizes pump performance.

* Includes motor overload profection to minimize potential damage.
. ﬁhlpped pre-programmed at 60 Hz with 4 second ramp-up speed.

ctic starter is not required so your installation costs are minimized.
o Standard remote switch available.

Such as Liquid Fuel Injection Vehicles

Variable Frequency Drive

Bypass Valve Meter

TN
R -,

Pump

Serviceability is Simple and Cost Effective...

Unlike submersible designs, the model 075 is mounted aboveground so
there is no need to disturb the piping. It has fewer wear parts than the
competition and all parts are easily accessed by simply removing the pump
head. These features allow you to quickly service the pump on site and
minimize costly downtime thereby making the model 075 autogas pump a
cost effective alternative,

Available HDP Packages

& {
=

ST R
< / Bypass Variable
7//"/ Valve Frequency
Autogas Pump with Drive

Electric Motor

Standard Package
includes:

« FF/DLF075 autogas pump
» Electric motor (7.5 hp)

* Bypass valve

* Baseplate (FF075 only)

Optional Variable
Frequency Drive (VFD)
Package Includes:

+ Variable frequency drive (VFD)
+ FF/DLF075 autogas pump

+ Electric motor (7.5 hp)

* Bypass valve
* Baseplate (FF075 only)

Solutions beyond products...

= CORKEN



Continuous Duty Design...

Built for continuous duty service, the model 075 autogas pump
incorporates heavy duty bearings, free floating impeller, a single
mechanical seal, ANSI or DIN flange connections, metric fasteners, and
a ductile iron case.

Operating Specifications ~ Performance Curves

Multiple Mounting Options...

The model 075 autogas pump is available with two mounting options. You
may select a [rame mount (FF075) for direct or belt drive configurations
or a direct mount (DLF075) that bolts to a standard C-Face 50 Hz (2880
RPM) or 60 Hz (3450 RPM) motor.

. 3450 RPM @ €0 Hz

= ,, psl bar tp Ll
Inlet: 1-1/2" ANSI 3004 RF 200§ 140 ‘ T as a7 Differential pressure:
(DIN opt.) ! : 85 10.0 bar
Outlet: 1" ANSI 300# RF 1754 12.0 - B0 587 145.0 pS|
(DIN opt.) N : 12
RPM: 3450 @ 60 Hz, (. ™ i 74 1822 Flow:
2880 @ 50 Hz 5 ' . o Lty
Max. working pressure: 3 E i Ml 55 M £20h
400 psig (27.6 bar) & : — :f Toe 2 Power required:
Maximum driver: £ L, ol . 5.59 kW
20 hp (15 kW) I ¥ N v H 7.5 hp
Max. differential pressure: 8 & s 30 t224
150 psig (10.3 bar) @ 50 Hz gE 4 i 3 O 25 Curves based on LPG?
200 psig (13.6 bar) @ 60 Hz ' ; 20 a0 Capacity ==
Temperature range: 254 20 to Lo Power required == =
-25° to 225°F (-32° to 107°C) - 05 -
; oL a - The performance curves are
Flow range: % 0 40 e el 100 120 10 160 ! based on aboveground LPG instal-
10-40 gpm . N yc4min " lations. Performance curves for
(37.9 to 151.4 L/min) 0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 underground LPG tanks will vary
gpm based on the specific mstallation.
Capacily Consult factory.
Outline Dimensions for HDPFF075-101 Mounting
5-11/32___4-13/16 .
(13.57) T (12.23) Electric
A B motor driver
Inlet Inlet Coupli ﬂ
D oupling N =,
guard
1GN N :
7 !
« ”’Q E . \
3
Q )/J (7.62) 4
is) th 1 - ) i
o 24—t i15 24 qn 12 14 1-9/16
’ 15 : (3.81) (3.17) (3.97) 31-1/2
(38.10) (80.01) 4,
Four 1/2" (1.27) (86.36)

anchor bolts

All dimensions are in inches (centimeters).

QUALITY

1ISO 9001

SYSTEM

AG102A

Visit our website at http://www.corken.com * E-mail us at info.corken@idexcorp.com

Flange Dimensions C Dimensions Ali Models
Model A (inlet) B (outlet) 182T-215T Frame 12-3/4" (32.40)
FF075 1-1/2" ANSI 300# 1" ANSI 300# 254T-256T Frame 13-3/4" (34.94)
FD075 | DIN 2635, 40 PN, 40 mm | DIN 2635, 40 PN, 25 mm

Solutions beyond products...

= CORKEN

ENVIRONMENTAL

1SO 14001
MANAGEMENT
SYSTEM

Corken, Inc. » A Unit of IDEX Corporation
9201 North L-35 Service Road, Oklahoma City, OK. 73131 US.A,
Phone (405) 946-5576 « FAX (405) 948-7343

PRINTED iN THE USA
SEPTEMBER 2010



ESTIMATE YOUR
POWER NEEDS.

KEEP YOUR
POWER ON

Even When the Power’s Out.

Here's a quick lool to “ballpark™ Lhe right size KOHLER, Our high-quality power output protects your
sensitive electronics from erratic power surges.

generator for your home or business. The best way to

delemmine your specific powar needs is lo ask your

Every KOHLER generator features a heavy-duty

engine built to exceed the demands of

your electrical foad and specify and install the proper standby power.

generator professional 1o perform a site survey to analyze

genaerator system
You get our 5-year, limited, 2,000-hour pratection,

YYaur Electrical plus a carrosion-proof enclosure that's built to last.*

Furnace Fan [T i .

Wedrignratai/

it " . .

Sump Purp . . " When it comes to backup pawer, you have

Lighting 2 x x two choices.

Well Pump . ‘ .

Tetevislon/Hadia ' . v

Computer x * ' Ideal for backing up your home

g;mge Daar :; 3 & For groater Automaticaily starts and restores power in

s e e seconds, whether you're home or away
Security System = = | Jarger homes Powers your entire home
Ci " . o sl "
entral Alr System sl Mo efusling—runs on your home's natural

Wator Heater “ . or LP gas

Washing Maching X x

Electric Range . "

Clothas Dryer M

Dishwashar . Designed for job sites, camping, tallgating and

oA it . other mobile activities

Tazator Gumn . NORTH AMERICA

[ — ' and lamps, with extension cords 300.544.2444

Fugilamans | Runs on gasoline, propane or natural gas

KOHLERGENERATORS.COM

Ties =iy {l ] DI ERE R - mHLER PRINTED INUUS A
1 rn) your s; o f5 8t conmall i chezd cleoinz) . WEBLIGY 12428 7120 .

e e e o b g e IN POWER. SINGE 1920, 2020 KOHLER CO IN POWER. SINCE 1928.



FIND YOUR
PERFECT
GENERATOR.

AW

13 W,

1= AW

Model # BRESY 4BRGLE KG80R KG100R KG1250 150ERESC
Ratad Powor LPG/NG a7 swa0 A0 1507120 105/125 134141
Voltage @ 60 Hz 5 3

Single-Phase 120/0) 1200240

;::;I:':ﬁﬂa LEH 4292 | A.17375 ' 5058 I 5048 | sws0 83175 10087 125128 I 158153 [ 260/200 | 250/250 3347334 17417 A5 557(800
Engine/Alternator pm izl 1800

Threa-Phasa Avaifabl o [ Yes Yes

597 cc 725 e 725 ce 999 cc 221 221 Twba 621 6.2 L Turbe 8BL Turbo
148 hp o14mp 236 0y 09 np 35 np &4 np T mm 103 np 133 0p 173 o T 201 np 259 np
Py KOHLER N "Df‘f’zm KOHLER KOHLER KOHLER KOHLER
Engine b SVET0 7000 Berfes °""““C"H740 Command PRQ [{HAGH KG22n4T KGE208 KOHLER KOR208 TA Turbincharmad / ARercookd GM Yortee B L
4 OHY KT725 OHv QHV CH1006 ety Aspirated Turbe Haturally Aspiiarad
Singie Cyinoer VT in-Lina V3
Hydraulic Valva Lifters Hydraulk: Vakve Littars

Peak Motar Starting kVA

at 240 V: (35% dip far 182 11 <3 a1 37 13 7q 1m 134 217 $a0

voltages balow)

Fuat LPGING LPGNG

Engine Coaling AfCooleq) Uiquid-Coalss

Canosion- Corrosion- 100%
Enclosure Corrosion-Resistant Sleel Rasistant Cormsion-Pionfl Reststant Canoslon-Proal Gorrasinn-Resistant Alyminum Cormston-aastant Sieel (Alurmmum akte Avaitahiv
Ayrinum mpnsite Auminn | Gamposita

Single-Paint Sound Outaut

dBA at 23 ft (during exercise/ faEe 54%9 « EETSS s€1 5180 5461 58159 ae6a )
rormal operation)”

Dimensions 2830 1 32 4av2ax32 [47x28%22 | #0x26x29 | 47x36x02 | anxzexac 234 25 90 %33 x 47 109 % 45 x 66

Digitat Voltage Rogutation - 105 4= 15% w1 Y5k 05

Response Time 10 Secons 12 Saconds

Warranty §-yaar Lindad® | 34 Linited S-Yaar Liniad
2arncs. e

Lt of e <owes oo N Dverad capacty % 306ch L &1 W3 27 FaLTgS F FLacenance Al
'Srgis pon

o Tho
~ 45,1 GSE14 ASETE anaDP G20

y B o
V5-yeur WYy 8 0 . N Ik ) MU B 10 150K

0OnCue, Plus Generator
Management System

Peace of mind in the palm of your

hand Whether you're home or on the
ga. OnCus Plus lets you monitor your
generator system fram your mobile
davice or computer, sithar Mac® or PC,
and get instant updates vla text ar email

1ZRES and | 2AEEA er 14FICA oo,
W

Power everything

Only Koher has PowerBoost. technology.
With PowerBoost. KOHLER generators
can pover your antire home In 10 seconds
or less, Wae're talking heat, AC. fridge.
freezer. sump pump, sacurity system—you
name it —without dropping powar:
St P A 10120 14 na 20W

R p

— Power Relay Module
Lets you manage higher electrical
foads by prioritizing the clrcults that
cycla on and off (based on load size)
to prevent overloading.

RXT Automatic Transfer Switches
Requlred with every generator, tha transtar
switch automaticaliy transfers powsr from
the utility to the generator—and back to the
utility when pewer is restorad, An optional
exterlor display lets you chack the system
status remotaty




GENERATORS

Standby and Portable Full Line

KOHLER.

IN POWER. SINCE 1920.




Whether it’s a severe storm or utility failure, KOHLER. generators keep your home

or business comfortable, safe and secure. And when you're out camping or tailgating,

reliable power is just as important. With Kohler, you'll find power options for every

need. Choose from a portable generator or a portable generator combined with a

manual transfer switch or an automatic standby generator. The best part—KOHLER

generators and power equipment are priced to fit your budget.

STANDBY GENERATOR

Ideal for backing up your home

Automatically starts and restores power
in seconds, whether you're home or away

Powers your home including critical hardwired
systems like AC, heat, sump pumps, well
pumps, security systems and large appliances

Permanently and professionally installed outdoors

No refueling—runs on your building’s natural
gas (NG) or liquid propane gas (LPG)

Delivers high-quality power—won’t harm
your electronics

2 / Standby vs. Portable Generator

PORTABLE GENERATOR

Designed for job sites, camping, tailgating
and other mobile activities

Powers individual items like plug-in appliances,
saws and drills, and lamps with extension cords

Powers hardwired items through an optional
manual transfer switch

Runs on gasoline, propane or natural gas

Is operated outdoors using careful
safety guidelines



HOW GENERATORS WORK
WHEN THE POWER GOES OUT

Standby Generator with
Automatic Transfer Switch

A professional must
install the generator
and transfer switch.

Portable Generator with
Manual Transfer Switch

BEFORE THE POWER GOES OUT

A professional will install

a manual transfer switch
and power inlet box to back
up hardwired items and
critical circuits.

Portable Generator
with Extension Cords

Ensure you have outdoor-
rated extension cords,
fuel and a well-ventilated
location far from windows,
doors and vents in the
event of an outage.

After installation, the
automatic transfer switch
(ATS) works 24/7 to monitor
the electricity coming from
the utility. When needed, the
ATS will signal the generator
to start. In seconds, the ATS
transfers power from the
utility to the generator.

Your generator supplies
your home or business
with electricity until utility
power is restored.

WHEN THE POWER FAILS

Move your portable generator
at least 10 feet away from the
outdoor power inlet box in a
well-ventilated location. Add
gasoline to the generator.

Plug your portable generator
into the power inlet box,
start the generator and flip
the switch—no extension
cords necessary.

Move your portable generator
outdoors to a well-ventilated
outdoor location. Add
gasoline to the generator.

Safely run outdoor-rated
extension cords from the
generator to the appliances
you want to power.

WHEN UTILITY POWER IS RESTORED

The ATS automatically
transfers power from the
generator to the utility.

The generator automatically
shuts down, ready for the
next power outage.

Flip the switch back to
utility power, shut down the
generator and disconnect
the power cord.

Store generator properly
when not in use.

Power down the generator
and disconnect
the extension cords.

Store generator properly
when not in use.

Standby vs. Portable Generator /3




4/ Standby Generators

STANDBY GENERATORS

The answer to Mother Nature’s mood swings.

Keep your groceries cold, your basement dry and your family

comfortable. Whatever the weather’s doing doesn't matter. When

a bad storm or utility failure knocks out your power, your KOHLER.

generator keeps you connected to what you love to do.

Your KOHLER standby generator is installed outside your home or

business like an air-conditioning unit. It's wired into the electrical panel

and fuel system, so it comes on automatically during a power outage.

Why Kohler?

We have a PhD in power

In just 10 seconds, KOHLER
standby generators can
automatically power your
AC, heat, sump pump and
major appliances like your
fridge and oven—all at the
same time.”

We eat, sleep and
breathe quality

Every KOHLER generator is
meticulously quality-tested,
start to finish. Once the
design passes our inspection,
it's ready for production.
Before it leaves our factory,
we put it through its paces
one more time. The result

is total reliability.

We back you with
a long warranty

You get our five-year, 2,000-
hour limited warranty, plus
a corrosion-proof enclosure
that’s built to last.t

We're trusted everywhere

Hospitals, nuclear power
plants and even the National
Weather Service trust in
hardworking, long-lasting
KOHLER generators.

We’'re 100 years
old. And only getting
better with age

We built our first generator in
1920. Since then we've had
one simple goal: Build the
best generators in the world.

We build them to
outlast the outage

Every KOHLER generator
features a heavy-duty engine
built to exceed the demand
of standby power.

Genuine Parts

KOHLER aftermarket parts and
consumables are specifically
designed for your KOHLER
generator to keep it operating
at peak performance.

‘Based on generator and load size

T14RESA and 20RESC models feature corrosion-praof enclosures; all other models feature corrasion-resistant enclosures



Standby Generator Accessories

Paired with our durable and reliable standby generators, KOHLER. generator

accessories help you communicate with your system remotely, protect in adverse

weather conditions and maintain your generator for peak performance.

OnCue, Plus Generator
Management System

Peace of mind in the palm

of your hand. Whether you're
home or on the go, OnCue
Plus lets you monitor your
generator system from your
mobile device or computer,
either Mac® or PC, and get
instant updates via

text or email.

Power Relay Module

Lets you manage higher
electrical loads by prioritizing
the circuits that cycle on and
off (based on load size) to
prevent overloading—allowing
a smaller generator to run
your home.

RXT and RDT Automatic
Transfer Switches

Required with every
generator, the transfer switch
automatically transfers

power from the utility to the
generator — and back to the
utility when power is restored.
An optional exterior display
lets you check the system
status remotely.

6VSG Generator

Used for renewable energy such as solar power and remote applications.
This battery-charging generator efficiently charges battery banks when energy

sources can’t keep up with demand.

PowerSynce Automatic
Paralleling Module (APM)

Runs one generator when
power requirements are
low; automatically starts,
syncs and connects your
second generator when
power demand increases.
Requires two 14RESA or
20RESC models.

Programmable
Interface Module (PIM)

Lets you turn on critical
items like storm shutters
or a security system when
you're away (when used
with OnCue Plus).

Concrete Pads

Optional concrete pads are
available in 3- and 4-inch
models for KOHLER air-cooled
generators.”

‘Photo shows a generator sitting on concrete pad




Find Your Standby Generator

Model #

Rated Power LPG/NG
Voltage @ 60 Hz
Single-Phase

Amps LPG/NG @ 240V
Single-Phase

Engine/Alternator rpm

Three-Phase Available

Engine

Peak Motor Starting kVA
at 240 V: (35% dip for
voltages below}

Fuel
Engine Cooling

Enclosure

Single-Point Sound
Output dBA at 23 ft
(during exercise/normai
operation)!

Dimensions
Digital Voltage Regulation

Response Time
Warranty

10RESV 12RESV 12RES 14RESA 20RESC
8/7 10/9 12/11 12/10.4 20/18 24/21
120/240
33.3/29,2 41.7/37.5 5/45.8 5043 58/50 83/75 100/87
3600
No | Yes
597 cc 725 ce 725 co 999 cc 22L
14.8 hp 21.4 hp 236 hp 30.9 tip 39 hp
KOHLER
KOHLER KOHLER KOHLER
Olﬁ?/%lz/%go 7000 Series C%’E’\?%‘SZEO Command PRO KG2204
OHV KT725 OHV CH1000 Naturally Aspirated
Single Cylinder V-Twin
Hydraulic Valve Lifters
16.8 32 33 41 37
LPG/NG
Air-Cooled
Carrosion- 100% Corrosion- 100%
Carrosion-Resistant Steel Resistant Corrosion-Proof Resistant Corrosion-Proof
Aluminum Composite Aluminum Composite
63/68 64/69 63 58/63 62/67 53/60
28 x 30 x 32 44 %29 x 32 47 x 26 x 32 48 x 26 x 29 47 x 26 x 32 | 48 x 26 x 29
+/- 1.0% +/-1.5% +/-1.0%
10 Seconds

5-year Limited®

RATINGS: Standby ratings apply 1o installations served by a reliable utility source. All single-phase units are rated at 1.0 power factor. The standby rating Is applicable to variable loads with

an average load factor of 80% for the duration of the power outage. No overload capacity is specified at tius rating. Ratings are in accordance with ISO—3046/1, BS5514, AS2789 and DIN 6271
"B-point logarithmic average 'Single-point sound levels are the lowest of 8 paint measured around the generator, 14RCA and 20RCA sound levels are measured at the front of the generator
Actual sound levels may vary based on installation parameters. “Non-standby warranty of 18 months ar 1000 hours available on 6VSG, 12RES, 14RCA and 14RESA

6 / Find Your Standby Generator



P . JE et % =
Coming Soon Coming Soon

38RCLB 48RCLB 60RCLA KG100R KG125R 150ERESC
‘ 30/30 38/38 48/48 60/60 100/100 106/125 134/144
120/240
125/125 158/158 200/200 250/250 334/334 417/417 438/521 567/600
1800
Yes
2.2 L Turbo 6.2 L 6.2 L Turbo 8.8 L Turbo
64 hp 75 bp 103 hp I 133 hp 173 hp 201 hp 259 hp
KOHLER KOHLER
KG2204T KG6208 KOHLER KG6208 TA Turbocharged / Aftercooled GM Vortec 8.8L
Turbo Naturally Aspirated
In-Line 4 V-8
Hydraulic Valve Lifters
44 74 113 e 237 440
LPG/NG
Liquid-Cooled
Corrosion-Resistant Aluminum Corrosion-resistant Steel (Aluminum also Available)
54/61 58/59 68/69 70/73
74 x 34 x 45 90x 33 x 47 139 x 45 x 66
+/-1.0% +/-0.5%
10 Seconds
5-Year Limited 5-Year Limited®

RATINGS: Standby ratings appiy to installations served by a reliable utility source. All single-phase units are rated at 1.0 power factor. The standby rating is applicable to variable loads with an
average load factor of 80% for the duration of the power outage. No overioad capacity is specified at this rating. Ratings are In accordance with ISO--3046/1. BS5514, AS2789 and DIN 6271.
‘8-point logarithmic average “Single-point sound levels are the lowest of 8 pont measured around the generator 14RCA and 20RCA sound levels are measured at the front of the generatar
Actual sound levels may vary based on installation parameters. *5-year warranty is an included option for quick-ship 80- to 150-kW models

Find Your Standby Generator /7



PORTABLE GENERATORS

Take your power anywhere you want.

KOHLER, portable generators give you
the portable power you need where you
need it most—whether you're bracing

for a windstorm at home, tailgating at
the game or camping in the middle of
nowhere. We're talking generator models
from 1.8 to 12.3 kW and our U-Specs
custom accessory system that lets you
customize your portable generators

exactly as you want them.

Why KOHLER?

Reliability

KOHLER portable generators
are extensively quality-tested
before model release and
before leaving the factory—
for proven reliability.

Long Warranty

You get our three-year
limited warranty.

Free Loaner Program

If a KOHLER portable
generator ever goes down,
one of our select dealers
will provide a free loaner
unit for warranty repairs
exceeding 24 hours.!

8 / Portable Generators

PRO6.4E

Long Runtimes

Big fuel tanks mean long
runtimes and less refueling.

Rock-Solid Engines

KOHLER engines are built

to perform in the toughest
environments—from the
KOHLER Command PROs
to our quiet-running diesel to
the Command PRO EFi with
fuel-saving technology.

Protective Features

Automatic voltage regulation
keeps power output clean
to run equipment safely.

Ground-fault circuit
interrupter protects
equipment from faulty
current.

Accu-Fille provides safe, easy
refilling—and less spilling—
with its angled fuel inlet.
Maintenance Minder displays
hours of runtime and lights

up to remind you of oil, spark
plug and filter changes.

OSHA-compliant.

*90-day limited warranty on the enCUBE.1.8 and GEN5.0 when used in a commercial setting
'On PRO generator models at participating dealers, based on availability.



Find Your Portable Generator

INVERTER GENERATORS
enCURE* PRO9.0E PRO2.3EF1
1.8-kW 5-kW 6.4-kW 6.4-kW 9.0-kw 9.0-kW ; 12.3-kW
Battery Consumer Professional Professtonal Professional Professional Professional
DESCRIPTION nverter generator generator e-start generator e-start e-start
generator generator generator
MAX POWER (watts) 1800 5000 6400 6400 9000 8000 12,300
CONTINUQUS POWER (watts) 1440 4300 5200 5200 7200 7200 10,500
STARTING TYPE PowerButton | Recoil Recoil EIGS g Recoll Eiggyios ESEHs +
Recoil Recoil Recoil
ENGINE DISPLACEMENT {cu infcc) NA 16.9/277 16.9/277 16.9/277 26.2 /429 26.2 /429 42.4 /694
FUEL TYPE Solar Gasoline Gasoline Gasoline Gasoline Gasoline Gasoline
FUEL TANK CAPAGITY (gal/t) NA 8.0/30.2 8.0/30.2 8.0/30.2 8.0/30.2 8.0/30.2 8.7/32.9
Varies based
RUNTIME AT 50% LOAD (hrs) on eguip- 16.5 15 15 1l =] 10
ment
DRY WEIGHT {Ib/kg) 109/49.4 180/ 82 174 /79 198 /90 202 /92 218/99 306 /139
DIMENSIONS Lx W x H in 115x140x220 | 29.4x21.4x223 | 294x214x220 | 204%x214x22.3 | 294x21.4x228 | 29.4x214x223 352%224x303

{mmj} {292 x 356 x 559) (746 X 543 x 566) | (746 x 543 % 5661 | (746 x 543 x 568} {746 x 543 x 566) {746 x 543 x 566| {894 x 568 x 769)

@ 120V 15 AMP 2
NEMAB-20
@ 120V (20 AMP) K ¢ i 4 4 4
NEMA L5-30
@ 120V (30 AMP) 1 : 1 1 1
NEMA L14-20 1
120/240 V (20 AMP)
NEMA L14-30 1 1 1 1 1
120/240 V (30 AMP)
@ TWIST-LOCK J
120/240 V (50 AMP)
12VDC
(8.3 AMP) 1 1 1
lP 5V DC USB PORTS 2
O 12V CAR CHARGER 2
AUTO-IDLE DOWN B . .
ACCU-FILL . . . . ° -
MAINTENANCE MINDER ° . . .
LOW-0IL SHUTDOWN (Oil Sentryn,) . . ° ° ° s
COMMERCIAL / CONSUMER WARRANTY 90days/3yr | 80days/3yr | 3yr/3 yr 3yr/3yr 3yr/3yr 3yr/3yr 3yr/3yr

*Available in Canada

Find Your Portable Generator /9



Portable Generator Accessories

Manual Transfer Switch

The Manual Transfer Switch connects to your
home's circuit panel so you can use your
KOHLER portable generator for home backup
power. When the power goes out, plug your
portable generator into the connection box,
start the generator and flip the switch.

No cords, no hassles.

THE BENEFITS OF TRI-FUEL
REGULATOR KITS:

Ultimate Flexibility and Convenience

Choose your fuel source—gasoline, propane
or natural gas. When plugged into your home's
natural gas or propane ling, you never need

to refuel.

Full Warranty Support

When installed by an authorized KOHLER
dealer, the Tri-Fuel Regulator Kit keeps your
generator warranty intact, unlike aftermarket
kits which void your warranty.

Earth-Friendly

Propane is odorless and nontoxic.
Clean-burning natural gas and propane
cost less than gasoline and help reduce
harmful carbon emissions.

With no engine or need for fuel, enCUBE. battery inverter is

a clean power source with zero emissions, which means it can
be used indoors. It charges through a 120-V AC wall outlet

or optional solar panel (sold separately) and is perfect for
camping, tailgating or temporary outages at home. Built-in
wheels and telescopic handles make it incredibly portable.

6-Circuit Manual
Transfer Switch

Tri-Fuel Propane Hose
(sold separately)

Tri-Fuel Regulator Kit Tri-Fuel Natural Gas Hose

{sold separatsly)

enCUBE battery inverter with 60-watt solar pane!



U-SPEC. GUSTOM ACCESSORY SYSTEM

PORTABLE GENERATORS

A. LIFTING KIT B : s . .
B. AUTO-LOCKING HAND TRUCK HANDLEKITS | o . . . . |

C. WHEELBARROW HANDLE KIT . x * * « : 5 =

D. EXTENSION CORD MANAGEMENT KIT . . J 5 3 3 | 3 ’ F

E. LEGKIT - - . " s . | .

F. WHEEL KIT : * i 7 g 3 | 0 C

G. 12-V BATTERY CHARGER 5 . A :

H. HOSE KIT . ] 2 1 .
I. ISOLATOR KIT . ‘ R . = = . -

J. MOBILITY KITS . ] S
K. TRI-FUEL KITS ‘ .

L. WIRELESS REMOTE . . 1

Not pictured below: G through L
“Standard features available on all -3002 models

CUSTOM OPTIONS—-AND LOTS OF THEM.

We know every job and every job site are different. That's why we offer the U-Spec custom accessory system. It lets
you build your generator or pump just the way you want it, with more custom configurations than anyone else.

U-Spec Accessories / 11



North America 800.544.2444

KOHLER@ KOHLERGENERATORS.COM

IN POWER. SINCE 1920. PRINTEDINUS A 026843-01 G12-458  7/20

© 2020 BY KOHLER CO



Alliance
AutoGas

www.bluestargas.com
(833) 4BLU STAR

value@bluestargas.com

Portland Refueling Location Guide

. Blue Star Gas McMinnville Co.

3070 NE Hwy 99 W
Mcidinnville, OR 97128

. Blue Star Gas Salem Co.

3837 Portland Rd. NE
Salem, OR 97301

- Blue Star Gas Eugene Co.

61 5 Danabo Ave
Eugene, OR 97402

. Roadrunner Gas & Grocery

52023 Columbia River Hwy
Scappoose, OR 97056

.Dollar Park N Fly

6455 NE 82nd Ave.
Portland, OR 97220

. Prescott Chevron

4513 NE 102nd Ave,
Portland, OR 97220

. Fastrak Fuel Mart

2431 NE Broadway St.
Portland, OR 97232

8. Mission Street Sheli

2220 Mission St.

Salem, OR 97302
Access 1o this location requires
additional advance setup

Locations Not On Map

Blue Star Gas Coast Co.
16160 Hwy 101 South
Brookings, OR 97415

Biue Star Gas Medford Co.
6096 Crater Lake Ave,
Central Point, Or. 97502

«(Z PROPANE

CLEAN AMERICAN ENERGY*




Alliance AllaGas Network Partner

Alliance
AutoGas

Refueling Location Guide Overview

ARIZONA NEVADA
Super Shuttie Las Vegas
3564 W Naples Dr.
Las Vegas, NV 839103

Blue Star Gas Pheoenix Co.
447 W Watkins St. Suite #1
Phoenix, AZ 85003
Chevron Gas Station OREGON
4737 E Broadway Rd,

Phoenix, AZ 85040 Blue Star Gas Coast Co.

161G0 Hwy 101 Scuth

Ideal Fleet Service Brookings, OR 97415

4610 S 35th St

Phoenix, AZ 85040 Blue Star Gas Eugene Co.

61 S Danebo Ave

McDowell Rd Chevron Eugene, OR 97402

4352 E McDowell

Phoenix, AZ 85008
3070 NE Hwy 99 W

Speed Mart Gas Station McMinnville, OR 97128

2402 E Washington

FPhoenix. AZ 85034
6096 Crater Lake Ave

Chevron Gas Station Central Point, OR 97502

9080 W Olive Ave

Peoria, AZ 85345 Blue Star Gas Salem Co.

3837 Portland Rd. NE
CALIFORNIA Salem, OR 97301
Dollar Park N Fly
6455 NE 82nd Ave
Paortland, OR 97220

Blue Star Gas Santa Rosa Co.
880 N Wright Rd
Santa Rosa, CA 95407

Fastrak Fuel Mart
24317 NE Broadway St
Portland, OR 97232

Renner Petroleum
76 Bear Canyon Rd
Garberville, CA 95542

Blue Star Gas McMinnville Co.

Blue Star Gas Medford Co.

OREGON {continued) UTAH (continued)

State Trailer Supply

3088 Washington Blvd
Ogden, UT 84401

Mission St. Shell
2220 Mission St.
Salem, OR 87302

VIP Car Wash #1
1075 Redwood Rd
Sailt Lake City, UT 84104

Prescott Chevron
4513 NE 102nd Ave
Portland, OR 97220
Roadrunner Gas & Grocery WASHINGTON
52023 Columbia River Hwy

Scappoose, OR 37056 Around The Sound

TransPro
8825 183rd Way SW

UTAH
Rochester, WA 88579

Bilue Star Gas Salt Lake City Co.
3525 West California Ave
Salt Lake City, UT 84104

Ballinger Chevron
20330 15th Ave NE
Shoreline, WA 88155

Diamond Rental
240 W 8400 S
Sandy, UT 84070

Blue Star Gas Seattle Co.
10802 E Marginal Way Sao.
Tukwila, VWA 98168

JP’'s Car Care
1350 E 700 S
Clearfieid, UT 84015

Blue Star Gas Seattle Co.
15838 International Bivd
Tukwila, VWA 98188

KOA Campground
1400 West North Temple
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Bremerton Kitsap Airporter
5748 Bethel Rd SE
Port Orchard, WA 98366

Riverside Automotive
125 E Riverside Drive
St George, UT 84730

Everett Sheil Station
9640 Evergreen Way
Everett, VWA 98204

State Trailer Supply
3600 Redwood Rd
West Valley City, UT 84119

Kent Shell Station
1133 W James St.
Kent, VWA 98032

WASHINGTON (sontinusd)

King City Truck Stop
2100 E Hillsboro Street
Pasco, VWA 98301

Kirkland 76 Station
12235 NE 116 St
Kirkland, VWA 98034

Point S Tire & Auto
Service
3151 Goldie Rd
Ozk Harbor, WA 98277

Scouthcenter Chevron
16200 West Valley Hwy
Tukwila, WA 98188

South Park Shell
9525 14th Ave South
Seattie, WA 98108

Tacoma 76 Station
1302 Puyallup Ave
Tacoma, VWA 98421

University 76 Station
5100 25th Ave NE
Seattle, WA 38145

Vanderyacht Propane
1636 Walton Drive
Burlington, VWA 88233

PROPANE

GLEAN AMEMICAN ENERGY™

&




Blossman Services, Inc., Warranty
Terms and Conditions

DEFINITIONS ‘

Administrator........... refers to Blossman Services, Inc.

Coverage.................. refers to the component protection You have been provided as shown on the Warranty
Registration Document
Failure..........c............ Failure is defined as a Failure of a defective part or faulty workmanship as supplied by

the Manufacturer or Distributor, but does not include gradual reduction in operating
performance due to wear or tear or damage resulting from Failure of non-covered parts.

Warranty................ refers to this Warranty provided by Us to protect Your Unit.

We, Us, Our............. refers to the entity who is obligated to perform under this Warranty, as indicated on the
Warranty Registration Document.

You, Your ................. refers to the Warranty holder named on the Warranty Registration Document or the person to
whom this Warranty was properly transferred.

Unit ..........................refers to the Unit which is described on the Warranty Registration Document, which cannot be

used for rental, or for-hire purposes.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The following represents the Coverage, What to do in the Event of a Failure and Exclusions of Your Warranty. This
document is an Application for the Warranty and does not constitute a Warranty until accepted by Administrator.
1.WARRANTY PERIOD:

Coverage under this Warranty begins immediately and will expire three (3) years from the start date or 36,000 miles
from the odometer miles at the start date, whichever occurs first, as shown on the Warranty Registration
Document.

NOTE: Warranty expiration is measured from the installation date.

2. FAILURE OF COVERED PARTS: We will pay or reimburse You for reasonable costs to repair or replace any
Failure of a part included in Your Coverage. Replacement parts may be new, remanufactured or replacement parts of
like kind and quality, at the discretion of Administrator

3. TERRITORY: This Warranty is limited to Failures which occur, and repairs that are made, within the United States
of America and Canada.

4. LIMIT OF LIABILITY: The aggregate Limit of Liability for the term of this Warranty shall not exceed the actual cash
value of the components covered under this Warranty.

5. OUR RIGHT TO RECOVERY: If We pay anything under this Warranty and You have a right to recover from
another party, Your rights will become Our rights up to the amount We paid. You will do whatever is necessary to
enable Us to enforce these rights.

6. TRANSFER RIGHTS: This Warranty is for the benefit of the original Warranty holder and is transferable subject to a
transfer fee and inspection providing:

a) Proof of transfer of the remaining manufacturer’s warranty is provided, if applicable.

b) Warranty is being transferred to a subsequent private purchaser of Your Unit. (Transfer rights are voided when
Unit is either traded, sold or put on consignment to an individual or entity engaged in the wholesale or retail sale,
leasing or rental of Units.)

You must submit the following:

a) Transfer application (Available from Administrator).

b) Bill of sale showing sale date and mileage at time of sale.

c) $50.00 Transfer fee made payable to the Administrator within thirty (30) days of the transfer of Unit ownership.

7. MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS: You must maintain Your Unit according to the manufacturers
recommendations as outlined in the owner's manual. Your owner's manual has separate required maintenance
schedules for “normal” and “more severe" operating conditions. You are required to follow the maintenance schedule
that applies to Your conditions. You must be sure only the proper grade of lubricants and coolants, as recommended
by the manufacturer, is used in Your Unit. It is necessary for You to retain verifiable receipts for all parts and materials
necessary to perform the required maintenance. If necessary, this documentation will be verified by the Administrator.
8. ARBITRATION: If We and You do not agree on the settlement of any claim, either party may make a written request
for arbitration. In this event, each party shall select an arbitrator. The two arbitrators shall select a third. If they cannot
agree on a third within thirty (30) days, either may request that the selection be made by a judge of a court having
jurisdiction. Each party shall pay the expenses they incur, and bear the expenses of the third party arbitrator equally. A
decision agreed to by any two of the arbitrators shall be binding on both parties.



WHAT TO DO IN THE EVENT OF A FAILURE

1. Prevent Further Damage - You should use all reasonable means and precautions to protect Your Unit from further
damage. This Warranty will not cover damage caused by not securing a timely repair of the failed component.

2. If Your Unit breaks down, return to the Issuing Distributor during normal service department hours. If this is not
possible, take Your Unit to the licensed repair facility of your choice (You may contact Administrator for assistance in
locating a repair facility).

3. Instruct the repair facility that they must obtain an authorization number from Administrator prior to proceeding with
repairs. The amount so authorized is the maximum that will be paid. Any additional amounts need prior approval.

4. In some cases, You may be required to authorize the repair facility to inspect or tear down Your Unit to determine
the cause and cost of the repair. You will be responsible for these charges if Failure is not covered by this Warranty.
We reserve the right to require an inspection of Your Unit prior to any repair being performed.

5. After Administrator has been contacted, review with the repair facility components that will be covered by this
Warranty.

6. Administrator will reimburse the repair facility or You for the cost of authorized repairs performed on Your Unit,. All

repair orders and necessary documentation must be submitted to Administrator within thirty (30) days to qualify for
payment.

SERVICE DEPARTMENT GUIDELINES FOR CLAIMS HANDLING

Follow these steps when handling a claim:

1. Advise Warranty holder that evaluation of a Failure does not mean that the repair is covered under this
Warranty. All covered repairs must receive prior authorization by Administrator.

2. Have Warranty holder authorize inspection/tear down of the Unit to determine Failure's cause and cost to
repair. Save all components, including fluids and filters, should Administrator require outside inspection.
Notify Warranty Holder that cost of tear down will not be paid if it is determined that Failure is not covered under
this Warranty.

3. Determine the cause of Failure, correction required and cost of the
repairs.

4. Contact Administrator’s Claims Advisor at 800-402-8864 to get authorization to proceed with the claim.
Be prepared with the following when placing the call:

a. Customer's Name and
Installation date.

b. Cause of Failure and
recommended correction.

¢c. Costof repair.

5. The Claims Advisor will verify coverage and do one of the
following:

a. Approve Claim - If approved, you will be given an authorization number to be recorded on the repair
order. The authorized amount is the maximum that will be paid. Additional amounts must receive prior
approval.

b. Require Additional Evaluation, Inspection or Tear Down - Administrator may require an inspection
prior to repair being completed. If a tear down is required to determine cause of Failure, Warranty
holder must authorize same.

c¢. Notify Warranty holder that if the repair is not covered, then Warranty holder will be responsible for
cost of the tear down. Repair facility should save all components requiring inspection, including fluids
and filters. The Claims Advisor will arrange for the inspection. If inspection is not made within forty-eight
(48) hours, contact the Claims Advisor.

d. Deny the claim and provide the reason
for the denial.

6. Review Administrator’s findings with Warranty holder as well as what will be covered by Warranty and
what portion of the repairs, if any, will not be covered.

7. Obtain Warranty holder's authorization to complete repairs. All repair orders must have customer's signature
to qualify for payment.

8. Submit repair order(s) which should contain Warranty number, authorization number and authorized amount

to Administrator within thirty (30) days at the following address:
BlossmanServices, Inc.
2091 U.S. 70 Highway, Swannanoa, NC 28778



Parts not listed are not covered.

This Warranty Provides NO Coverage or Benefits for the following:

A. ANY FAILURE RESULTING FROM COLLISION; INTERNAL OR EXTERNAL FIRE; THEFT; VANDALISM; RIOT;
EXPLOSION; LIGHTNING; EARTHQUAKE; FREEZING; RUST OR CORROSION; SMOKE OR SOOT; WINDSTORM;
PESTS; HAIL; WATER OR FLOOD; FREEZING OR ICE DAMAGE; REVERSE POLARITY; ACTS OF GOD;

CHEMICALS; SALT, SAP, SAND, DIRT OR OTHER OBSTACLES; COSMETIC OR PAINT CHANGES; ELECTROLYSIS;
ENVIRONMENTAL DAMAGE; DETERIORATION, CONDENSATION, CONTAMINATION OR LOSS OF FLUIDS, FUELS,
COOLANTS OR LUBRICANTS.

B. ANY FAILURE CAUSED BY MISUSE; ABUSE; NEGLIGENCE; LACK OF NORMAL MAINTENANCE REQUIRED BY
THE MANUFACTURER’S MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE FOR YOUR UNIT; INPROPER SERVICING BY YOU AFTER THE
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS WARRANTY; CARBON OR SLUDGE BUILD-UP OR NOT MAINTAINING PROPER LEVELS
OF LUBRICANTS AND/OR COOLANTS; PREDETONATION/PREIGNITION; OR NOT PROTECTING THE UNIT FROM
FURTHER DAMAGE WHEN A FAILURE HAS OCCURRED.

C. ANY REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT OF A COVERED PART IF A FAILURE HAS NOT OCCURRED; ANY
UNAUTHORIZED REPAIR.

D. IF ANY ALTERATIONS HAVE BEEN MADE TO YOUR UNIT THAT MAY EFFECT THIS PRODUCT OR YOU ARE
USING, OR HAVE USED, YOUR UNIT IN A MANNER NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE MANUFACTURER. THIS WILL
INCLUDE, BUT NOT BE LIMITED TO, THE FAILURE OF ANY CUSTOM OR ADD-ON PART; ANY FRAME OR
SUSPENSION MODIFICATIONS; LIFT KITS; OVERSIZED/UNDERSIZED TIRES OR WHEELS; TRAILER HITCHES;

AND OR MODIFICATIONS TO THE ENGINE, EMISSIONS OR EXHAUST SYSTEMS.

E. IF YOUR ODOMETER HAS CEASED TO WORK AND REPAIRS HAVE NOT BEEN IMMEDIATELY MADE; THE
ODOMETER HAS BEEN ALTERED IN ANY WAY SUBSEQUENT TO PURCHASE; OR IF UNIT’S TRUE MILEAGE
CANNOT BE DETERMINED.

F. ANY LIABILITY FOR PROPERTY DAMAGE, OR FOR INJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON(S) ARISING OUT OF
THE OPERATION, MAINTENANCE OR USE OF YOUR UNIT, WHETHER OR NOT RELATED TO THE PARTS

COVERED. LOSS OF TIME, PROFIT, INCONVENIENCE, OR ANY OTHER LOSS THAT RESULTS FROM A FAILURE.
ANY COST DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH THE UPGRADING OF A COVERED PART OR COMPONENT THAT IS NO
LONGER IN PRODUCTION, OBSOLETE OR NOT COST EFFECTIVE TO REPLACE (REPLACEMENT VALUE OF THE
ORIGINAL PART WILL BE THE MAXIMUM ALLOWED); ANY COSTS IN EXCESS OF THE ACTUAL WHOLESALE OR
TRADE-IN VALUE OF THE UNIT AT THE TIME OF THE REPAIR OR FAILURE, THIS WARRANTY DOES NOT PROVIDE
COVERAGE FOR DAMAGES FOR BAD FAITH, PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES, PERSONAL INJURY
INCLUDING BODILY INJURY, PROPERTY DAMAGE (EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY STATED IN THE WARRANTY) AND
ATTORNEY'’S FEES.

G. REPAIRS TO SEIZED OR DAMAGED ENGINES DUE TO CONTINUED OPERATION WITHOUT SUFFICIENT
LUBRICANTS OR COOLANT. THERMOSTAT IS NOT COVERED. YOU ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAKING CERTAIN
THAT THE OIL AND TEMPERATURE WARNING LIGHTS/GAUGES ARE FUNCTIONING PROPERLY. YOU MUST PULL
OFF THE ROAD IMMEDIATELY AND DISCONTINUE UNIT OPERATION WHEN EITHER OF THESE

LIGHTS/GAUGES INDICATES INADEQUATE PROTECTION OR PERFORMANCE.

H. WHEN RESPONSIBILITY FOR A REPAIR IS COVERED BY AN INSURANCE POLICY; WARRANTY FROM THE
MANUFACTURER INCLUDING EXTENDED DRIVE TRAIN, MAJOR COMPONENT OR FULL COVERAGE
WARRANTIES; A REPAIRER’S GUARANTEE/WARRANTY; OR FAILURES FOR WHICH THE MANUFACTURER HAS
ANNOUNCED ITS RESPONSIBILITY THROUGH ANY MEANS, INCLUDING RECALL CAMPAIGNS AND FACTORY
SERVICE BULLETINS.

I. ANY FAILURE OCCURRING PRIOR TO THE WARRANTY ISSUE DATE, OR IF INFORMATION PROVIDED BY YOU
OR A REPAIR FACILITY CANNOT BE VERIFIED AS ACCURATE OR IS FOUND TO BE INACCURATE.

J. ANY FAILURE OCCURRING OUTSIDE OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA OR CANADA.

K. IF ITS ORIGINAL IDENTIFICATION (TRADE-MARK, SERIAL NUMBER) MARKINGS HAVE BEEN DEFACED,
ALTERED OR REMOVED.

L. ANY FAILURE OF A COMPONENT CAUSED BY THE FAILURE OF ANOTHER COMPONENT EXCEPT FOR A FAILURE
TO THE INTERNAL COMBUSTION COMPONENTS LIMITED PISTON, PISTON RINGS, CONNECTING RODS, INTAKE
AND EXHAUST VALVE, ENGINE BLOCK (CYLINDER CHAMBER}) AND HEADS IF CAUSED BY THE FAILURE OF A
COVERED COMPONENT.

Warranty Administered By:

Blossman Services, Inc..
2091 U.S. 70 Highway
Swannanoa, NC 28778

1-800-402-8864



ENHANCED LIMITED WARRANTY G@

FOR ALLIANCE ENGINEERED
FUEL SYSTEMS

Alliance Engineered
Fuel Systems

PROGRAM DETAILS

Offered on current model year or one model year old vehicles
Offered on vehicles at time of conversion with less than 5,000 miles on the odometer

Offered only on Alliance Engineered “Plug and Play” Products

WHAT COMPONENTS ARE COVERED BY THE ENHANCED
LIMITED WARRANTY?

The following Auto gas system components are covered by the terms of this warranty:

The Prins Electronic Control Module (ECU)

The VSI-1 Injection Modules (where applicable, not supplied with all systems)
The Prins/Keihin Autogas injectors

The Prins Autogas wiring harness

The Alliance Engineered wiring harness

The Prins reducer (covered against manufacturing defects only. Diaphragm and filters
are consumable parts)

The Prins combination pressure/temperature sensor
The Prins engine coolant sensor
The Prins reducer lock off solenoid

The Prins vapor filter (covered against manufacturing defects only. Filters are
consumable parts)

The Prins fuel selector switch/fuel level indicator
The Autogas storage tank

The Autogas fuel level sending unit

The liquid Autogas service and fill line assemblies

Any additional electronic modules supplied by Blossman Services as part of the original
system sale




ENHANCED LIMITED WARRANTY G@

FOR ALLIANCE ENGINEERED

Alliance Engineered
FUEL SYSTEMS ol Suctamic. .

Fuel Systems

WHAT COMPONENTS ARE NOT COVERED BY THE LIMITED
WARRANTY?

The following Auto gas system components are NOT covered by the terms of this
warranty:

* Autogas system pre-filter, liquid filter or vapor filter for reason of pollution
* Prins reducer diaphragm

+ Vapor hoses (with the exception of manufacturing defects, these hoses are a
maintenance item)

WHAT IS NOT COVERED UNDER WARRANTY?

Damage Caused By:

* Accidents, collision or objects striking the vehicle (including driving through a car wash)
* Theft, vandalism, or riot

* Using contaminated or improper fuel/fluids

+ Customer-applied chemicals or accidental spills

¢ Driving through water deep enough to cause water to be ingested into the engine

* Misuse of the vehicle, such a driving over curbs, overloading, racing or using the vehicle
as a permanent stationary power source

Damage Caused by Alteration or Modification of:
« Vehicle body, chassis, or components, after the vehicle has been successfully converted

* Emissions systems or the other parts that affect these systems (for example, but not
limited to exhaust and intake systems)

Damage Caused by Use and/or the Environment:
» Use and/or exposure to the elements

+ Road salt

+  Windstorm, lightening, hail

+ Earthquake

* Freezing, water or flood




ENHANCED LIMITED WARRANTY M

FOR ALLIANCE ENGINEERED

_ Alliance Engineered
FUEL SYSTEMS el Sustams |

Fuel Systems

WHAT IS NOT COVERED UNDER WARRANTY? (cont’d)

Maintenance/Wear - Blossman Services Inc. does NOT warrant:
* Parts and labor needed to maintain the vehicle

« The replacement parts due to normal wear and tear. You, as the owner, are responsible
for these items. See your Owner's Manual.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

The following represents the coverage, What to do in the event of a failure and exclusions
of your warranty. This document is an application for the warranty and does not
constitute a warranty until accepted by the administrator.

CONVERSION KIT COMPONENTS WARRANTY:

WARRANTY PERIOD: Coverage under this Warranty begins immediately and will expire
five (5) years from the start date or 100,000 miles from the odometer miles at the start
date, whichever occurs first, as shown on the Warranty Registration Document. OTE:
Warranty expiration is measured from the installation date.

FAILURE OF COVERED PARTS: We will pay or reimburse You for reasonable costs to
repair or replace any Failure of a part included in Your Coverage. Replacement parts may
be new, remanufactured or replacement parts of like kind and quality, at the discretion of
Administrator.

TERRITORY: This Warranty is limited to Failures which occur, and repairs that are made,
within the United States of America and Canada.

LIMIT OF LIABILITY: The aggregate Limit of Liability for the term of this Warranty shall
not exceed the actual cash value of the components covered under this Warranty.

OUR RIGHT TO RECOVERY: If we pay anything under this Warranty and You have a right
to recover from another party, Your rights will become Our rights up to the amount We
paid. You will do whatever is necessary to enable Us to enforce these rights.

TRANSFER RIGHTS: This Warranty is for the benefit of the original Warranty holder and is
not transferable,

MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS: You must maintain your vehicle according to the
manufacturer's recommendations as outlined in the owner’s manual. Your owner’s
manual has separate required maintenance schedules for “normal” and “more severe”
operating conditions. You are required to follow the maintenance schedule that applies
to your conditions. You must be sure only the proper grade of lubricants and coolants,




ENHANCED LIMITED WARRANTY W

FOR ALLIANCE ENGINEERED

Alliance Engineered
FUEL SYSTEMS B ol -

Fuel Systems

CONVERSION KIT COMPONENTS WARRANTY: (cont’d)

as recommended by the manufacturer, are used in your vehicle. It is necessary for you
to retain verifiable receipts for all parts and materials necessary to perform the required
maintenance. If necessary, this documentation will be verified by the Administrator.

ARBITRATION: If we and you do not agree on the settlement of any claim, either party
may make a written request for arbitration. In this event, each party shall select an
arbitrator. The two arbitrators shall select a third. If they cannot agree on a third within
thirty (30) days, either may request that the selection be made by a judge of a court
having jurisdiction. Each party shall pay the expenses they incur, and bear the expenses of
the third party arbitrator equally. A decision agreed to by any two of the arbitrators shall
be binding on both parties.

Warranty Administered By:
Blossman Services, Inc. 2091 U.S. Highway 70
Swannanoa, NC 28778
1-800-402-8864




L

PRPARLO 87

PROFCSED CIVIL ENGINEERS
4,000 cALL G LAND SURVEYORS
FROPAIIE TANK PROJECT MANAGERS
K PLANNERS

PROPOSED CRASH
PROTECTION CLEAR
SPACE

www.pdgnw.com

1TCTD FUELING

*WE B SR e
o B el ISLAND & TANK
b};"—;b.m-‘i At

(’//./

qC- 37

-]
]
<

— =T
— =
FORTEY

BC 3650 L

;.-'-'- LTSS
A
b
1
'
i

Pl i i

.y
ATy
—‘{—/
\‘_‘T

41 ”
a { v,
L paon
<C. g0

[Nl f

STOR.
pG ‘¢

Bos w200
B
=l

. 4 EXPIRES' JUNE 30, 2022
y FiNFLR { /
\ - DATE SIGHED
\ FROPOSED CANOPY / ¥ .
AND FUEUNG ISLAND ¢ .-"l 7 Rk ™ ' g Mo
", P4 4 1

BLUE STAR GAS

R0 ) . y
BATE 1 I ] | H T | ‘35/ I
i lmn oF uf!slapwébg 6TORP GE I I I‘E 05 »
Pap - 1 VENICLE BODY \‘ ' | |
| 7 L G}@ \E I 1|
1| : {‘ BL | o R | | '{
i | 50! |FINFER | I 3
09 " : } I : I n .
| | | OB 0 ! ik —
I | ! ! [ prd HEST NILE
i t o )
o Rl ] NN S S - =~ I S . I A1 -
& TURNING
MOVEMENTS
e 20" 40

C-1.01







BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Authorizing

the General Manager to Enter into a
into a Services Contract with Jacobs
Engineering Group for Planning

and Engineering Services

L S e

RESOLUTION NO. 21-14

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District has need of planning and
engineering design services related to the Champion Park Apartments complex; and

WHEREAS, the Project includes planning, surveying, design, permitting, bidding,
construction of a bus stop facility that includes passenger waiting platform, shelter pad,
sidewalk and other road upgrades and improvements; and

WHEREAS, the District’s Public Contracting Rules and Procedures, and ORS
279C.110(8), allow the direct appointment for personal services contracts for
architectural, engineering, surveying, and related services if the total contract amount is
less than $100,000; and

WHEREAS, Jacobs Engineering Group is a qualified planning, architectural and
engineering company and desires to contract with TCTD for the work described above;
and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Tillamook
County Transportation District that:

Section 1: The General Manager is authorized to enter into a contract, by direct
appointment, with Jacobs Engineering Group for planning, engineering and design
services in an amount not to exceed $40,062.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 22" day of April, 2021.

ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

(A



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

This contract for professional services is entered into by and between TILLAMOOK
COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT, a special district of the State of Oregon,
hereinafter referred to as TCTD, and Jacobs Engineering, hereinafter called the
CONTRACTOR to design and develop a bus stop construction package for the Champion
Park Apartments services to TCTD. The following provisions shall comprise this Contract:

L SCOPE

This Contract covers the personal services as described in the Scope of Work, incorporated
by reference and attached as Appendix A. Work shall be performed in accordance with a
schedule approved by TCTD. The CONTRACTOR shall meet the highest standards
prevalent in the industry or business most closely involved in providing the appropriate goods
or services. The Contract shall commence upon contract execution and continue through
June 2022.

Il COMPENSATION

A. TCTD agrees to compensate the CONTRACTOR on a fee-for-services basis as
detailed in this Contract. Invoices submitted for payment in connection with this Contract
shall be properly documented and shall indicate pertinent TCTD contract and/or purchase
order numbers. All charges shall be billed monthly and will be paid net 30 days from receipt
of invoice. The maximum compensation authorized under this Contract shall not exceed
$40,062.

B. The CONTRACTOR is engaged hereby as an independent contractor and will
be so deemed for purposes of the following:

1 The CONTRACTOR will be solely responsible for payment of any
Federal or State taxes required as a result of this Contract.

2 This Contract is not intended to entitle the CONTRACTOR to any
benefits generally granted to TCTD employees. Without limitation, but by way of
illustration, the benefits which are not intended to be extended by this Contract to the
CONTRACTOR are vacation, holiday and sick leave, other leaves with pay, tenure,
medical and dental coverage, life and disability insurance, overtime, Social Security,
Workers' Compensation, unemployment compensation, or retirement benefits (except
insofar as benefits are otherwise required by law if the CONTRACTOR is presently a
member of the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System).

3. If the CONTRACTOR has the assistance of other persons in the
performance of this Contract, and the CONTRACTOR is a subject employer, the
CONTRACTOR shall qualify and remain qualified for the term of this Contract as an
insured employer under Oregon Revised Statutes (“ORS”) Chapter 656.

C. The CONTRACTOR certifies that, at present, he or she, if an individual is not a
program, TCTD, or Federal employee.

Page 1 — Personal Services Contract PSA Jacob Engineering_Champion Park.docx\DP/4/16/2021 —Z O



D. The CONTRACTOR, if an individual, certifies that he or she is not a member of
the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System.

Il. CONTRACT CONDITIONS

A. Failure to Perform

TCTD may, subject to the provisions of paragraph (4) below, by written notice of
default to CONTRACTOR, terminate the whole or any part of this Contract in any one of the
following circumstances.

1. If CONTRACTOR fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the
services within the time specified herein or any extension thereof; or

2. If CONTRACTOR fails to perform any of the other provisions of this
Contract, or so fails to make progress as to endanger performance of this Contract in
accordance with its terms, and in either of these two circumstances does not cure
such failures within a period of ten (10) days (or such longer period as TCTD may
authorize in writing) after receipt of notice from TCTD specifying such failure.
CONTRACTOR'S failure to perform the scope of work identified or failure to meet
established performance standards shall be subject to consequences that include but
are not limited to:

® Reducing or withholding payment;

° Requiring CONTRACTOR to perform, at CONTRACTOR'’S sole
expense, additional work necessary to perform the identified scope of
work or meet the established performance standards; or

o Declaring a default, terminating the Contract and seeking damages and
other relief under the terms of the Contract or other applicable law.

3. In the event TCTD terminates this Contract in whole, or in part, as
provided in paragraph (2) above of this clause, TCTD may procure, upon such terms
and in such manner as TCTD may deem appropriate, supplies or services similar to
those terminated, and CONTRACTOR shall be liable to TCTD for any excess costs for
such similar supplies or services; provided, that CONTRACTOR shall continue the
performance of this Contract to the extent not terminated under the provisions of this
clause.

4, CONTRACTOR shall not be liable for any excess costs if the failure to
perform the Contract arises out of causes beyond the control of and without the fault or
negligence of CONTRACTOR. Such causes may include, but are not restricted to,
acts of God or of the public enemy, acts of TCTD in either its sovereign or contractual
capacity, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes
and unusually severe weather; but, in every case, the failure to perform must be
beyond the control of CONTRACTOR and without CONTRACTOR'S fault or
negligence. CONTRACTOR shall not be liable for excess costs for failure to perform,
unless the supplies or services to be furnished were obtainable from other sources in
sufficient time to permit CONTRACTOR to meet the required performance schedule.

Page 2 —Personal Services Contract PSA Jacob Engineering_Champion Park.docx\DP/4/16/2021 7 {



5. The rights and remedies of TCTD provided in this clause shall not be
exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or
under this Contract.

6. As used in this Contract, the terms "subcontractor" and "subcontractors”
mean subcontractor(s) at any tier.

B. Termination for Convenience

This Contract may be terminated by either party upon at least ten (10) days written
notice to the other.

C. Compliance with Applicable Law

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state and local statutes, regulations,
administrative rules, executive orders, ordinances and other laws applicable to the Services
under the Contract, in effect at the time the Contract is executed and as may be amended,
revised, enacted or adopted thereafter. Changes in these legal requirements after the
execution of the Contract may or may not be the basis for modifications to CONTRACTOR’S
schedule, scope and fee, depending on a reasonable assessment of the nature of the
change, the extent to which the change was anticipated by CONTRACTOR or the Parties,
and other circumstances then existing.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, CONTRACTOR expressly agrees to
comply with: (i) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Section V of the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, (iv) Section 306 of the Clean Air Act
(42 U.S.C. 1857 (h); (v) Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368; (vi) Executive
Order 11738; EPA regulations (40 CFR part 15) and ORS 659.425; (vii) Copeland Anti-
Kickback Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR
Part 3); (viii) Executive Order 11246 entitied Equal Employment Opportunity as amended by
Executive Order 11375 and as supplemented in 41CFR chapter 60; (ix) Davis-Bacon Act (40
U.S.C. 3141-3148) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5), (x)
Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-
330) as supplemented by Department if Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5); (xi) Energy Policy
and Conservation Act (pub.L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871); (xii) all regulations and administrative
rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (xiii) all other applicable requirements of
federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations.

If conflicts are discovered among federal, state and local statutes, regulations,
administrative rules, executive orders, ordinances and other laws applicable to the Services
under the Contract, CONTRACTOR shall in writing request TCTD to resolve the conflict.
CONTRACTOR shall specify if the conflict(s) create a problem for the design or other
Services required under the Contract.

D. Reporting Requirements

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the reporting requirements of TCTD including but
not limited to Progress, Status and Performance reports necessary to support progress
payments or cost reimbursements.

Page 3 — Personal Services Contract PSA Jacob Engineering_Champion Park docx\DP/4/16/2021 7 J



E. Records Maintenance; Access

CONTRACTOR, and its Subcontractors, shall maintain all fiscal records relating to the
Contract in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition,
CONTRACTOR shall maintain all other records pertinent to the Contract and the Project and
shall do so in such a manner as to clearly document CONTRACTOR'S performance.

TCTD and the federal government and their duly authorized representatives shall have
access, and CONTRACTOR shall permit the aforementioned entities and individual's access,
to such fiscal records and other books, documents, papers, plans and writings of
CONTRACTOR that are pertinent to the Contract to perform examinations and audits and
make excerpts and transcripts.

CONTRACTOR shall retain and keep accessible all such fiscal records, books,
documents, papers, plans, and writings for a minimum of 3 years, or such longer period as
may be required by applicable law, following final payment and expiration or termination of
the Contract, or until the conclusion of any audit, controversy or litigation arising out of or
related to the Contract, whichever date is later.

F. Patents; Copy Rights; Rights in Data

Any discovery or invention that arises during the course of the Contract shall be
reported to TCTD. The CONTRACTOR shall promptly disclose inventions to TCTD, within 2
months, after the inventor discloses it in writing to the CONTRACTOR'S personnel
responsible for patent matters. The rights in the invention/discovery shall be allocated
consistent with “Government Patent Policy” and FAR Part 27.

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements and regulations for Copy
Rights and Rights in Data pursuant to FAR Part 27.

IV. CONSTRAINTS

The CONTRACTOR agrees:

A. If the services to be provided pursuant to this Contract are professional and/or
consultative, the CONTRACTOR shall not delegate the responsibility for providing those
services to any other individual or agency.

B. Pursuant to the requirements of ORS 279B.020 and 279B.220 through
279B.235 and Article XI, Section 10, of the Oregon Constitution, the following terms and
conditions are made a part of this Contract:

1. CONTRACTOR shall:
a. Make payments promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to the

CONTRACTOR labor or materials for the prosecution of the work provided for
in this Contract.

Page 4 - Persona' Se rViceS Contract PSA Jacob Engineering_Champion Park.docx\DP/4/16/2021 7 3



b. Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund
from such CONTRACTOR or subcontractor incurred in the performance of this
Contract.

C. Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against
TCTD on account of any labor or material furnished.

2. If the CONTRACTOR fails, neglects or refuses to make prompt payment
of any claim for labor or services furnished to the CONTRACTOR or a subcontractor
by any person in connection with this Contract as such claim becomes due, the proper
officer representing TCTD may pay such claim to the person furnishing the labor or
services and charge the amount of the payment against funds due or to become due
the CONTRACTOR by reason of this Contract.

3. The CONTRACTOR shall pay employees for work in accordance with
ORS 279B.020 and ORS 279B.235, which is incorporated herein by this reference.

All subject employers working under the Contract are either employers that will
comply with ORS 656.017 or employers that are exempt under ORS 656.126.

4, The CONTRACTOR shall promptly, as due, make payment to any
person or co-partnership, association or corporation furnishing medical, surgical and
hospital care or other needed care and attention incident to sickness and injury to the
employees of the CONTRACTOR, of all sums which the CONTRACTOR agrees to
pay for such services and all moneys and sums which the CONTRACTOR collected or
deducted from the wages of the CONTRACTOR'S employees pursuant to any law,
contract or agreement for the purpose of providing or paying for such services.

5. This Contract is expressly subject to the debt limitation of Oregon
counties set forth in Article XI, Section 10, of the Oregon Constitution, and is
contingent upon funds being appropriated therefore. Any provisions herein which
would conflict with law are deemed inoperative to that extent.

6. The CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend
TCTD, its officers, commissioners, agents and employees from and against all claims
and actions, and all expenses incidental to the investigation and defense thereof
(including attorney’s fees), arising out of or based upon damage or injuries to persons
or property caused by the errors, omissions, fault or negligence of the CONTRACTOR
or the CONTRACTOR'S employees or agents.

7. The CONTRACTOR'S failure to perform the scope of work identified or
failure to meet established performance standards shall be subject to consequences
that include, but are not limited to:

a. Reducing or withholding payment;

b. Requiring the CONTRACTOR to perform, at the CONTRACTOR'S
sole expense, additional work necessary to perform the identified scope of work
or meet the established performance standards; or

Page 5 — Personal Services Contract PSA Jacob Engineering_Charmpion Park.docx\DP/4/16/2021 7 4



C. Declaring a default, terminating the Contract and seeking
damages and other relief under the terms of the Contract or other applicable
law.

8. All subject employers working under the Contract are either employers
that will comply with ORS 656.017 or employers that are exempt under ORS 656.126.

V. OWNERSHIP

Upon fulfillment of the Contract Terms, TCTD will have legal title to, and rights to use the
entirety of the documents, images, and data used to create the plan, (collectively referred to
as “the work”) without limitation. This includes the right to use the work in contexts including,
but not limited to: (1) public relations, press releases, or publicity; (2) re-use or modification of
the work; and (3) use as a teaching aid or continuing education tool.

VI. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

A. Commercial General Liability
DX Required by TCTD [ ] Not required by TCTD

The CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish TCTD evidence of commercial general liability
insurance in the amount of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit per
occurrence/$2,000,000 general annual aggregate for personal injury and property damage
for the protection of TCTD, its officers, directors, agents and employees against liability for
damages because of personal injury, bodily injury, death or damage to property, including
loss of use thereof, in any way related to this Contract. The general aggregate shall apply
separately to this project / location. TCTD, at its option, may require a complete copy of the
above policy.

B. Automobile Liability
X Required by TCTD [] Not required by TCTD

The CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish TCTD evidence of business automobile liability
insurance in the amount of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and
property damage for the protection of TCTD, its officers, directors, agents and employees
against liability for damages because of bodily injury, death or damage to property, including
loss of use thereof in any way related to this Contract. TCTD, at its option, may require a
complete copy of the above policy.

C. Professional Liability

(] Required by TCTD X] Not required by TCTD
D. Pollution Liability Insurance
[ 1 Required by TCTD X Not required by TCTD

E. Such insurance shall provide sixty (60) days’ written notice to TCTD in the
event of a cancellation or material change and include a statement that no act on the part of

Page 6 — Personal Services Contract PSA Jacob Engineering_Champion Park docx\DP/4/16/2021 _7 6



the insured shall affect the coverage afforded to TCTD under this insurance. This policy(s)
shall be primary insurance as respects to TCTD. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained
by TCTD shall be excess and shall not contribute to it.

F. If the CONTRACTOR has the assistance of other persons in the performance of
this Contract, and the CONTRACTOR is a subject employer, the CONTRACTOR agrees to
qualify and remain qualified for the term of this Contract as an insured employer under ORS
656. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain employer's liability insurance with limits of $100,000
for each accident, $100,000 per disease for each employee, and $500,000 each minimum
policy limit.

G. If any other required liability insurance is arranged on a “claims made” basis,
“tail” coverage will be required at the completion of this Contract for a duration of thirty-six
(36) months or the maximum time period the CONTRACTOR’S insurer will provide “tail”
coverage as subscribed, whichever is greater, or continuous “claims made” liability coverage
for thirty-six (36) months following the Contract completion. Continuous “claims made”
coverage will be acceptable in lieu of “tail” coverage, provided its retroactive date is on or
before the effective date of this Contract.

H. The insurance, other than the Workers’ Compensation, Professional liability and
Pollution liability insurance, shall include TCTD as an additional insured. Proof of insurance
must include a copy of the endorsement showing TCTD as a scheduled insured.

l. CONTRACTOR shall require that all of its subcontractors of any tier provide
insurance coverage (including additional insured provisions) and limits identical to the
insurance required of the CONTRACTOR under this Contract, unless this requirement is
expressly modified or waived by TCTD.

Vil. SUBCONTRACTS

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to TCTD for the actions of persons and firms
performing subcontract work. The CONTRACTOR certifies that the CONTRACTOR has not
discriminated and will not discriminate against any minority, women or emerging small
business enterprise in obtaining any subcontract.

Vill. MEDIATION

CONTRACTOR and TCTD agree that any dispute that may arise under this Contract will be
submitted first to a mediator agreed to by both parties as soon as such dispute arises, but in any
event prior to the commencement of litigation or arbitration. Such mediation will occur at
Tillamook, Tillamook County, Oregon, and the mediator's fees and expenses will be shared
equally by the parties who agree to exercise their best efforts in good faith to settle all disputes.

IX. SEVERABILITY

If any term, condition or provision of this Contract or the application thereof to any circumstance
is determined to be invalid or unenforceable to any extent, the remaining provisions of this
Contract will not be affected but will instead remain valid and fully enforceable.

Page 7 — Personal Services Contract PSA Jacob Engineering_Champion Park docx\DP/4/16/2021 —7 (é/



X. AMENDMENT

A. This Contract and any amendments to this Contract will not be effective until
approved in writing by an authorized representative of the Tillamook County Transportation
District, acting as fiscal agent for the TCTD.

B. This Contract supersedes and cancels any prior contracts between the parties

hereto for similar services.

The undersigned, by its signature, agrees to perform the scope of work as described in
the Contract documents and meet the performance standards set forth therein. By their
signatures below, the parties to this Contract agree to the terms, conditions, and content

expressed herein.

Jacobs Engineering Group
2020 SW 4t Ave #300
Portland, OR 97229

By:

Authorized Signature

Name/Title (Printed)

Date

Telephone/Fax Number

CCB License # (if applicable)

Oregon Business Registry

Tillamook County Transportation District
3600 Third Street, Suite A
Tillamook, OR 97141

By:

Authorized Signature

Name/Title (Printed)

Date

Approved as to Form

Entity Type/State of Formation

Page 8 — Personal Services Contract

District Counsel

PSA Jacob Engineering_Champion Park.docx\DP/4/16/2021 7 7



Appendix A

Scope of Services

Page 9 _ Personal Se I’Vices Contra Ct PSA Jacob Engineering_Champion Park.docx\DP/4/16/2021 7 8



Tillamook County Transit District — Champion Apartments Bus Stop:

The purpose of this task order is for Jacobs Engineering Group (Jacobs) to help Tillamook County Transit
District (TCTD) develop a construction package for a new bus stop facility at the near side of Brookfield
Ave. and the Champion Park apartment complex in Tillamook Oregon. This scope of work includes the
project management, site investigation and a design necessary to develop a construction package which
TCTD can put out to bid.

Assumptions:

e Project Notice to Proceed (NTP) anticipated no later than May 14, 2021

e Project construction completion date of October 30, 2021

e TCDC will lead development of construction bid boilerplate/procurement
documentation

e SEPA/NEPA process will be completed by Jacobs

e TCTD will not be seeking additional right-of-way as part of the Champion Apartments
Bus Stop project

e This project will implement ODOT design standards, and drafting standards.

e ODOT technical specifications and estimate template will be used

Exclusions:
e Public Involvement
e ROW acquisition tasks, including but not limited to field surveying plat preparation,
ROW and Easement description preparation.
e Bid-phase support services
e No upgrades to the storm water drainage adjacent to the bus stop, under the Champion
Park Apartments access drive, are included in this project

The agreed scope of the professional services is as follows:
Task 1. Project Management

1.1. Project Design Meetings & Design Coordination

Jacobs shall lead up to three (3) design progress meetings with Tillamook County Transit District
(TCTD). These meetings will last up to one hour in duration with the participation of up to three
(3) Jacobs team members (based on the relevant issues and expertise). During these meetings,
outstanding design issues and decisions will be discussed and resolved per TCTD direction.

1.2. Project Schedule

Jacobs will develop and maintain the projects schedule through the duration of the project.
Assumptions:

e TCTD will provide general timelines for bidding and construction of similar past projects
to aid in the schedule development.

14



Deliverables:

¢ Project schedule including major milestones and deliverable dates
¢ Meeting agendas & relevant questions to TCTD in advance of project design meetings

Proposed Project Schedule Milestones:

Task Completion Date Duration Comments
{Working Days)

NTP 5/14/21 0 Assumed beginning of project
Survey 5/27/21 9

Geotech 5/31/21 6

Conceptual Design 5/28/21 9

TCTD Review 6/4/21 5

Intermediate Design 6/18/21 10

TCTD Review 7/1/21 10

Draft Final Design 7/20/21 12

TCTD Review 8/2/21 10

IFC 8/10/21 5

Bid 9/20/21 30

Construction 11/1/21 30

Task 2. Field Investigations & Coordination

2.1. Surveying & Mapping

Based on design requirements and infrastructure site conditions, and as directed by TCTD,
Jacobs will conduct land surveying services and provide supplemental topographic and boundary
base mapping for the project area. Mapping will be prepared using a project horizontal control
system referenced to Oregon State Plane North Zone NADS83 horizontal coordinates and
NAVD88 vertical datum. Control points will be set or identified and tied to the project horizontal
and vertical datum for future use as dimensional control reference during construction.

The general utility notification center will be called to request utility location services at least 14
days prior to commencing work. This work will be coordinated with sub-task 2.3 Geotechnical
Investigation & Reports to streamline the data collection and expedite the design process.

The base mapping will include but is not limited to the following items:

Any Right-of-way and easement lines

Site planimetric features such as, drainage and utility structures, walkways, roadways,

all pavement markings, signage, building faces, and other man-made structures within
the project area

Storm pipe sizes and invert elevations

Non-standard features such as vaults and sign messages.

Existing utilities within the project area, tied through field surveys, 811 utility markings
and utility research.

One-foot contour intervals of the subject area

¥0




e Survey Benchmarks or any established control points

2.2. Utility Coordination

Jacobs will support TCTD in coordinating with public and private utilities to determine potential
utility conflict areas and identify relocation needs. it is anticipated that the following utilities
may require coordination:

e City of Tillamook — Water, Sewer, Stormwater

o Tillamook County — Water, Sewer, Stormwater

e City of Tillamook — Communications (CenturyLink, Comcast, Level 3, Verizon/XO

Communications, Zayo)
e NW Natural —Gas

2.3. Geotechnical Investigation & Reports

Jacobs shall provide geotechnical engineering services to support the pavement, station, and
shelter foundation design. The investigation will consist of up to three (3) borings or test pits in
locations defined by the geotechnical engineer. A site visit by the geotechnical engineer will be
included in this task and will be coordinated with sub-task 2.1 Surveying & Mapping.

Laboratory testing will be conducted on selected soil samples from the borings and test pits, and
is anticipated to consist of general index and engineering property tests such as moisture
content, Atterberg limits, unit weight, grain size distribution, pH, resistivity, chlorides and
sulfates, moisture-density relationships, and California bearing ratio test values. Additional tests
may be performed to determine soil strength and compressibility

characteristics.

A geotechnical memo will be prepared that includes a concept figure to show proposed bore
locations, a description of the explorations, exploration logs, laboratory test results,
groundwater elevation data (if encountered), and a discussion of geotechnical analyses
performed and design recommendations.

2.4. Documented Categorical Exclusions

Task 3.

Jacobs shall provide a completed Documented Categorical Exclusion (DCE) for this project for
ODOT review and approval. The document will include completing due-diligence background
research to verify that this project is included in the DCE categories. Jacobs will coordinate with
TCTD and the ODOT Regional Transit Coordinator (RTC) until FTA concurrence is obtained. This
task includes one round of revisions.

Deliverables:
¢ Geotechnical memorandum

Conceptual Design Alternatives

Jacobs will develop up to three (3) bus stop concepts overlaid on top of aerial imagery prior to
the base mapping completion to inform the design advanced into intermediate design. These

3l



alternatives will be discussed in a project design meeting and a preferred alternative will be
chosen by TCTD.

Assumptions:

TCTD will provide relevant vehicle information including overall length, wheelbase
spacing, vehicle width, door locations and other information as needed by the engineer
for testing turning movements and amenities layout.

TCTD will provide shelter dimensions and any available specifications for the shelter
which the wish to use on the platform.

Deliverables:

Up to three (3) bus stop concepts presented in a project design meeting

Task 4. Intermediate Design

Jacobs shall complete the translation of field survey data into site base mapping, establish the
geometric boundaries of the Project site, and advance the concept chosen in task 3 Conceptual
Design Alternatives.

4.1. Intermediate Plans, Specs, and Estimate (PS&E)

The level of detail in the Intermediate design submittal must be sufficient to develop
intermediate cost estimates, specification list, and provide TCDC with a basis for project
development planning.

Jacobs shall prepare the intermediate plans which address the following topics:

Bus stop location/layout
Typical sections
Stormwater drainage
o Stormwater conveyance must be maintained if the bus stop design impedes the
ditch adjacent to the site. The design effort will consist of matching the
conveyance capacity of the existing upstream culvert and ditch either with a
pipe orin a culvert or grading behind the new bus stop.
Shelter Foundation
o Tillamook county wishes to use an existing shelter that will be provided to the
Contractor for installation. Jacobs will provide a foundation detail for the shelter
attachment to the bus stop pad.
Pavement Design
Accessible routing
Signing/Striping
Planting locations
Anticipated utility conflicts
Anticipated demolition

Jacobs shall prepare a construction cost with the intermediate design to a level of accuracy
commensurate with the design completion. The intermediate design stage cost estimate will
include contingency for unknowns.

62



Task 5.

Task 6.

Assumption:

e At the intermediate design stage, the plans shall consist of the sheets listed below. It is
not anticipated that any other sheets will be required for the subsequent construction
packages.

o Cover

Index, Legend and Abbreviations, & Standard Drawing List
Details Sheets (2)
Typical Sections
Ramp Detail Sheets
General Construction

o Drainage and Utilities
e TCTD will coordinate with Tillamook County and other stakeholders to provide them

with the intermediate PS&E package for review.

e TCTD will obtain and compile comments from all parties and submit them to Jacobs.
e The budgeted level of effort for this task assumes minor revisions to concept developed.

o 0 O O O

Deliverables:
e Specifications outline in a Word document
e Engineers estimate in an Excel document
e Intermediate Plans delivered via email in composite single PDF

Draft Final Design

The Draft Final Design will be advanced based on the approved intermediate drawings and
direction under Task 4, and incorporate data, feedback, and results from the tasks above to
incorporate additional detail to a Draft Final design level. This set will finalize the roadway
geometry and project footprint , bus stop and pedestrian access, and establish
grading/drainage.

Assumptions:
e TCTD will coordinate with Tillamook County and other stakeholders to provide them
with the Draft Final PS&E package for review.
e TCTD will obtain and compile comments from all parties and submit them to Jacobs.
¢ The budgeted level of effort for this task assumes minor revisions to intermediate deign
deliverables. No significant design changes are assumed.

Deliverables:
e Comment Adjudication Log
e Technical Specifications in a Word document
e Engineers Estimate in an Excel document
¢ Draft Final Plans delivered via email in composite single PDF

Issued For Construction {IFC) Package

Jacobs will address review comments and finalize plans and specifications based on TCTD and
other stakeholder review comments. Jacobs shall develop a final engineering estimates for the

83



IFC submittal based on the design, with a level of accuracy commensurate with the level of
design.

Assumptions:
e TCTD will coordinate with Tillamook County and other stakeholders to provide them
with the Draft Final PS&E package for review.
e TCTD will obtain and compile comments from all parties and submit them to Jacobs.
e The budgeted level of effort for this task assumes minor revisions to draft final deign
deliverables. No significant design changes are assumed.

Deliverables:
o Comment Adjudication Log
¢ Stamped Technical Specifications in a Word document
e Engineers Estimate in an Excel document
e Stamped IFC Plans delivered via email in composite single PDF



WdeeZl Lzoz/olw
133

¥se Jsad 8BNS 31500 "J/100 (a6/e) isa-sE)
0% ‘SAINId HOLIVILINODENS TV.LOL _ _ INNOWY
| [ wuid
¢50'0v$ [{Sldenuodgng ou) 1503 1V.LOL S.WHI3 :SHOLOVILINOD-GNS
9£0'1$  |SISNIdXI TVLOL SIS 9£0°L$ *SISNIJIX3 IVLOL Tiies 1
0% L140¥d
{33114 PXI4 10} YO-Y 1 40 150D TVLOL SN 00°00.$ 00'00L$ I Bunsa o Sgeq
.............. e e 00°0% SNOJUENIISIA
00°0% saido)y
00'0% waig Jad
00'9€ES 95°0% 009 S3)|W 0G| du} punoy Yoowe abes|iin
00°0%
d0Idd Elelt-F] ‘ON
IVL0L LINN ALINYND (Swaw MSYL-9NS
'SINTWWOD SISNIIXT
0003 0008 00°0$ 0008 00'90}'L$ | 00'009'€S | 0009L'ZS | 000228 | 000cGv+S | D0000ZLS| 00008 LS | 00021 €S () 1509 Hoav1
U003 0003 00°0% 00°0% 00'6.% 00°001$ 0006% 00081 % 00°0L1$ 000CLS 000G1% 00'561$ (4H/$) S3LVY JOFYT
0 0 4] o] vl 9g 144 4 el 001 cl 9l 8£E€ SHNOH JOEVY1 IV.LIOL
v [ 9 sleunsy
z z 2 so8dg
4 [4 14 sbeuelq
r4 I4 b4 uonepuncd Jallpus
14 [4 9
14 < 9
0 0 MM KN ¥ PR D0 D00y 00 R0 - 2 D O] 0E - aysel’
v v 8 BoTiusWwwo) LG
8 v 1) BIEWS] 9g
9 9 $08dS i)
[43 9 8l Sbelelq [
ci 8 0C ueld s £'G
Bl Ot BZ Slieag G
[ [4 9 JEENSNETY,) (%3
o 2 -0 - D IEE s [ -0 SRS o 11 OGN OB SRS e VE5EE B0 R 2 - -ubssgruiFiEIa) g ysel
i4 v 8 Sewnsg 3%
9 9 so8dg X3
8 El vl sbeueiq (%4
oL [ ve Uejd 3lig EP |
] i4 zl speiag [ 4
4 4 v 198US 19A00) [R3
0 L BN SO0 UOOCR, DOCK ') 0- 0 -0 8% 0E 3 89 2! ~ubsag aye|paliaiy| el
9L vz JuswdoeAs 1dsouoy
-0 DS 00 i ] b R G 0 - ar ! g b RR 74 - seanewsly ubseq jenidedueD] T § jSel
ZL L SUOISNOX3 [BOLICDSIED) PaluaWwnoog ¥7
Ve v 9z uonebpsaAUi [BojUdsloasy [34
] 4 % Gl UOReuIpioo] AN [44
9t 9€ Bujddeyy pue bukaning (4
1 a0 GOg: oo ) -9 5T, VE . ¥ FATON IOy Rt e RS e L R ~SuONEDfiSeal ped| ¢ 9eel |
v v ajnpeyog 198l0id Z1
El 8 zh 8z UONEUIPJO0] UBISS( 7 Sbunesiy ubisaq 198l01g T
ESEoRt | SO O 1R R SO0 ol graasapaasge.i 0 9| R et oo oo yuowebeuri 1ford| T L ySeL - -
P (6uoy) (opeaszy) | (uspog) (u=isy) (oog1eg) _L_MMM_HW‘. (uosduig) | o Inoy
e foning | 3 16ug 1Bug T ] 1eios4 soBeuepp [e10L NOILJIMISIA MSVL| "ONMSVL
yosjoen Yosjoany uBiseqipaln 1o6foid fandeq welosd
NOILVYDIJISSYTIO 90r ¥3d SHNOH J0gv1
| $9d  :AE 03yvdadd | ] 44d0 [ w3l ] _3ddd dd {INJWAVd 40 QOH.LAW]
120zvk'y  :3lva | doig sng sjualupiedy yied uoidwey) sy jo ublseqg ‘NOILJINOSIA HSVL| 1 ON WSVYL

doig sng sidy uoidwey) dLIL F11IL LI3roud

Bunasuibug sqoder (WuI3

53



